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GROUP FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

HBRE Financial data 2020 2021 2022
(U FELIT) (expressed in HK$000)
BEFEEEEEE  Including continuing operations and

CRIEEEER discontinued operations
Wz Revenue 27,783 9,100 41,218
E7) Gross profit 4,707 8,020 8,945
PN S DN (Loss) gain for the year attributable to

AEE (B18) W& owners of the Company (1,061,359) (76,499) 458,373
MFRH B~ KRITER  (Loss) gain before interest, tax and

(&518) W m depreciation (1,104,753) (70,615) 627,779
EREHEB ANEGEH Deficiency attributable

to owners of the Company (1,551,312) (1,677,230) (1,093,451)

WEEYZE BB sk fE  Acquisition of property, plant and equipment 4,698 3 1,750
NATHEE NEMEER  Net liability attributable to owners

FEEE (BT) of the Company per share (HK$)

(Brzzr) (note 1) (0.355) (0.384) (0.250)
ML E Financial ratios
MENELE (H3#2) Current ratio (note 2) 001 0.04 0.06
RENEE (H3#3) Quick ratio (note 3) 001 0.04 0.06
Mzt Note:
I AAREBEAN = AAAEBA - EREBEGRM I Net liability attributable = Deficiency attributable to = Number of issued shares

EhEERZE i g g8 to owners of the owners of the Company at year end

& Company per share
2 MELLE = RYEE T RBaR 2. Current ratio = Current assets —~ Current liabilities
3. RELE = (RBEE T REFEE 3. Quick ratio = (Current assets - =~ Current liabilities

) Inventories)

FEMXBRER (EE) BRAE « 20228 K



EREwm Rk

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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RESULTS SUMMARY

Over the past year, the Group has striven for business improvement in a
challenging and volatile economic environment, and maintained relatively
stable wind farm operations. Meanwhile, the Group has also actively sought
business opportunities in the fields of new energy development and system
integration of energy storage equipment, and continued to fully facilitate the
implementation of certain agreements for relevant technical service project
development. The annual turnover was approximately HK$41.22 million, as
compared to approximately HK$9.1 million in 2021. The net profit in 2022
was HK$608 million, mainly affected by the following factors: (1) the gain on
debt restructuring of HK$434.46 million; (2) the gain on deconsolidation of
subsidiaries of HK$185.55 million; and (3) operating gross profit of HK$8.95

million, while the net loss in 2021 was approximately HK$74.14 million.

BUSINESS REVIEW

In 2022, the Chinese and global economy were still challenged by the impact
of the COVID-19 pandemic, and the Chinese government has launched a
series of favorable policies for the new energy industry based on the strategy
of energy transformation. The Group actively responded to the needs of the
national energy transformation and consolidated the foundation for high-
quality development. While striving to improve the wind farm operations,
the management has made unremitting efforts to actively explore the
development of new energy projects and expand into the integration of

“Wind, Photovoltaic, Hydrogen, and Energy Storage”.

New Energy Development Business

The Group has actively created conditions for the implementation of the
framework agreements on the development of new energy projects signed
with relevant local governments. In 2022, the Group promoted the signing
of investment and development agreements for several wind power and
photovoltaic projects with local governments, among which the photovoltaic
project in Guangdong has obtained the filing certificate and grid access
approval from the county government, and the wind power project in

Sichuan has commenced the application for wind resource measurement.

Annual Report 2022 » China Energine International (Holdings) Limited
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Wind Farm Operations

The Group controls the Aerospace Longyuan Benxi wind farm, which
provides a capacity of 24,650KW with 29 sets of 850KW wind turbines. The
project has maintained overall stable operation, but because the project has
been built and operated for many years, the fan models applied are small,
and the economy of scale of the project needs to be further improved. This
year, the state subsidies for new energy industry have greatly improved as

compared with the previous year.

In addition, the Group also participated in the investment of two associated
wind farms: the Jilin Longyuan Tongyu wind farm providing a capacity of
200,000KW with 236 sets of 850KW wind turbines; the Jiangsu Longyuan
Rudong wind farm providing a capacity of 150,000KW with 100 sets of
[.5SMW wind turbines. Compared with the previous year, the business
operation of these projects has not changed significantly, the operating results
are greatly affected by the regional wind resources, and the state subsidies
for new energy industry this year have greatly improved as compared with

the previous year.

MATERIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND
CONTROL

Due to the limited resource endowment, the Group currently only carries
out wind farm operations and new energy development business, and its

main business is closely related to national industrial policies.

The Group has assessed policy risks, operational risks, financing risks, safety
risks and legal risks for this year, and has actively formulated risk response

measures:

(1) Policy Risks

Since 2020, the general environment for the development and
utilization of new energy in China has become clearer, and encouraging
policies have been issued frequently, which is beneficial for the
Company to identify business opportunities in the new energy field.
However, the national industrial policy is expected to respond and
adjust from time to time as the industry situation changes. The Group
will still continue to closely monitor the changes in national industrial

policies and the prospective study on industry development.
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Operational Risks

Although the new energy industry enjoys long-term promising
prospects, due to developing new energy projects in a highly
competitive market, coupled with the limited resource endowment,
there are still certain uncertainties on how to make good use of
policies to quickly integrate various elements and resources required
for project development to achieve financial goals. The Group is still
under pressure to further adjust and consolidate its business structure
due to the small scale of its main business and single business structure
which have not been improved, and its anti-risk capability needs to be

improved.

Financing Risks

As the Company's guarantee obligations of approximately HK$1.317
billion provided to Beijing Energine Industry Co., Ltd. (a former
subsidiary) has been triggered, the Group's liquidity is still under great
pressure to meet operational needs and fulfill its debt obligations.
The Company has been granted an extended grace period (until
November 2024) by the controlling shareholder, but the ultimate
risk of the debt has not been fully eliminated. Management and the
controlling shareholder have reached a preliminary agreement on the
final resolution of the risk pressure of the guaranteed debt, while the

final implementation of the plan is still uncertain.

Although the Group has terminated the wind turbine manufacture
business, the debt to asset ratio is still too high, and the asset liquidity
still can not meet the needs of business development, thus the ability
of capital financing and debt financing is greatly challenged. The Group
is still actively pursuing the support from the controlling shareholder
to discuss the financial solutions required for the Group's relief and
business improvement, and there is still a risk of uncertainty about the

decision.

Annual Report 2022 » China Energine International (Holdings) Limited
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(1V) Safety Risks

v)

Wind farm operations involve hot-line work, especially in the repair
and maintenance of wind turbines and related equipment, there are
certain safety risks in aerial work. It is necessary to strengthen the
implementation of management regulations on safety operation to

eliminate unsafe behaviors and prevent and avoid such risks.

Legal Risks

To date, the case that the bankruptcy administrator of Beijing Energine
Industry Co., Ltd. commenced a suit against New Image Development
Limited, a former subsidiary of the Group, for its unpaid capital
contribution and claiming joint and several liability of the Company
in 2020 has not yet been heard. According to the preliminary analysis
of the professional legal counsel appointed by the Group, the claim
of joint and several liabilities against the Company is unlikely to be
valid. The resulting financial impact has been reflected in the Group's

consolidated financial statements.
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PROSPECTS

Looking into the future of the development of China's energy industry, the
task of ensuring energy safety and transforming energy into green and low-
carbon has become more urgent. Clean energy development has a long way
to go, and there are still some phased development difficulties to be solved.

At the Paris Climate Summit, the Chinese government announced the goal
of achieving "Carbon emissions peaking” by 2030 and “Carbon neutrality” by
2060 (referred to as the "double carbon goal"), and vigorously developing
renewable energy and electricity has become a key path to achieve the
double carbon goal. Since the 18th CPC National Congress, China has put
forward future energy development strategies, including a new strategy for
energy safety building a clean, low-carbon, safe and efficient energy system,
and further put forward an action plan for alternative renewable energy.

China has successively issued the Action Plan for Peaking Energy Carbon
and Promoting Carbon Neutrality and Standardization, the [4th Five-Year
Plan for Modern Energy System, the [4th Five-Year Plan for Renewable
Energy Development, the Implementation Plan for Promoting High-quality
Development of New Energy in the New Era, the Implementation Plan
for Promoting Green Consumption, and the Opinions on Improving the
Mechanisms, Policies and Measures for the Green and Low-carbon Energy
Transition China has made orderly progress in building a unified national
energy market and a unified electricity market system, further improved
the dual control of energy consumption, and deepened the reform of
“deregulating, regulating and serving".

In the next five to ten years, wind power, photovoltaic and other new energy
sources will become the main body of new energy consumption. In addition,
progress in hydrogen energy and energy storage technology will also become
an emerging driving force to help achieve low-carbon goals. The whole chain
of hydrogen energy “production, storage, and use” is also making steady
progress, and the prospects for the coordinated development of wind power,
photovoltaic, hydrogen energy and energy storage industries are becoming
clearer.

Over the past year, the Group has made unremitting efforts in the market
development of new energy projects on the basis of maintaining the sound
operation of wind farm business. In addition, it is also actively demonstrating
the feasibility of moderately expanding the operation scale of new energy
projects. In 2023, the Group will further promote the main business,
continuously improve the operating performance and quality of wind farms,
and further implement the approval and filing conditions for the development
of new energy projects. In addition, the Group will continue to explore the
feasibility of the integration of “Wind, Photovoltaic, Hydrogen, and Energy
Storage”.

Annual Report 2022 » China Energine International (Holdings) Limited
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HUMAN RESOURCES AND REMUNERATION
POLICY

As at 31 December 2022, the Group had 8 employees (2021: 10 employees)
in the Hong Kong head office and 29 employees (2021: 28 employees)
in the offices of the PRC. Remuneration of employee is determined
according to individual employee's performance and the prevailing trends in
different areas and reviewed on an annual basis. The Group also provides
Mandatory Provident Fund and medical insurance to its employees. In
addition, discretionary performance bonus is available at the discretion of the

Directors.

FINANCIAL REVIEW

Liquidity and Financial Resources

All the borrowings of the Group are denominated in Renminbi (“RMB") as
at 31 December 2022.The amount due to an intermediate holding company
as at 31 December 2022 and 3| December 2021 amounted to HK$I,317
million and HK$1,439 million respectively. The abovementioned borrowings
were determined at market interest rate. The Group has not issued any

financial instrument for hedging or other purpose.

Financial Ratio

As at 31 December 2022, the Group's debt to asset ratio was 3.95,
represented by the ratio of total liabilities to total assets (2021: 5.49).

Financial Position

The Group finances its working capital requirements through a combination
of internal resources generated from operations and borrowings. The Group
had cash and cash equivalents of HK$45 million as at 31 December 2022, an
increase of HK$14 million compared to HK$31 million as at 31 December
2021.

Distribution to Shareholders

There was no distribution to the Company's shareholders in the year 2022
(2021 nil).
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Pledge of Assets

As at 31 December 2022, no material assets have been pledged (2021: nil).

Exchange Exposures

Most of the Group's business transactions were conducted in Renminbi. The
Group expected that the exposure to exchange rates fluctuation was not

significant and therefore has not engaged in any hedging activities.

Significant investments

The Group held significant investment in Jiangsu Longyuan Wind Power Co,,
Ltd. (“Jiangsu Longyuan”) and Jilin Longyuan Wind Power Co., Ltd. (“Jilin
Longyuan"), which are classified as interests in associates. The Group's share
of carrying amount of interests of Jiangsu Longyuan and Jilin Longyuan were
approximately HK$111,299,000 and HK$80,205,000, respectively, as at 3|
December 2022.

The investments in Jiangsu Longyuan and Jilin Longyuan are for long term
purpose, the Group held both investment in Jiangsu Longyuan and Jilin
Longyuan since 2005 and will continue to purse long-term business and

profitability growth in the investments in Jiangsu Longyuan and Jilin Longyuan.

Further details of the interests in associates and the summarized financial
information are disclosed in note 22 to the consolidated financial statements.
Contingent Liabilities

Saved for the contingent liabilities as disclosed in note 37 to the consolidated
financial statements, the Group does not have any material contingent

liabilities as at 31 December 2022.
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EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Han Qingping, aged 59, master degree holder, was appointed as
an executive Director with effect from 7 November 2019. Mr. Han was
appointed as chief executive officer on 2 December 2019 and re-designated

as Chairman and authorized representative on |5 April 2021.

Mr. Han served as deputy general manager of Beijing Energine, vice chairman
and general manager of Ares. Co. and president of China Asia Pacific Mobile
Communications Satellite Co,, Ltd. from 2004 to 2016, as president of China
Changzheng Rocket Co,, Ltd. from May 2016 to September 2017 and as vice-
chairman of China Changzheng Rocket Co., Ltd. from September 2017 to
October 2019.

Mr. Li Lei, aged 50, master degree holder; was appointed as an executive
Director with effect from 18 March 2020. Mr. Li was appointed as vice-
chairman on 18 March 2020 and re-designated as chief executive officer on
I5 April 2021.

Mr. Li served at a good amount of departments of CALT, since 1996,
including vice-chief of the Industrial Development Department, vice-chief
of the Business and Investment Department, head of management office of
Human Resource Department and head of management office of Operation
and Investment Department of CALT. Mr. Li has been the director of
Astrotech since August 2018.

Mr. Xu Jun, aged 55, master degree holder;, qualified as a member of the
Chinese Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Mr. Xu was appointed as
an executive Director and financial controller with effect from | November
2014.

Since November 2005, he had successively been the Chief Accountant with
subsidiaries of CALT, namely, Long March Aerospace Control Engineering
Corporation, CALT Institute 18, and Aerospace Research Institute of

Materials & Processing Technology.
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Mr. Shen Jian, aged 60, a senior engineer, graduated from China Textile
University majoring in mechanical design. For the period from 1993 to 2011,
he has been an engineer of the technology department, deputy director and
director of the equipment factory of Beijing Long March Hitech Corporation,
general manager of Beijing Aerospace Sanjin Technology Development
Company, and deputy general manager and general manager of certain
subsidiaries of the Group. Mr. Shen has over |7 years of extensive experience
in the wind power equipment manufacturing industry. He was appointed
as an assistant to president of the Company in February 2011 and was

appointed as a vice president of the Company since 30 March 2017.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Lau Fai Lawrence, age 52, master degree holder, is currently a
practising certified public accountant in Hong Kong and a fellow member of
the Association of Chartered Certified Accountants in the United Kingdom.

Mr. Lau is currently the company secretary of BBMG Corporation
(stock code: 2009.HK) since August 2008, the company secretary of HM
International Holdings Limited (stock code: 8416.HK) since August 2020, an
independent non-executive director of Sinopharm Tech Holdings Limited
(stock code: 8156.HK) since January 2020, Artini Holdings Limited (stock
code: 789.HK) since April 2008, Titan Petrochemicals Group Limited (stock
code: 1192.HK) since March 2014 and Renco Holdings Group Limited
(formerly known as “HKBridge Financial Holdings Limited") (stock code:
2323.HK) since March 2016. Mr. Lau was an executive Director of Future
World Financial Holdings Limited (stock code: 572.HK) between January
2014 and July 2022, an independent non-executive director of Winto
Group (Holdings) Limited (stock code: 8238.HK) between April 2019
and November 2019, an independent non-executive director of Tenwow
International Holdings Limited, the share of which were formerly listed
as 1219.HK between November 2018 and November 2020, and a non-
executive director of Alltronics Holdings Limited (stock code: 833. HK)
between March 2017 and December 2018.
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Mr. Gordon Ng, aged 59, master degree holder, he was qualified as a
solicitor in England and Wales in 1993 and Hong Kong in 1994. He has been
the Head of Corporate Finance/Capital Market, Asia of an international law
firm since July 2013. Prior to that, he had been a partner of Sidley Austin
Brown & Wood, Hong Kong and CMS Cameron Mckenna, Hong Kong, Hogan
& Hartson, Hong Kong and O'Melveny & Myers, Hong Kong. He is currently
an independent non-executive director of Mainland Headwear Holdings Ltd.
(stock code: 1100) and ZTE Corporation (stock code: 763), the companies
listed on the Hong Kong Stock Exchange.

Mr. Li Dapeng, aged 67, PhD degree holder, processing extensive
experience relating to system development in capital market, Mr. Li had
been the Chief Architect with New York Mercantile Exchange during the
years 2001 to 2003; Chief Information Officer, and Chairman of Technology
Management Committee with Shanghai Futures Exchange during the
years from 2003 to 2010; CEO and founder of Shanghai Global Financial
Technology during the years 2010 to 2012; Senior Adviser to CEO with the
Hong Kong Exchanges and Clearing Ltd. during the period from March 2013
to May 2015. He has been the Chief Information Officer of Haier Financial
Group, offering the perspective on technology and risk management to the
group since June 2015. Mr. Li is currently an independent non-executive
director of LUZHENG FUTURES Company Limited (stock code: 1461).
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The Directors present their report and the audited consolidated financial

statements of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2022.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding and the activities
of its principal subsidiaries and associates are set out in notes 21 and 22

respectively, to the consolidated financial statements of the Group.

RESULTS AND DIVIDENDS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2022 are set out
in the Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive

Income on pages 77 to 78.

The Directors adopt a dividend policy on 24 December 2019. Detail terms

of the policy are set out in the Corporate Governance Report.

The Directors do not recommend the payment of final dividend for the year
ended 3| December 2022. No dividend has been declared by the Company
for the year ended 31 December 2022 (2021: nil).

BUSINESS REVIEW

Business performance, business review, financial review as well as prospects
and strategies of the Group are set out in the section “Management
Discussion and Analysis” in this annual report. Certain key financial indicators
are provided in the section “Group Financial Highlights” in this annual report.
Since the end of the financial year under review, save as disclosed in this
annual report, there are no significant events that have a material impact on

the Group.

Annual Report 2022 » China Energine International (Holdings) Limited

15



16

EREREE

REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

EEiRM
AENFEBRARR CE—F |
ME -BERRRE

AENAEENE BERSHE BHH
BRRRAEEESHBRRN I

R &

ERBREAZFBHN GG Y HREM
330

gﬁ‘ﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁ¢ﬁﬂtﬁﬁ

FEEARAREEANBRABHERS
B HERBRIARBER LHES-

BrBRE
ERNBEHE G RENELEE

BZAE ARRERESELADEERD
BRIEHIRRBERRBLOMK

Fi R hE s R

RIZEZZH  RAB U BN ER T
i%;ljo

FEMXBRER (EE) BRAE « 20228 K

CHARITABLE DONATION

There was no donation made by the Group during the year (2021: Nil).

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of movements in property, plant and equipment of the Group during
the year are set out in note |9 to the consolidated financial statements of

the Group.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the share capital of the Company are set out in note 33 to the

consolidated financial statements.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF LISTED
SECURITIES OF THE COMPANY

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries purchased, sold or

redeemed any of the Company's listed securities during the year.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Articles or the laws
of the Cayman Islands, which would oblige the Company to offer new shares

on a pro-rata basis to existing shareholders.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

During the year 2022, the Company has no share option scheme adopted in

place.



o] {5 53 iR (it 5

RIE_ZHF4+-A=+—H ' &x2 TR
BRSEELRENE(REZE) (—AK—
FFIFAH RIZERBE]) stERA#
DEEERS CEZ—F 1) o ARFA
HAORBKTREFRENRG EEREA
RERNEXHAE EAREER DK
KANRER KABEANRHEERBRE
FERERE BN ER -

EE

BE - _E+-RB=+—HI=EEK
HEAFRABIEZEEZNT

BITES

BETEE

TREE

B

LEREE
R-_E_=ZF_F—HEZF

THIELRE
(R ZEZ_F+HZ+HE)

BUERGTES
BIERE
REREE
FRBRE

EREREE
REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

Distributable reserves of the Company as at 31 December 2022, calculated
under the Companies Law, Cap. 22 (Law 3 of 1961, as consolidated and
revised), of the Cayman lIslands, amounted to nil (2021: nil). The share
premium account of the Company is available for distribution or paying
dividends to the Shareholders subject to the provisions of the Articles and
provided that immediately following the distribution or the payment of
dividends, the Company is able to pay its debts immediately as they fall due

in the ordinary course of business.

DIRECTORS

The Directors during the year ended 31 December 2022 and up to the date

of this annual report are as follows:

Executive Directors

Mr. Han Qingping
Mr. Li Lei
Mr. Xu Jun
Mr. Shen Jian
(appointed on | February 2023)
Mr.Wang Guanghui
(resigned on 26 October 2022)

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. Lau Fai Lawrence
Mr. Gordon Ng
Mr. Li Dapeng

Annual Report 2022 » China Energine International (Holdings) Limited
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Each of executive Directors has entered into a service contract with the
Company without a specific term. Each of independent non-executive

Directors was appointed or re-appointed with a fixed term of 3 years.

Pursuant to the article no. |16 of the Articles, at each annual general
meeting, one-third of the Directors shall retire from office by rotation and
a retiring Director shall retain office until the close of the meeting at which
he retires, and shall be eligible for re-election thereat. In this connection,
Mr. Xu Jun, Mr. Shen Jian and Mr. Li Dapeng shall retire from office at the
conclusion of the 2023 AGM and they, being eligible, will offer themselves for

re-election.

The Company has received, from each of the independent non-executive
Directors, an annual confirmation of her or his independence pursuant to
rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Company considers all independent non-
executive Directors have been independent from throughout the year ended
to 31 December 2022 and remain independent as of the date of this annual

report.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

Save as disclosed above, none of the Directors proposed for re-election
at the 2023 AGM has a service contract with the Company or any of its
subsidiaries, which is not determinable by the Company within one year

without payment of compensation, other than statutory compensation.
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DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS

The emoluments of the Directors are proposed by the Remuneration
Committee to the Board, having regard to the Company's operating results,
individual performance and comparable market statistics, subject to the final

decision at the discretion of the Board.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS,
ARRANGEMENTS AND CONTRACTS

No transactions, arrangements and contracts of significance to which the
Company, or any of its subsidiaries, its holding companies or its fellow
subsidiaries was party and in which a Director of the Company had a
material interest, either directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year

or at any time during the year

CONTROLLING SHAREHOLDERS’ INTEREST IN
CONTRACTS OF SIGNIFICANCE

Save as disclosed in the section “Connected Transactions” in this annual
report, no contract of significance had been entered into between the
Company or any of its subsidiaries, and any controlling shareholder (as

defined in the Listing Rules) of the Company or any of its subsidiaries.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISIONS

Under the Bye-laws, and subject to the applicable laws and regulations, the
directors and officers of the Group shall be indemnified out of the assets
and profits of the Company from or against all actions, costs, charges,
losses, damages and expenses which they or any of them may incur or
sustain in or about the execution of their duty in their offices provided that
such indemnity does not extend to any matter in respect of any fraud or

dishonesty.
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EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

No equity-linked agreements entered into by the Company subsisted at the

end of the year or at any time during the year.

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’
INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES,
UNDERLYING SHARES AND DEBENTURES

As at 31 December 2022, none of the Directors and chief executives
of the Company or their respective associates had any interest or short
positions in the shares, underlying shares and debentures of the Company
and its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the
SFO) which are required to be notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including
interests and short positions which they are taken or deemed to have under
such provisions of SFO), or to be recorded in the register required to be
maintained pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO, or otherwise to be notified
to the Company or the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code for

Securities Transaction by Directors of Listed Companies in the Listing Rules.

DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

At no time during the year was the Company, its subsidiaries or any of
its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) a
party to any arrangements to enable the Directors of the Company or their
associates (as defined in the Listing Rules) to acquire benefits by means of
acquisition of shares in, or debentures of, the Company or any other body

corporate.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETING
BUSINESS

As at the date of this annual report, none of the Directors or their respective
close associates had interests in businesses which compete or are likely to
compete either directly or indirectly with the businesses of the Group as are

required to be disclosed pursuant to the Listing Rules.
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ INTERESTS
AND SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES AND
UNDERLYING SHARES

As at 3| December 2022, so far as is known to the Directors, the persons/
entities who had an interest or short position in the shares and underlying
shares of the Company which would fall to be disclosed to the Company
and the Stock Exchange under provisions of Division 2 and 3 of Part XV of
the SFO, or, who were, directly or indirectly, interested in 10% or more of
the nominal value of any class of share capital carrying rights to vote in all
circumstances at general meetings of any other member of the Group and
the amount of each of such persons’ interest in such securities or in any

options in respect of such capital were as follows:

RRERSE DL
Approximately

21 813 Ledb g o g= ] Percentage of
Name Capacity Number of Shares shareholding
HfnAa BEREG B s (Wat2) 2,649,244,000 (L) 60.64%
CASC Interest of a controlled corporation

(Note 2)
K HT PR BBEREG B s (Wat2) 2,649,244,000 (L) 60.64%
CALT Interest of a controlled corporation

(Note 2)
Astrotech BmEEA Wit2) 2,649,244,000 (L) 60.64%
Astrotech Beneficial owner (Note 2)
Mgt Note:

LERERERHZRE -

2. ZERMANE 2 EHE A B)Astrotech
FR - ANERATPMENZENBAG %
RESRAERA PRERAERBEES
BB AstrotechFF52,649,244,0008% & 14 2 &
o

The letter “L" denotes the shareholder’s long position in the Shares.
2. These shares are held by Astrotech, a company wholly owned by CALT. CALT is

a wholly-owned subsidiary of CASC. By virtue of the SFO, CASC and CALT are
deemed to be interested in the 2,649,244,000 Shares held by Astrotech.
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Save as disclosed herein, according to the register of interests kept by the
Company under Section 336 of the SFO and so far as was known to the
Directors, there is no other person/entity who, as at 31 December 2022,
had any interest or short position in the shares and underlying shares of the
Company which would fall to be disclosed to the Company under provisions
of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO or who was, directly or indirectly,
interested in 10% or more of the nominal value of any class of share capital
carrying rights to vote in all circumstances at general meetings of any

member of the Group or in any options in respect of such capital.

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

During the year, the Group has entered into the following connected
transactions which are required to be disclosed in accordance with Chapter
[4A of the Listing Rules:

Connected Transactions

Loan from an intermediate holding company

As at 31 December 2022, there was amount due to CALT of
HK$1,317,108,000 (as at 31 December 2021: HK$1,439,008,000).

Since CALT is intermediate major shareholder of the Company, the amount
due to CALT were connected transactions yet they were exempted from
requirements of disclosure, reporting and shareholders' approval by virtue of
interests relating to the amount being of commercial terms or better and no

security made for the loans under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.
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SIGNIFICANT RELATED PARTY
TRANSACTIONS

The continuing connected transactions disclosed above also constitute
related party transactions under the Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards. Save as the connected transactions disclosed above, no other
related party transactions are connected transactions under Chapter [4A of

the Listing Rules.

A summary of significant related party transactions made during the year was

disclosed in note 38 to the consolidated financial statements of the Group.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

For the year ended 31 December 2022, turnover attributable to two
customers of the Group accounted for 63% and 37% of the Group's
turnover, respectively. None of the Directors, their associates or, to the best
knowledge of the Directors, any shareholder who owns more than 5% of the

Company's issued share capital had any interests in the above customer.
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PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company and to
the knowledge of the Directors, the Company has maintained the minimum
public float of 25% as required under the Listing Rules throughout the year
ended 31 December 2022 and up to the date of this annual report.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

The Group is committed to maintaining a high level of corporate governance
practices. A detailed Corporate Governance Report of the Company for the

year is set out on pages 26 to 46 of this annual report.

ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND
GOVERNANCE REPORT

A detailed Environmental, Social and Governance Report of the Company for

the vyear is set out on pages 47 to 71 of this report.

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

The Group does not have any material subsequent events after 3|

December 2022 and up to the date of this annual report.

ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

The 2023 AGM is currently planned to be held on Friday, 30 June 2023. A
notice convening the 2023 AGM and all other relevant documents will be

published and dispatched to the Shareholders in due course.
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AUDITOR

The consolidated financial statements of the Group for the Year have been
audited by RSM Hong Kong who will retire and, being eligible, offer itself for

re-appointment at the forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company.

On behalf of the Board

Han Qingping
Chairman and Executive Director

Hong Kong, 31 March 2023
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This report describes the Company's corporate governance practices
and explains the application of the principles in the CG Code set out in
Appendix 4 to the Listing Rules for the year ended 31 December 2022 (the
“Year") and includes any significant subsequent events for the period up to

the date of this report.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Company is committed to maintaining high standards of corporate
governance. The Company recognises that corporate governance practices
are fundamental to the smooth, effective and transparent operation of
a company and its ability to attract investment, protect the rights of

shareholders and enhance shareholder value.

The Company has applied the principles and complied with all code
provisions and, where appropriate, adopted the recommended best practices
set out in the CG Code throughout the Year.

DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted a code of conduct regarding directors’ securities
transactions on terms no less exacting than the required standard of dealings
set out in the Model Code. The Company had made specific enquiries of
each Director, all Directors have complied with such code of conduct and
the required standard of dealings regarding securities transactions throughout

the Year.

CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

The roles of the chairman and chief executive officer are separate and
exercised by different individuals in order to reinforce their respective
independence, accountability and responsibility, and to avoid power

concentrating in any one individual.
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The chairman of the Board is mainly responsible for ensuring that the
Board is functioning properly, with good corporate governance practices
and procedures; and appropriate steps are taken to provide effective
communication with shareholders and that their views are communicated to
the Board as a whole. The chief executive officer of the Group, supported
by the executive directors and senior management, is mainly responsible
for managing the Group's businesses, including the implementation of major

strategies and initiatives adopted by the Board.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

During the Year and up to the date of this report, the Board comprises:

Executive Directors

Mr. Han Qingping
Mr. Li Lei
Mr. Xu Jun
Mr. Shen Jian
(appointed on | February 2023)
Mr.Wang Guanghui
(resigned on 26 October 2022)

Independent Non-Executive Directors

Mr. Lau Fai Lawrence
Mr. Gordon Ng
Mr. Li Dapeng

Save as disclosed in this section, to the best knowledge of the Company,

there is no financial, business, family or other material/relevant relationship

among the members of the Board.
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Meetings of the Board (the “Board Meetings”) are held at least four times a
year at approximately quarterly intervals. Regular Board Meetings of the year
are scheduled in advance and at least 14 days' notice is given to Directors
so as to give them an opportunity to attend. All Directors are given an
opportunity to include matters in the agenda for the Board Meetings. The
Directors may attend a meeting in person or may participate by means of
a conference telephone or similar communication equipment by means of
which all persons participating in the meeting are capable of hearing each

other.

Apart from the regular Board Meetings, the chairman of the Board also
held a meeting with all independent non-executive Directors, without the

presence of the other executive Directors.

During the Year, 8 Board Meetings, | annual general meeting of the Company
(2022 AGM") were held, at which the attendance of each Director is set out

as follows:

(HE 847 FERY
Number of Meetings
(Attended/Held)

—¥-C
ESgES RRAFEXT
Board
Meetings 2022 AGM
BTES Executive Directors
BETLE Mr. Han Qingping 8/8 11
FREE Mr. Li Lei 8/8 11
Bl Mr. Xu Jun 8/8 1/
LREE (HiEt(1)) Mr. Shen Jian (Note (1)) REANA AEANA
ToeRERE (H522) Mr. Wang Guanghui (Note (2)) 8/8 1/
BiERGTES Independent Non-Executive Directors
AEKE Mr. Lau Fai Lawrence 8/8 11
REREE Mr. Gordon Ng 8/8 I/1
FRERE Mr. Li Dapeng 8/8 11

FEMXBRER (EE) BRAE « 20228 K
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Notes:

(

) appointed as an executive director on | February 2023

(2)  resigned as an executive director on 26 October 2022

The Board is responsible for determining those matters that are to be
retained for full Board including, but not limited to, overall strategy and
long-term objectives, new business activities, annual budgets, business
plans and financial statements, interim and final results announcements,
material acquisitions and disposals of assets, investments, capital projects
and commitments, annual internal control assessment, funding and risk

management policies as well as connected transactions.

The Board has delegated the day-to-day responsibility in respect of
management and administrative functions to management including, but not
limited to, implementing and achieving the strategies and objectives set by
the Board as well as overseeing the performance of different business units/
departments and monitoring and implementing proper risk management and

internal controls systems.

Corporate Governance Function

The Board is responsible for performing the corporate governance duties.
The terms of reference of Corporate Governance Functions was adopted by
the Board on 30 March 2012. The main corporate governance duties which

are being performed by the Board are as follows:

()  to develop and review the Company's policies and practices on

corporate governance;

(i) to review and monitor the training and continuous professional

development of Directors and senior management;

(i) to review and monitor the Company's policies and practices on

compliance with legal and regulatory requirements;

(iv) to develop, review and monitor the code of conduct and compliance

manual, if any, applicable to employees and Directors; and

(v)  to review the Company's compliance with the code and disclosure in

the Corporate Governance Report.
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Independent Non-Executive Directors

There are currently three independent non-executive Directors. Each of the
independent non-executive Director was appointed or re-appointed with a

fixed term of 3 years.

During the year ended 3| December 2022 and up to the date of this report,
the Board at all times met the requirements of the rules 3.10(1), 3.10(2)
and 3.10A of the Listing Rules in appointment of a sufficient number of
three independent non-executive Directors, at least one third of the Board,
one of whom has appropriate professional qualifications, accounting and
financial management expertise. All independent non-executive Directors
bring independent judgment on issues of strategy, policy, performance,
accountability, resources, key appointments and standards of conduct through
their participating in the Board Meetings and the meetings of the Board

Committees.

The Company has received from each of the independent non-executive
Directors their annual confirmation of independence and considered that
each of the independent non-executive Directors is independent upon taking
into factors for assessing independence as set out in rule 3.13 of the Listing

Rules.

Board Diversity Policy

The Board has adopted a board diversity policy (the “Board Diversity
Policy”). In determining the composition of the Board, the Company
considers whether a candidate will bring potential complementary benefits
to the Board and contribute to the improvement of the overall competence,

experience and expertise of the Board.

The Company may consider the diversity of the composition of the Board in
various aspects, including professional experience and qualifications, gender,
age, ethnicity, and cultural and educational background, as well as any other

factors that the Board from time to time deems relevant and appropriate.
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Selection of candidates will be based on a range of diversity perspectives,
including but not limited to experience and expertise, professional
experience and qualifications, gender, age, ethnicity and cultural and
educational background. The Board, through the Nomination Committee, will

review this policy as and when appropriate to ensure its effectiveness.

Continuous Professional Development of Directors

The Directors acknowledge the need to continue to develop and refresh
their knowledge and skills for making contributions to the Company.
The participation by individual Directors in the continuous professional
development program with appropriate emphasis on the roles, functions and

duties of a director of the Company in the Year is recorded as follows:

RESAENR SAMHE
kR2ERHE BRED
Reading Attending
monthly updates Seminars/

and reference development

materials programmes
BTES Executive Directors
BETRE Mr. Han Qingping v v
FEEE Mr.Li Lei v v
Eil e Mr. Xu Jun v v/
FEEL Mr. Wang Guanghui v
LEEE Mr. Shen Jian R FAN/A AEAN/A
BIERGTES Independent Non-executive Directors
f|EEE Mr. Lau Fai Lawrence v v
REREE Mr. Gordon Ng v v
FREBEE Mr. Li Dapeng v v/

EERERITHABRR
REEE BEHHEENRE:

Insurance for Directors and Officers

During the Year, no claim was made against the Directors.
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BOARD COMMITTEES

Remuneration Committee

As at the date of this report, the Remuneration Committee comprises

four members, one executive Director namely Mr. Han Qingping; and three

independent non-executive Directors, namely Mr. Gordon Ng, Mr. Lau Fai

Lawrence and Mr. Li Dapeng. The chairman of the Remuneration Committee
is Mr. Gordon Ng.

The Board adopted terms of reference of the Remuneration Committee

on 30 March 2012.The main duties of the Remuneration Committee are as

follows:

i)

(i

(i)

(iv)

(vii)

to recommend to the Board on the Company's policy and structure

for all Directors’ and senior management's remuneration;

to review and approve the management's remuneration proposals with

reference to the Board's corporate goals and objectives;

to recommend to the Board on the remuneration packages of

individual executive Directors and senior management;

to recommend to the Board on the remuneration of non-executive

Directors;

to review and approve compensation payable to executive Directors
and senior management for any loss or termination of office or

appointment;

to review and approve compensation arrangements relating to

dismissal or removal of Directors for misconduct; and

to ensure that no director or any of his associates is involved in

deciding his own remuneration.
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During the Year, one meeting of the Remuneration Committee were held,
at which the attendance record of each committee member is set out as
follows:

(HifE817) FER¥
Number of
Meetings
(Attended/Held)

Remuneration Committee Members
Mr. Gordon Ng (Chairman) 11
Mr. Han Qingping I/
Mr. Lau Fai Lawrence I/1
Mr. Li Dapeng I/

The work performed by the Remuneration Committee for the Year was
pursuant to the terms of reference of the Remuneration Committee and is

summarised below:

(i) reviewed and recommended to the Board on the existing
remuneration policy (structure and procedure) for all Directors’ and

senior management's remuneration;

(i) recommended to the Board on the amount of remuneration to be
paid to each executive Director and senior management member for

the Year with reference to corporate goals and objectives; and

(i) recommended to the Board on remuneration proposals for the new

appointed chairman of the Board.

The remuneration of the Directors and senior management of the Company

EABEEREREEASRFNGER for the year ended 31 December 2022 by band is set out below:
DZHEHHOT
A
Number of
individuals
T % 1,000,000 7T Nil to HK$1,000,000
1,000,001 7T £ 1,500,000 7T HK$1,000,001 to HK$ 1,500,000 0
8
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Nomination Committee

As at the date of this report, the Nomination Committee comprises five
members, two executive Directors namely Mr. Han Qingping and Mr
Li Lei; and three independent non-executive Directors, namely Mr Lau
Fai Lawrence, Mr. Gordon Ng and Mr Li Dapeng. The chairman of the
Nomination Committee is Mr. Han Qingping.

The Board adopted terms of reference of the Nomination Committee on 30
March 2012.The Board revised the terms of reference to be aligned with the
new code provision A.5.5 of the CG Code on 26 February 2019.The Board
also adopted a nomination policy providing the nomination procedures,
process and criteria which shall be adopted by the Nomination Committee

to select and recommend candidates for directorship on 24 December 2018.

The main duties of the Nomination Committee are as follows:

(i)  to review the structure, size and composition (including the skills,
knowledge and experience) of the Board at least annually and
make recommendations on any proposed change to the Board to

complement the Company’s corporate strategy;

(i) to identify individuals suitably qualified to become Board members and
make recommendations to the Board on the selection of individuals

nominated for directorship;

(iii)  to assess the independence of independent non-executive Directors;

(iv) to make recommendations to the Board on the appointment or re-
appointment of Directors and succession planning for Directors, in

particular the chairman and the chief executive of the Company;

(v)  to review the policy on Board diversity (as above) and the measurable
objectives that the Board has set for implementing the Board diversity
policy, and the progress on achieving the objectives; and make
disclosure of its review results in the corporate governance report

annually; and
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(vi) where the Board proposes a resolution to elect an individual as

an independent non-executive director at the general meeting, the

Nomination Committee should set out in the circular to shareholders

and/or explanatory statement accompanying the notice of the relevant

general meeting:

(a)  the process used for identifying the individual and why the Board

believes the individual should be elected and the reasons why it

considers the individual to be independent;

(b) if the proposed independent non-executive director will be

holding their seventh (or more) listed company directorship, why

the Board believes the individual would still be able to devote

sufficient time to the Board;

(c) the perspectives, skills and experience that the individual can

bring to the Board; and

(d)  how the individual contributes to diversity of the Board.

During the Year, two meetings of the Nomination Committee were held,

at which the attendance record of each committee member is set out as

follows:

Nomination Committee Members
Mr. Han Qingping (Chairman)

Mr. Li Lei

Mr. Lau Fai Lawrence

Mr. Gordon Ng

Mr. Li Dapeng

(HE 847 FERY
Number of

Meetings
(Attended/Held)

2/2
2/2
2/2
2/2
2/2
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The work performed by the Nomination Committee for the Year was
pursuant to the terms of reference of the Nomination Committee and is

summarised below:

(i)  reviewed the structure, size and composition (including the skills,
knowledge and experience) of the Board to implement the Company's

corporate strategy;

(i) assessed the independence of independent non-executive Directors

pursuant to the Listing Rules;

(i) recommended to the Board on the change of each of the chairman
of the Board, the Nomination Committee, and Development and

Investment Committee;

(iv) recommended to the Board on the re-appointment of one

independent non-executive Director; and

(v)  recommended to the Board on the re-appointment of the retiring
Directors who have offered themselves for re-election at the 2018
AGM.

Any Director appointed (i) to fill a casual vacancy shall hold office only until
the first general meeting of shareholders subsequent to his appointment
and be subject to re-election at such meeting; and (i) as an addition to
the existing Board shall hold office until the next following annual general
meeting and shall then be eligible for re-election at such meeting under the
Articles.

Audit Committee

As at the date of this report, the Audit Committee comprises three
members, namely Mr. Lau Fai Lawrence, Mr. Gordon Ng and Mr. Li Dapeng,
and all of the committee members are independent non-executive Directors.
The chairman of the Audit Committee is Mr. Lau Fai Lawrence, with
appropriate professional qualifications, accounting and financial management

expertise.
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The Board adopted and revised terms of reference of the Audit Committee
on 30 March 2012 and on 24 March 2015 respectively. The Board further
revised the terms of reference to be aligned with the revised code provision
C.3.2 of the CG Code on 26 February 2019. The main duties of the Audit

Committee are as follows:

(if)

(ii)

(iv)

(vii)

(viii)

to recommend to the Board on the appointment, re-appointment and
removal of the external auditor, and to approve the remuneration
and terms of engagement of the external auditor, and to answer any

questions of its resignation or dismissal;

to review and monitor the external auditor's independence and
objectivity and the effectiveness of the audit process in accordance

with applicable standards;

to monitor the integrity of the Company’s financial statements, annual
report and accounts and half-year report and to review any significant

financial reporting judgments contained therein;

to review the Company's financial controls, risk management and

internal control systems;

to discuss the risk management and internal control systems with
management to ensure that management has performed its duty to

have effective internal control systems;

to consider major investigation findings on risk management and
internal control matters as delegated by the Board or on its own

initiative and management's response to these findings;

to ensure co-ordination between the internal and external auditors
and to ensure that the internal audit function is adequately resourced,
has appropriate standing within the Company and to review and

monitor its effectiveness; and

to review the Group's financial accounting policies and practices.
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During the Year, two meetings of the Audit Committee were held, at which

the attendance record of each committee member is set out as follows:

(HFE2817) FHRY

Number of
Meetings
(Attended/Held)

Audit Committee Members

Mr. Lau Fai Lawrence (Chairman) 212
Mr. Gordon Ng 2/2
Mr. Li Dapeng 212

The work performed by the Audit Committee for the Year was pursuant to

the terms of reference of the Audit Committee and is summarised below:

(i)  reviewed and discussed with the external auditor of the Company,
before submission to the Board the Company's consolidated financial
statements in the annual report, interim report and significant financial
reporting judgments contained therein for monitoring the integrity of

the reports;

(i)  reviewed the reports from the internal audit department on
assessment of the effectiveness of risk management and the internal
control system of the Group covering material controls for financial,

operational, compliance and risk management; and

(i)  reviewed and made recommendation to the Board on re-appointment

of external auditor.

Development and Investment Committee

As at the date of this report, the Development and Investment Committee
comprises five members, namely Mr. Han Qingping, Mr. Li Lei, Mr. Xu Jun,
Mr. Shen Jian and Mr. Li Dapeng. The chairman of the Development and

Investment Committee is Mr. Han Qingping.
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The main duty of the Development and Investment Committee is to make
recommendations to the Board on the Group's development and investment
plan and strategies. No meeting of the Development and Investment
Committee was held during the Year. However, one meeting of the Board was
held with full Board members, for discussing and approving the business plan
and budget for the Year.

AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

The Company has engaged RSM Hong Kong as its external auditor subject to
re-appointment by the Shareholders at the 2023 AGM.

The aggregate remuneration in respect of services provided by RSM Hong

Kong for the Year paid or payable to them is set out as follows:

FET

HK$'000

BEIRTS Audit services 1,450
JERET RS Non-audit services 450
[,900

FARERKARER

AEEENSAT AR AMEERLEE
GE TP

%EZM%#%%E&E&W%

EREFTRDBSAEEAATEET
T TRt BLFEGRSHE
BRERZEME URBREREQRZES
VHEBRERETBERZRERRE - ZH
MEMAERGEUFRRZARSEH
RERENEEFCEZBIURHMES
o

THE MEMORANDUM AND ARTICLES OF
ASSOCIATION OF THE COMPANY

There were no changes in the Memorandum and Articles of Association of

the Company during the Year.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND AUDITOR’S
RESPONSIBILITY

All Directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing the consolidated
financial statements of the Company for the year ended 31 December
2022 and of ensuring that the preparation of the consolidated financial
statements of the Company is in accordance with the applicable standards
and requirements. The statement of the Auditor about their reporting
responsibilities on the consolidated financial statements of the Group is set
out in the Independent Auditor's Report on pages 72 to 76 of the Annual
Report.
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ACTIONS TAKEN BY THE COMPANY TO ADDRESS RELEVANT
DISCLAIMER OF OPINION

As disclosed in sections headed “Disclaimer of Opinion” and “Basis for
Disclaimer of Opinion” in the independent auditor's report contained on
pages /2 to 76 of the Annual Report, the auditor of the Company, RSM
Hong Kong (“Auditor”), had disclaimed their opinion on the consolidated
financial statements of the Group for the year ended 3| December 2022,
The Company has taken actions to address the relevant audit qualifications.
Actions taken by the Company to address relevant disclaimer of opinion in
the consolidated financial statements of the Group for the year ended 31

December 2022 are set out below:

Going Concern

The directors of the Company have given careful consideration to the
future liquidity and financial position of the Group and its available sources
of financing in assessing whether the Group will have sufficient financial
resources to continue as a going concern. Certain plans and measures have
been taken to mitigate the liquidity position and to improve the Group's

financial position which include, but are not limited to, the following:

(i)  On 20 May 2021, CALT issued the Company a letter undertaking
not to demand repayment from the Company for the amount due to
CALT and provide the necessary financial support to the Company
("2021 Undertaking Letter”). Such undertakings are effective for |8
months from the issue date of the letter. On 14 March 2022, CALT
extended the grace period by 24 months from the expiration date of
the 2021 Undertaking Letter to 20 November 2024.

(i)  On 16 September 2022, CALT provided the Company a letter of
intent confirming that CALT would agree to capitalise the amount due
to it from the Company of HK$1,317,108,000 (the “Debt-to-Equity
Swap”) if certain criteria are met. The criteria have not been formally

agreed between the parties but are expected to include the following:

(I) Beijing Energine liquidation procedures have been fully
completed and the amount to be paid from Beijing Energine to
CALT has been fixed.
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(2)  The trading of the Company's shares has been resumed.

(3)  Achievement by the Group of specified revenue, net profit and
share price targets.

(4)  Approval of the Debt-to-Equity Swap by China Aerospace
Science and Technology Corporation, the ultimate parent of the
Company, and the relevant authority in the PRC.

(i) On 22 December 2022, the Group successfully entered into a debt
expiation agreement with Beijing Energine, resulting in the discharge
of its trade payables due to Beijing Energine of HK$435,877,000.
The Group has ongoing communication with its other creditors, and
monitored closely any settlement requests of trade and other payables.
In the opinion of the directors of the Company, it is expected that
the Group could further negotiate with its creditors and agree on the

settlement arrangements where required.

The directors of the Company are of the opinion that, taking into account
the above-mentioned plans and measures, the Group will have sufficient
working capital to finance its operations and to meet its financial obligations
as they fall due within twelve months from the date of approval of the
consolidated financial statements. Accordingly, the directors of the Company
are satisfied that it is appropriate to prepare the consolidated financial

statements on a going concern basis.

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on a going
concern basis, the validity of which depends on the outcome of these
plans and measures, which are subject to multiple uncertainties, including
(i) successful completion of the proposed Debt-to-Equity Swap with CALT
in respect of the amount due to CALT of the HK$1,317,108,000; (ii)
sufficiency of financial support from CALT to enable the Group to continue
its operations; and (iii) successful agreement with the Group's creditors of
settlement arrangements where required.
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Should the Group fail to achieve the abovementioned plans and measures,
or should CALT no longer have the financial ability to provide finance to the
Group, it may not be able to continue to operate as a going concern, and
therefore it may be unable to realise its assets and discharge its liabilities
in the normal course of business. Adjustments would have to be made to
reclassify the Group's non-current assets and non-current liabilities as current
assets and current liabilities respectively, to write down the carrying amounts
of the Group's assets to their recoverable amounts and to provide for any
provision for any contractual commitments that have become onerous as at
the end of the reporting period. The effects of these adjustments have not
been reflected in the consolidated financial statements.

For the avoidance of doubt, in accordance with the applicable Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing, the auditor needs to obtain sufficient appropriate
audit evidence and to consider, based on the audit evidence to be obtained,
whether material uncertainty exists regarding the Group's ability to continue

as going concern.

As such, assuming the successful implementation of the abovementioned
plans and measure in time with sufficient and appropriate audit evidence
can be provided, the disclaimer of opinion is expected to be removed in
the consolidated financial statements of the Group for the year ending 31
December 2023.

The Audit Committee has reviewed the disclaimer of opinion relating to
going concern, the management views on going concern and the action plan

of the Group, and concurs with the Board's view.

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL
CONTROL

The Board has the overall responsibility for maintaining sound and effective
internal controls to safeguard the shareholders’ investment and the Group's
assets. The Group's risk management and internal control systems are
designed to provide reasonable assurance that material misstatements
or losses can be avoided, and to manage and minimise risks of failure in

operational systems.
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The Board, with the assistance of the Audit Committee, has reviewed
the effectiveness of risk management and internal control systems of the
Group. The internal audit team of the Company performs regular reviews
of all material controls, including risk management, financial, operational
and compliance controls of the Group and evaluates their adequacy and
effectiveness on a continuing basis. The annual audit plan is discussed and
agreed every year with the Audit Committee. A report of audit findings
is submitted to the members of the Audit Committee, discussed at the
meetings of the Audit Committee and then report to the Board. The
audit reports are then followed up by the internal audit team to ensure
recommended actions have been taken on the findings previously identified
such that they are properly resolved. Internal audits are designed to
provide the Board with reasonable assurance that sound and effective risk
management and internal control systems of the Group are implemented for

protecting the assets of the Group and identifying business risks.

The Board has overseen the effectiveness of the Group's risk management
and internal control systems covering risk management and all material
controls, including financial, operational and compliance for the year under
review and in view of the above, it opined that the Group's risk management
and internal control systems are effective, adequate and in compliance with
the code provisions on risk management and internal control of the CG
Code.

The Company has implemented its policy and procedures on inside
information, which set out the reporting procedures for the handling and

dissemination of inside information.

COMPANY SECRETARY

The Company Secretary shall provide assistance to the Board and ensure
efficient information circulation within the Board and, in compliance with the
policies and procedures of the Board, provide advice on governance matters
to the Board, facilitate induction of Directors and monitor their training and

continuous professional development.

The Company Secretary must take no less than |5 hours of relevant
professional training to update his skills and knowledge. Mr. Yu Ngai has
confirmed that he undertook over |5 hours of professional training during
the Year.
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DIVIDEND POLICY

During the Year, the Board adopted a dividend policy with an aim to provide
the Shareholders with stable and sustainable returns, pursuant to which the
Board will take the following factors in proposing any dividend distribution

and determining dividend payout:

(i)  the actual and expected performance and liquidity of the Company;

(i) the expected requirement for working capital and future investment of

the Group;

(i)  retained earnings and distributable reserves of the Company and its

subsidiaries;

(iv)  any restrictions on payment of dividends that may be imposed by the

Group's lenders; and

(v)  any other factors that the Board deem appropriate.

The Board shall review this policy against the financial performance and

market condition from time to time and to amend it as and when necessary.

The distribution of dividend by the Company is subject to applicable laws

and regulations including the laws of the Cayman Islands and the Articles.

COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS

The Board recognises the importance of maintaining clear, timely and
effective communication with the Shareholders and potential investors.
Information in relation to the Group is disseminated to the Shareholders in
a timely manner through a number of formal channels including quarterly,

interim and annual reports, announcements and circulars.
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The Group encourages its shareholders to attend annual general meeting
(“AGM") to ensure a high level of accountability and to be kept informed of
the Group's strategy and goals. The Chairman of the Board and the chairman
of each of the Board Committees, or in their absence, other members of
the respective committees, are available to answer any questions from the
shareholders. A separate resolution is proposed by the Board in respect
of each issue to be considered at the AGM, including the re-election of
Directors and if an independent non-executive director serves more than 9
years. An AGM circular will be distributed to all shareholders at least 20 clear
business days prior to the AGM (at least 10 clear business days in the case of
all other general meetings), setting out details of each proposing resolution,

poll voting procedures and other relevant information.

As a channel to further effective communication, the Group maintains a
website (http://www.energine.hk) at which the announcements, business
developments and operations, financial and corporate information of the
Group and some policies including the shareholders communications policy,
procedures for shareholders to propose a person for election as a Director,
whistleblowing policy and other information are posted under the section of

Investor Relations of the Company's website.

Shareholders’ Rights

Pursuant to Article 72, shareholders holding at the date of deposit of the
requisition not less than one-tenth of the paid up capital of the Company
carrying the right of voting at general meetings of the Company shall at
all times have the right, by written requisition (the “Written Requisition™),
specifying the proposed resolution (the “Proposed Resolution”) accompanied
by a statement in respect of the matter referred to in the Proposed
Resolution, to the Company's secretary at its Head Office, to request the
Board to include the Proposed Resolution in the agenda for the annual
general meeting or to require an extraordinary general meeting to be
convened by the Board for transaction of any business specified in the

Written Requisition.
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Shareholders’ Enquiries

Shareholders may at any time send their enquiries and concerns to the
Board in writing by post, by email or by fax through the Company Secretary

Department whose contact details are as follows:

China Energine International (Holdings) Limited
Office B, 8th Floor, Tower A, Billion Center

| Wang Kwong Road, Kowloon Bay, Hong Kong
Email: cs@energine.hk

Fax No.: +852 2531 0088
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ABOUT THIS REPORT

This report mainly sets out a summary of the strategies and the performance
of the Group for the period from | January 2022 to 3| December 2022 in
terms of environmental, social and governance (“ESG") aspects. The report
principally covers the business of manufacturing and distribution of wind
turbines and wind farm operations. This report was prepared in accordance
with the ESG Reporting Guide (the "ESG Guide") as set out in Appendix
27 of the Rules Governing The Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited, and it has complied with the “Comply or Explain”
provisions in the ESG Guide.

Comments and Feedback

We value your comments and feedback on this report, and your comments
will help us to improve the performance in the future. Do not hesitate to
give your comments, if any, by email (cs@energine.hk) or by post (Office B,
|8th Floor, Tower A, Billion Centre, | Wang Kwong Road, Kowloon Bay, Hong
Kong).

MATERIALITY ASSESSMENT

To determine key points and content of this report as well as review its
own ESG performance and strategies, the Group has conducted a materiality
assessment during the reporting period. Based on the ESG issues set out
in the ESG Guide, we have consolidated a list of issues for materiality
assessment. By conducting interviews with the senior management, as well
as small group discussions among employees, we have successfully collected
the stakeholders' issues of concern and performance rating of the ESG
work of the Group. Material issues were identified and prioritised based
on the comments from the management and the results of the employee

engagement surveys, and 14 issues were identified as issues of concern.
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EXBEER 1

Issues of major concern

BTEIIRZ &
Employee training and support

The following table summarizes the material issues most relevant to us (in
order of priority) and their respective key performance indicators. The top 5

issues in the table are classified as issues of major concern:

M@ EHIER

Key Performance Indicators

ZRKEN (BEB3) —MRiKE  HRENIEEL3.1832
Development and Training (aspect B3) general disclosure, KPI B3.1, B3.2

2 BERERRZZE
Occupational health and safety

RREZS (BEB) —RKNE
Health and safety (aspect B2) general disclosure

3 BIRFHH
Grievance mechanism for
employees

fBfE (BEBI) —MREKE

Employment (aspect BI) general disclosure

4 YRERE

Use of materials

BREA (BEA) —RINE BREWERALS

Use of resources (aspect A2) general disclosure, KPl A2.5

5 EMER/EK

Energy saving/low carbon

FEMXBRER (EE) BRAE « 20228 K

BREA (BEAY) —RKE BREWERAL AL BERK
RER (BEA3) —RIKE BREMERA

Use of resources (aspect A2) general disclosure, KPI A2.1,A2.3; the
environment and natural resources (aspect A3) general disclosure,
KPIA3.I
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LR 6 EHEMER/ANENTE  HRERERE (BESS) —RIKE BRENISESS.
Issues of concern EERR Supply chain management (aspect B5) general disclosure, KPI BS.|

Assessment on social
responsibility performance of
suppliers/contractors

7 BIEBMHENKRER  ER BER) —RKE BRENSSEL
Related statistics and policies on  Employment (aspect BI) general disclosure, KPI BI.|

staff
8 BYERE B (BEAI) —MRIRE  BREMIERAIZ AL AL
Waste treatment Emissions (aspect Al) general disclosure, KPI Al.3, Al 4, Al6
9 ERER B (BEAI) —MRIRE > BREMIERALINAIZNALS IRIG
Exhaust control RRABR (BEA3) —RiKE
Emissions (aspect Al) general disclosure, KPI Al.1,Al.2, AL5; the
environment and natural resources (aspect A3) general disclosure
10 SBDERRER % TR (BEB4) —MRikE
Regulations and standards of Labour standards (aspect B4) general disclosure
labour
1N KERERE BERER (BEAY) —RKE WREMIERA22 A2 A3
Management of water resources  Use of resources (aspect A2) general disclosure, KPI A2.2, A24, A3.1
12 RBHEEEY k&5 (BEBe) —MRIKE » BRBENIERE6.I
Prevention of corruption and Anti-corruption (aspect B6) general disclosure, KPI Bé.
bribery
13 BYER s (BEAI &R (BB ) - REER2 (BHB2) &% TR

Compliance with regulations (BmB4) R&ES (BmEBS) —MIKE
Emissions (aspect A1), Employment (aspect BI), Health and safety (aspect
B2), Labour standards (aspect B4), Anti-corruption (aspect Bé) general

disclosure
14 TAEMEE/ ABENRE  REREE (BEs) —RIRE BRENISEsS.
=R Supply chain management (aspect B5) general disclosure, KPI BS.|

Assessment on environmental
performance of suppliers/
contractors
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MANAGEMENT APPROACH

The Group recognises a sound corporate governance framework as the
foundation for a smooth, highly efficient and highly transparent operation for
which it is essential for the steady development of the Group. As such, we
value “the proposition of employees’ talents to achieve win-win situation for
all” in the management approach of the Group and apply this to our day-to-
day operation with an aim to “pursue excellence and lead the development

of new energy’.

Management of sustainable development

The framework for management of sustainable development of the Group
covers three major areas, namely quality, environment and occupational
health and safety. The management systems for each of the above areas have

been established in accordance with international and national standards.

We uphold the management system's principle of “planning-implementation—
checking-action” to formulate the approach for quality, environment and
occupational health and safety and set out mid-to-long term targets and
performance indices. We conduct internal inspection regularly with relevant
departments on quality, environment and occupational health and safety
pursuant to the management procedures, as well as assess the progress
made towards the targets. During the reporting period, the Group ran an
internal audit to continuously optimize our management systems, the audit
looked at the resources allocation to each department, responsibilities of
each department and their operational difficulties, quality control of products,
identification of environmental factors and their source of risks, as well as
inspection and measurement of equipment management, to ensure that the
approach and targets are applicable for Group's development and affirm
that the management systems are appropriate, sufficient and effective. In
the event of any non-compliance or potential substandard items identified,
measures for rectification, prevention or improvement will be followed
up at the management committee meeting, to determine the responsible
department and the period of time for rectification. The Group revised the
system documents, identified certain defects for improvement and alteration

therefrom as well as fully discussed the suitability of the documents.
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EXgEFYENFEEETEEREN The Board reviews the strategies and policies on ESG work at annual
B - HeREREMNRERERSR &F management committee meeting, supervises the implementation and
B iRst FEERMISR I BEF evaluates the KPIs. In addition, the Board is responsible for preparing and
EEEGRFINEHRERNRR - HERER publishing the ESG report of the Group.

WEe

FhEen Stakeholders Engagement

FEBRSEERBNENERR RBEUTZE The Group highly values the opinion from stakeholders, and therefore
BEBMEBSFANEFNDERITBEMKE  various channels and methods tabulated below are available for effectively
BHER BT RREBRDERNEN and constantly communicating with stakeholders. By understanding and
BEREFK BRAGECERRE BT responding to the opinion and requests from stakeholders in due course,
BREEHEET: the Group strives to improve its operational performance and upholds its

environmental and social responsibilities:

Hin& REANX
Stakeholder Way of Communication
REE,/ Investor/Most senior BRI AE General meeting
EeEERE management TEHME A BERFI Regular report, announcement, circular, annual
report
wE S Press release
NEEH Website of the Company
EENEER Management committee meeting
BT Staff member BITRRKE Staff meeting
8T Staff training
BIRENEZ Employee performance assessment
WEE T4 Internal publication for staff
BIEBH Cooperative partner T B Regular meeting
BR%E Contract and agreement
mENNE Quality analysis meeting
e TG E Supplier evaluation system
ey Customer E g Product supply
EIENE Contract and agreement
= RR Customer service
NCINE: Website of the Company
MEERAE Satisfaction survey
e Community NEBEH Website of the Company
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ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION

As a high-end clean energy developer in China, the Group bears the
responsibility of creating a green community while vigorously developing and
promoting energy saving and environmental protection. We strictly comply
to the Environmental Protection Law of the People's Republic of China, the
Atmospheric Pollution Prevention and Control Law of the People's Republic
of China, the Water Pollution Prevention and Control Law of the People’s
Republic of China, the Solid Waste Pollution Prevention and Control Law of
the People’s Republic of China, the Law of the People's Republic of China
on Prevention and Control of Pollution from Environmental Noise and
the laws and regulations on environmental protection promulgated by the
local governments, to ensure we fulfil compliance obligations in exhaust,
greenhouse gas, waste water emissions and to meet the local environmental

standards.

The impacts on the environment and natural resources are principally from
exhaust emissions, waste water, solid waste generated from our operation
activities as well as consumption of electricity, water and paper at our
premises. We have always integrated environmental protection concepts into
the Group's operation and management, strictly implemented control policies
and measures on water and energy saving and emission reduction as well as
monitored control measures and made timely adjustments thereto, so as to
scale down the impacts on the environment and nature resources. During the
reporting period, the Group was not aware of any material breach of laws

and regulations in relation to environment and natural resources.
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Environmental Management

We distribute the management manual of quality/environment/occupational
health and safety, which was prepared in reference to the revised National
Environmental Management System Standards, to all departments and
subsidiaries. The three key documents of the management system, namely
the “Control Procedure for Environmental Emergency Preparedness and
Response”, the “Control Procedure for Performance Supervision and
Measurement of Environment, Occupational Health and Safety” and the
“Control Procedure for Document Management”, set out the details of our
solid waste management, emergency handling, supervision and measurement
of our performance in environment as well as our management in record

keeping.

We implemented “the Control Procedure for Environmental Management”,
setting out the management responsibility and procedure on procurement,
sales activities, waste treatment, infrastructure and work environment at
offices, wind farms and subsidiary level. The Comprehensive Management
Department of the Group organized two environmental protection
inspections throughout the year, to ensure the fulfilment of the Company's
environmental approach and targets. The subsidiaries formulate
environmental targets based on their own operational conditions, and their

production process also need to strictly follow our procedures.

Emergency measures for environmental accidents

In case of any accident or emergency from operating activities, production,
and service, the Group would proceed with effective control and disposal,
so as to lower the degree of personal injury, financial loss, and environmental
influence. We developed corresponding emergency plans and organized
training and drills in respect of possible environmental accidents. In case of
any unanticipated accident, we were required to carry out emergency rescue

in a rapid, effective, orderly, and efficient manner.
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Environmental protection facilities

We place emphasis on the ecological environment in factories and their
surrounding area. The headquarters of the Group invested more than
RMB300,000 to replace the flooring, which completely solved the problem of
dirt and grime hidden in the carpet fitted in the office premises, and placed
green plants to purify the air in the office premises as well. We endeavour
to create a comfortable work environment for our staff by greening and
beautifying the area, and meet the local government requirements on

ecological greening.

CONFORMING DISCHARGE

The Group was committed to reducing environmental pollution in the
process of discharge, in consequence, the waste materials, exhaust gas,
wastewater and noise arising from production were controlled effectively.
During the reporting period, there was no event in breach of relevant laws
and regulations relating to air and greenhouse gas emissions, discharges into
water and land, and generation and disposal of hazardous and non-hazardous

waste.

Exhaust Gas Emissions

We have complied with the national Measures on Supervision of Exhaust
Pollution from Automobiles and the relevant laws and regulations
promulgated by the local governments. We perform inspection on vehicles
on a regular basis in accordance with our Vehicle Management Mechanism to

ensure conforming discharge.
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Source of emissions

During the reporting period, the emission of the Group's vehicle exhaust was

as follows:

HE

Quantity

T Kilogram 0.13
T Kilogram 8.18
T Kilogram 0.60

Greenhouse gas emissions

The carbon of the Group is principally the direct emission from vehicles'
engine and the indirect emission of electricity purchased. In 2022, the
greenhouse gas emissions generated by the Group amounted to |,168

tonnes of carbon dioxide equivalent (tCOze).

Hith &

Volume of emissions

SO R R AR I FE BB A B_REREE

B AR RS

Direct carbon emissions (Scope 1)  Consumption of diesel and gas as well as

(tCOze)

BHEHER (BE ) (1COe)

Indirect carbon emissions
(Scope 1) (tCOqe)

EENE

Electricity purchased

tCO2e 21

gasoline and diesel used for vehicles

tCO2e [167
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Waste Management

To comply with the relevant laws and regulations of the PRC, the Group has
implemented the internal system of “Solid Waste Management Measures” to
manage and supervise the process of solid waste disposal. The solid waste
produced from the production and operation of the Group is divided into
recyclable and non-recyclable as well as hazardous and non-hazardous. The
Group recycles the non-hazardous waste, such as waste paper, waste metal,
waste glass, waste plastic, waste equipment and parts and components, and
individual departments move the recyclable wastes to a designated separate
collection station for combined disposal by the units with corresponding
recycling qualifications. For the non-recyclable non-hazardous wastes, they are
mainly solid waste from cutting and trimming in the production process of
blade and household. In 2022, the Group did not have any blade production

task, as a result, there was no non-recyclable waste.

The hazardous wastes are mainly ink cartridge, engine oil, dry cell battery,
storage battery, waste cloth (which contains engine oil, isoamyl acetate
and ink), waste mercury-containing lamps, waste chemical containers and
laboratory wastes (such as cloth, gloves and filter materials). For disposal of
hazardous wastes, the headquarters of the Group and its subsidiaries place
garbage bins at various designated locations in plant or office or storage
areas to ensure the prevention of spread, loss and leakage of hazards. A
qualified company will be engaged for collective disposal upon accumulation
of certain amount of hazardous wastes. For recyclable hazardous wastes, such
as ink cartridge and lubricants, the Group has formed an agreement with
suppliers for recycling waste ink cartridge and lubricants. To prevent, control,
and dispose of secondary pollution generated from waste, the subsidiaries,
according to specific conditions, formulated the corresponding disposal plan

and supervised the process of packaging, loading and transfer of waste.
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Solid waste category

In 2022, the Group's disposal of principal wastes was as follows:

Volume

BEEEEYEE Disposal of hazardous waste I tonne -

B|EREEY)EE Disposal of non-hazardous waste I tonne |7

BEEREEYEIUN Recycling of non-hazardous waste I tonne -
BkER Woastewater Management
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BB Ko EREEEMARRR - 3
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Our wastewater discharge source is mainly office sewage in the headquarters
of our Company and its subsidiaries. The Group's headquarters discharged
its wastewater to the sewage pipeline of the park, where wastewater was
disposed and discharged. As the effluent after treatment has been gone
through nitrogen removal, dephosphorization and organic matter removal, it
meets the requirements specified in the Integrated Wastewater Discharge

Standard and can be discharged to municipal sewage discharge network.

In the meanwhile, our factory endeavours to seek opportunity for recycling
and reusing water resources. In summer, household sewage after treatment in
plant area flows into the clean water reservoir inside factory for irrigation of

greening plants.

Effective Use of Resources

The resources involved in the Company's operations and wind turbine
services include gasoline, electricity, and water. To reduce operational costs
and to demonstrate our determination in environmental protection, we are

committed to effectively use resources in our operation.
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Indicator Corresponding Measures
EIESEEYIS ANBRKETRE3% + REFERKONERREEIR STUFEBKES:
Water conservation Reduction of water Wiz EERFIAGHEKE
consumption per capita Calculating the annual volume of water consumption
by 3% by referencing annual water conservation indicator and

production process, and minimising water consumption per

capita to the level of the annual volume of water consumption
- HEASEEBHOAKNER

Assigning a person in charge of monitoring the implementation

of water conservation

AL BE TR B AE ANBIRBEETRE3% - LERBREEBIIRBAER ARKE
Reduction of energy Reduction of electricity Turning off all production equipment and tools when not in
consumption consumption per capita use
by 3% « THRBEERAZENREREER
Switching off equipment and tools at office before leaving
R ERHFE AR E T 5% - REFEARDOER FJUFERMEE UREES
Reduction of resource  Reduction of paper BEAEkE&BINRAMAE
consumption consumption per capita Calculating annual paper consumption by referencing annual
by 5% paper conservation indicator; and reasonably allocating paper

consumption quota to each employee

« EIIRRENEARAGR T RESTHORR
Affixing “Paper Conservation” sticker on printers and
photocopiers as a reminder

- FREMNRLBMLSALEER MAEBHXB—2
AR AT ED
Using both sides of A4 paper for non-confidential information,
and new A4 paper is only used for printing finalized draft of
document

- [EREBEERHXHS
Recycling waste document

« BIEXHERGIE B XHRED L #
Formulating a document circulation system for reducing the
number of photocopy of documents

+ REAS(EHESEFE) T

Implementing the internal “Vehicle Management System”

58 FEMKEEER (EE) BRAT ¢ 202245 5%
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Energy Consumption

Other measures for effective use of resources include promotion week for
energy conservation, low carbon day campaign, recycling grease can, affixing
“saving electricity and water” sticker at canteens, toilets and water rooms and

using treated effluent for irrigation.

In terms of energy consumption, the Group mainly consumes electric
energy, while fuel is mostly consumed by vehicles. In 2022, the Group
consumed electricity of 1,910,060 kilowatt-hours and gasoline of 8,757
liters, contributing to the total energy consumption equivalent to 1,994,927
kilowatt-hours. As for water use, the Group only utilizes tap water. In 2022,
the water consumption was 595 cubic meters. In terms of total gross floor
area, the intensity of total energy consumption and water consumption were
1,084 (kilowatt-hours/square meter) and 0.32 (cubic meter/square meter). In
terms of production, the Group's products need only few packaging materials
such as wooden case and paper case to protect the products from damage in

transit.

B Electricity
75H Gasoline
4B 3E B HFE Total energy consumption

E kilowatt-hours 1,910,060
“FH Liters 8,757
E kilowatt-hours 1,994,927

KEEHE

Water Resource Consumption

K Water Ixk Cubic meters 595
FEAREMEER

Consumption of Principal Packaging Materials

N8 Wooden case L7 Tonne -
4878 Paper case g Tonne 0.5
48141 58 B /B $E Total consumption of materials Mg Tonne 0.5

Annual Report 2022 » China Energine International (Holdings) Limited

59



60

IRIR 1B RERWRE

ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

BITHHRRE M= R RARRER
FR RO RHRER SRHEFAKET
IR ERRAPAER

WONEER BERERT : ABAEET
ETHEE - H-—EE-REBEFX GE
A NP ABESRAE - B AHA
BEEH REAHEWMMAEK TEWH
BRESDH ERNNERETRSE RHOA
ARG I REFE - R B ST
HMAERT S L BANTELRERSE-

FEHER

RPEEMBNRMEEREEER KE
BRREEME - BBRREEEMBHRM
£ R ER B ERE S RERME
D JAENBARBTRMHEREE
WE-RMHNERERNERSAREE
HESAER WEEBRTPIERMEE
AR RMBEERHERERUERZ
BIENRRAKRBAUE LETEEINEA
BRIRRARE -HREASRRERH
R EHENMRRIBEBRERETRS

HRKERRS T EEETHEES B
/B SNBSS R B RO R BEE
BHRTITNSHHERETENA LNHE
BT RA R R SHE TS W R LE
THEANA BHNTYERENMA  XET
TEYMBNA R8T RFNMR-

FEMXBRER (EE) BRAE « 20228 K

Wise use of electricity: Turn off lighting and air conditioning switches
in the workplace, minimise standby power consumption of computers and
make sure all electrical appliances are switched off after work by assigning

responsible persons to conduct daily inspection.

Reducing the use of official vehicles and encouraging low-carbon
lifestyle: The official vehicles are collectively scheduled and managed for
effective use of the transport capacity. Vehicles are deployed according to
demands. It is encouraged to share official vehicles for going out for business
purposes. The Company implements strict approval for the use of official
vehicles to promote conversation measures on official vehicles. Vehicle
inspection is carried out during routine vehicle maintenance for minimising
energy loss by manmade causes. Meanwhile, employees are encouraged to go

out to work by taking common social security cars on the market.

Use of raw materials

The raw materials required for our production mainly are energy, water
resources and packaging materials. To avoid excessive use of raw materials,
facilitate the formulation of procurement plan by the Group as well as the
cost control of products, we have implemented management measures on
procurement and use of raw materials in our subsidiaries. Production teams
are distributed a defined amount of raw materials. In the event of insufficient
raw materials for production, head of technology department is required to
fill in a form stating the reasons for insufficiency and the additional amount
required after verification. For those cases of excessive use of raw materials
caused by man-made factors, the persons involved may receive punishment

in the light of actual conditions.

In the wind turbine operation and maintenance services, employees are
encouraged to use their wisdom to implement inventions, creations, and
technical reforms, and make full use of the spare parts replaced in the
operation and maintenance for reuse, e.g. reuse of the replaced brake plier of
wind turbine on wind turbines after repair, which saves the cost of material

procurement and enables the reuse of waste, achieving good results.
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TAKING SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY

The Group conducts business in a manner of “engaging in new energy
cause, contributing to the society, and benefiting the mankind", building up
a good social corporate image over the past years. Our “people-oriented”
management together with the following measures have enhanced the
integrated strength of the Group while bringing satisfaction and nurturing

sense of belonging within our employees.

Employment and Labour Standards

The Group continuously attracts, searches, and nurtures talents in addition to
optimisation of its management system of human resources, so as to create a

harmonious, diversified and friendly work environment for our people.

Our employee breakdown in 2022 is as follows:

B L BIAH
Description Number of Employee
B M Male 27
2% Female 10
28 Full-time 37

F I Part-time _

35 2 LU 35 or below 13
365k E455% 36 to 45 5
465% E555 LU 46 to 55 below 16
56k A& UL E 56 or above 3
&7 Hong Kong 8
FRE A #th Mainland China 29
MET AR 37

Total number of
employee: 37
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The Group has strictly regulated the recruitment process and adopted a
fair and transparent recruitment policy to ensure fair treatment and respect
to all employees. During the reporting period, there was no litigations in
relation to discrimination in employment. The “Detailed Rules for Senior
Management" was issued by the Company to explicitly guarantee meritocracy
in recruitment. In the same year, the issuance of "Detailed Rules for
Management of Personnel for Reemployment” has secured the legal benefits
of those employees who have not been offered any positions or has not
agreed with any re-designation arrangement due to restructuring, adjustment
and elimination of certain types of positions. The Group strictly complied
with relevant requirements of the Employment Ordinance in Hong Kong,
the Labor Contract Law of the PRC and other laws and regulations relating
to work environment, forced and child labour. We provide our employees
with various labour protection, safe and hygienic workplace and reasonable
remuneration and benefits, including employees’ insurance and annual health
check.

Health and safety

The Group endeavours to provide its staff members a safe working
environment. We strictly follow the standards stipulated in “Production
Safety Law of the People's Republic of China"” and the "Occupational
Health and Safety Management System”, and implement the “Administrative
Regulations on the Work Safety”. At the beginning of 2022, a safety work
meeting was held, at which the chairman of the Group issued the Safety
Target Management Responsibility Order to all departments and subsidiaries;
the safety management committee convened 2 meetings to listen to the
report on the safety and epidemic prevention and control work of the
Company, to study and coordinate the problems encountered, and also to
make arrangements for new problems and new situations encountered in
the Company's operations. The Group insisted on holding regular quarterly
safety meetings, to summarize the quarterly work and make targeted work
deployments based on the characteristics of the safety situation in each

quarter.
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Following the principle of “safety management is essential for business
management”, the Group integrated safety work into production task
organization planning, carried out safety risk identification for technical
transformation tasks, and formulated special plans for high-risk projects
such as replacement of wind turbine generators and erection of new
wind turbines, to clarify the safety responsibilities of personnel at all levels.
Before the launch of the special plans, inspection was conducted according
to standards and tables, and review was performed for the preparation of
safety measures at the technical transformation site; during the process, the
progress of on-site work was summarized daily, in order to predict the safety
risks of the next day and coordinate various issues in a timely manner. Upon
completion of the project, efforts were exerted for summarization in a timely
manner and continuous improvement and optimization of the whole process

management content of the technical transformation project.

Through continuous safety training at all levels, we strive to make safety
requirements a conscious action of employees, build a safety culture and
improve the overall safety level of the Group. We have a full-time team
responsible for overall planning and monitoring. During the campaign, we
conducted high-altitude rescue training for wind farms, training on safety
inspections, review of employees’ wearing of protective equipment, use of
tools and machinery, etc., to ensure that employees followed safety rules and
procedures. If non-compliance is found, it will be immediately pointed out

and corrective measures will be taken to prevent accidents.

Annual Report 2022 » China Energine International (Holdings) Limited

63



64

IRIR 1B RERWRE

ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

HHRWARNNEHXEBEUAREEF
HEBEER 2ARREEEMHE K&
BE ZREZHRBOSE HS R BB
FHOME XREE—K, BBAERH
ERHN RARRERDHAANE ; FAM
E-BH TR THZEBN EFE
BREN® A8 E TETREEA BT
BER MNBARRBENERZEEHER
noRARHEENEE SNBRERRA
ARBHEX BB RZBHENREA
HEBIIF BNNXET N0 RENIREF
BifRe

Wi EEREIEINS ORE SBET
TEHIERER SERMAREIRMER
R OERERT TEM T REEEH
ANRIEEE ANRER TRREERNME
o REEIFOEE-

SR BSEN

FEBRNREIRHEEBNEERRY
a2 EHREMAEEBENAINEIN BEZ
2 HPIRBRERAEI RIEEINEXE
B AR BE - A TR EIMNEREEAN > BET
REEHEENHKE-

In the face of the sudden outbreak of COVID-19 and the local outbreak of
the epidemic in the country, the Group carried out a number of information
investigations and status investigations for all employees; and emergency
procurement of masks, disinfectants, thermometers and other epidemic
prevention and control materials to support the production line; the office
staff was minimized by arranging reasonable shifts on duty; the Group
used WeChat, email, and Dingding to issue multiple urgent notifications to
publicize the knowledge of epidemic prevention and control, and organized
employees to accept nucleic acid testing. Before resumption of work and
production, targeted guidance was provided on the epidemic prevention
and control and safety preparedness of subsidiaries. In accordance with the
requirements of the Company and local governments, all subsidiaries actively
carried out epidemic prevention and control and publicity on knowledge of
epidemic, which strongly supported the work goal of “0" infection.

In addition, the Group cares about the physical and mental health of its
staff members and encourages them to achieve a better work-life balance.
The Group provides its staff members with health check and mental health
assessment, and organises various activities to raise concerns about stress
management. Through these acts, we hope to secure physical and mental
health of its staff and effectively reduce sickness and absence rate of the
Group.

Development and Training

The Group endeavours to provide a career development platform to its staff
members, regularly organizing internal trainings on different topics, including
safety, departmental and standard system, expertise and skills enhancement.
We also provide external trainings to our staff for personal development.

SH8T

A L RilfEE 5 ALt F1915 AR
Percentage of Average Number

Staff Members of Training Hour

Category Description Trained Per Staff Member
14 BllGender 5 4 Male 100% 103
2 %Female 100% 103

&2 A BManagement 100% 143

2 85 A BSkillful personnel 100% 14

#4% \ BTechnial personnel 100% 19
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Supply chain management

Throughout the entire procurement process from design, R&D, production
and processing, installation and commissioning to maintenance and repair,
the "Measures for the Management of the Purchase of Supplies” are strictly
implemented to reduce purchase cost and carried out the standardisation
of the purchase model. We have followed the principles of “transparent, fair
and impartial” and “collective procurement, making comparison for the best”
throughout the procurement process. Our supplier selection criteria include

qualifications, price level, quality, delivery performance and after-sales services.

In respect of management of suppliers, the Group has implemented a
comprehensive “Measures for the Management of Suppliers Development”
and “Annual Appraisal Method of Suppliers” to include the requirements
for environmental protection, occupational safety and social responsibilities
in selecting suppliers. The suppliers involving key issues of environment or
occupational safety will be given a written notice in accordance with the
“Operation Control Procedures for Environmental Management” and the
“Operation Control Procedures for Occupational Health and Safety”. Any
failures to improve its behavior on environment or reduce environmental
risks, the Group will require the supplier(s) to rectify or cease cooperation
with them. In assessing our suppliers, our team will conduct a detailed on-
site inspection on production, equipment and facilities and production
sites and issue an assessment report on suppliers within one week after
the completion of the assessment. For the same component or the same
service, we have more than three qualified suppliers, thus effectively reducing
procurement costs and avoiding the risks arising from using exclusive supplier.
The annual appraisal is conducted in strict accordance with “Annual Appraisal

Method of Suppliers” on an ongoing basis.
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ANTI-CORRUPTION

We have zero tolerance on bribery and corruption and place high emphasis
on ethical conduct. We endeavour to build a corruption-free working
environment by strictly following the Prevention of Bribery Ordinance
of Hong Kong, the Criminal Law of the People's Republic of China and
the Anti-Money Laundering Law of the People's Republic of China. Each
employee is required to uphold his/her own responsibility and act in an
honest and pragmatic manner, and is prohibited to get involved into any
criminal activities, such as bribery and corruption, blackmail, fraud and money

laundering.

The Group launched regular self-inspections on anti-corruption. In particular,
we inspected office space, official vehicles, business reception, funds
management, employee selection and appointment, allowances and subsidies,
etc. and no corruption, bribe-taking, and other acts in breach of the rules and

laws were identified.

In the event of any bribery, corruption, blackmail and money laundering
detected, we will take necessary legal actions to protect the interest of
the Group. Meanwhile, the Group has adopted a whistleblowing policy to
which employees can report, in confidence, any suspected misconduct in the
Company to the Audit Committee. The committee will then establish a case
for internal inspection and seeking legal advice. In 2022, no corruption lawsuit

occurred in the Company.

COMMUNITY INVESTMENT

We have actively organized and participated into community service activities
for fulfilling our corporate social responsibilities and developing a harmonious

society.
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BEATHIR REPORTING GUIDE CONTENT INDEX

A IRIE

A. Environmental

—RHBERARBBER

General Disclosures and KPls

L

Description

EmAI HEw
Aspect Al Emissions
—RRIKE BRBERACRERBEHN Bk S AERESEZEYNELSH ! P52-55
General Disclosure Information on:

@ BR; R

b) BITHETABEATENEREZRKRONER-

(@)  the policies; and

(b)  compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a significant impact on the

issuer relating to air and greenhouse gas emissions, discharges into water and land,
and generation of hazardous and non-hazardous waste.

R ENIEIRALI BE AR R AR BB R o PS5
KPIATI The types of emissions and respective emissions data.
RRENIERAL2 BRERBAHINE CUESE) k WER) BE MNMUSESBE( BERMHE) P55
KPI A1.2 Greenhouse gas emissions in total (in tonnes) and, where appropriate, intensity (e.g. per

unit of production volume, per facility).
RRENIERAIS FFEEREREEYEE QUEHE k WER) BE MNMUSESE(  BERM P57
KPIAL3 g) e

Total hazardous waste produced (in tonnes) and, where appropriate, intensity (e.g. per unit

of production volume, per facility).
MRBEMIERAI4 FELESERYEE CUESE) kK WER ZE WUSEBEM - BERM P57
KPI Al 4 8) e

Total non-hazardous waste produced (in tonnes) and, where appropriate, intensity (e.g. per

unit of production volume, per facility).
RREMIEIRALS WA BN ENERRPTEMR - P54
KPI'AT.5 Description of measures to mitigate emissions and results achieved.
MBENISEAILS  HRREEERESERNNT L REELEROBERAERE P56

KPIAl.6

Description of how hazardous and non-hazardous wastes are handled, reduction initiatives
and results achieved.
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EmA2
Aspect A2

—RwE

General Disclosure
RASRAEIRIEAL|
KPI'A2.1

RSB IE1RA22
KPI A2.2
PR SRR IS 1RAL3
KPI A2.3
FR SR AR NS 1RAL 4
KPI A24

PR SRR IS IRALS
KPI A2.5

BEA3
Aspect A3

—fiRIKE

General Disclosure

PR SR RIS RAS.
KPIA3.I

—RHERARBBER

General Disclosures and KPIs

BREA

Description

BEER
Use of Resources

BRERER (BIEER  KREMEMR) HEE-

Policies on the efficient use of resources, including energy, water and other raw materials.
RENESNERR/AERERME RIh) EEE UTETREFE RS P59
EUNEESE M S8ERMAH)

Direct and/or indirect energy consumption by type (e.g. electricity, gas or oil) in total (kWh

P57-60

in '000s) and intensity (e.g. per unit of production volume, per facility).

BEKBREE WMNEEEEN BERMHE) ° P59
Water consumption in total and intensity (e.g. per unit of production volume, per facility).
Wi sERER N st B RPIGAR P58

Description of energy use efficiency initiatives and results achieved.

I SREGEA AR LRI B AR URBFABKN @B RAEMER -

Description of whether there is any issue in sourcing water that is fit for purpose, water

P57-58

efficiency initiatives and results achieved.

HMmPTABEMBNAE (UME) k WBER) SBLEEEIES- P59
Total packaging material used for finished products (in tonnes) and, if applicable, with
reference to per unit produced.

RARXAAR

The Environment and Natural Resources

REZETAHRERAABERERERTENER P52-60
Policies on minimising the issuer’s significant impact on the environment and natural

resources.

BAEB LN RBERARE RN EAT ERERNEEBRAZ ENTH - P52-60

Description of the significant impacts of activities on the environment and natural
resources and the actions taken to manage them.
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—RHERMRBBIER

General Disclosures and KPls

e

Description

BALE

B. Social
EBEBI
Aspect Bl
— RS

General Disclosure

PR SRR IS 138
KPIBI.I

[EiEB2
Aspect B2
—RRIKE

General Disclosure

1 (%

Employment

BRHM KRR BERE TERE-RE FERE S REGUKRE

(UESTEYSE RN

Information on:

@ BR, K

b) BITHETABEARENERZRRRANER -

(@)  the policies; and

(b)  compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a significant impact on the
issuer relating to compensation and dismissal, recruitment and promotion, working
hours, rest periods, equal opportunity, diversity, anti-discrimination, and other
benefits and welfare.

2R BEEE  FRENKMES NHEEEH -

Total workforce by gender, employment type, age group and geographical region.

RRERR

Health and Safety

BRRURE2IFRERGEREEEBELLEN

Information on:

@ BR;K

b) BIHETABEARENERZRRRANER -

(@)  the policies; and

(b)  compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a significant impact on the
issuer relating to providing a safe working environment and protecting employees

from occupational hazards.

P61-62

Pél

P62-64
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EmB3
Aspect B3

—RIKE

General Disclosure

2 5 48 RU3E 2R3
KPI B3.I
R S 482 R3E1ZR3.2
KPI B3.2

[EiEB4
Aspect B4
—BHE

General Disclosure

BmBs

Aspect BS

— RS
General Disclosure
R SR 4B A5 12BS. |
KPI B5. |

—RIRERMRANIER
General Disclosures and KPlIs
REA
Description
53R R 3g e
Development and Training
BRRTEERET TR E NN E R AEBIBR - #llIEHIEE - P64

Policies on improving employees’ knowledge and skills for discharging duties at work.

Description of training activities.

BHREEENIDNZIEER DL P64
The percentage of employees trained by gender and employee category.

withREEERNE D BRHEETMRINN TR P64
The average training hours completed per employee by gender and employee category.

HSIER

Labour Standards

BRAIEET RH% T P
Information on:

() K K

b) BIFHETABERFENHRBEIRKRRONER -

(@)  the policies; and

(b)  compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a significant impact on the

issuer relating to preventing child and forced labour.

s EE

Supply Chain Management

EEMEENRERTERAKRER- P65
Policies on managing environmental and social risks of the supply chain.
HABARERHERNES AERTAREFNHRERHE URBEBEANHR P65
TREER %

Description of practices relating to engaging suppliers, number of suppliers where the

practices are being implemented, how they are implemented and monitored.
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—REERMRENIER
General Disclosures and KPls

SREA

Description
[EmEB6 R&E
Aspect B6é Anti-corruption
— R E BRARG L BRRE ~ B8R~ IRFF RO AR ERA P66
General Disclosure Information on:

@ HBE;&

b) BITHETABEAZENEREZRRRONER -

(@)  the policies; and

(b)  compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a significant impact on the
issuer relating to bribery, extortion, fraud and money laundering.

R RNIEER6.| WA E R RRER URERRNTRERSE- P66
KPI Bé6. | Description of preventive measures and whistle-blowing procedures, how they are

implemented and monitored.

[EmB7 HERS

Aspect B7 Community Investment

—RRIKE BRUME 2 AKBEREEMEMEFTENRAEAET LT EBHEN TR P66
General Disclosure Ho

Policies on community engagement to understand the needs of the communities where
the issuer operates and to ensure its activities take into consideration the communities'

interests.
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TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF
CHINA ENERGINE INTERNATIONAL (HOLDINGS) LIMITED

(Incorporate in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

DISCLAIMER OF OPINION

We were engaged to audit the consolidated financial statements of
China Energine International (Holdings) Limited (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the “Group”) set out on pages 77
to 192, which comprise the consolidated statement of financial position as
at 31 December 2022, and the consolidated statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income, consolidated statement of changes in equity
and consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes
to the consolidated financial statements, including a summary of significant

accounting policies.

We do not express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements of
the Group. Because of the significance of the matters described in the Basis
for Disclaimer of Opinion section of our report, we have not been able to
obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence to provide a basis for an audit
opinion on these consolidated financial statements. In all other respects,
in our opinion the consolidated financial statements have been properly
prepared in compliance with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong

Companies Ordinance.
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BASIS FOR DISCLAIMER OF OPINION

As described in note 2 to the consolidated financial statements, as of 3|
December 2022, the Group had net current liabilities and net liabilities of
approximately HK$1,282,444,000 and approximately HK$1,029,494,000,
respectively. The Group's amount due to China Academy of Launch Vehicle
Technology (“CALT") amounted to approximately HK$I1,317,108,000 as
at 31 December 2022, which is repayable on demand; while its cash and
cash equivalents amounted to approximately HK$44,998,000 only as at 3|
December 2022. These conditions indicate that a material uncertainty exists
that may cast significant doubt on the Group's ability to continue as a going

concern.

The directors of the Company have undertaken a number of plans and
measures to improve the Group's liquidity and financial position, as set out
in note 2 to the consolidated financial statements. The consolidated financial
statements have been prepared on a going concern basis, the validity of
which depends on the outcome of these plans and measures, which are
subject to multiple uncertainties, including (i) successful completion of the
proposed Debt-to-Equity Swap with CALT in respect of the amount due
to CALT of the HK$1,317,108,000; (i) sufficiency of financial support from
CALT to enable the Group to continue its operations; and (iii) successful
agreement with the Group's creditors of settlement arrangements where

required.
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BASIS FOR DISCLAIMER OF OPINION (Continved)

Should the Group fail to achieve the abovementioned plans and measures,
or should CALT no longer have the financial ability to provide finance to the
Group, it may not be able to continue to operate as a going concern, and
therefore it may be unable to realise its assets and discharge its liabilities
in the normal course of business. Adjustments would have to be made to
reclassify the Group's non-current assets and non-current liabilities as current
assets and current liabilities respectively, to write down the carrying amounts
of the Group's assets to their recoverable amounts and to provide for any
provision for any contractual commitments that have become onerous as at
the end of the reporting period. The effects of these adjustments have not

been reflected in the consolidated financial statements.

Since the execution of the above plans and measures is in progress and
their successful outcome is subject to significant uncertainties and in view
of the significance of the extent of the uncertainties relating to the ongoing
availability of finance to the Group, we disclaim our opinion in respect of
the consolidated financial statements of the Group for the year ended 31
December 2022.

EMPHASIS OF MATTER

We draw attention to note 37 to the consolidated financial statements,
which describes that the Group received the judgements of first instance
made by a court of the People's Republic of China regarding the breach of
the loan contracts by a former investee company indirectly held by a former
associate of the Group, determining that the Company shall be jointly and
severally liable of repayment of the loans under the loan contracts. The
Group has engaged a professional legal counsel to assist in responding to
the appeal to the judgements. The directors have assessed the claim and
believe that the claim of joint and several liabilities against the Company is
unlikely to be valid and are satisfied with adequacy and appropriateness of
the disclosure made in the consolidated financial statements. Our opinion is

not modified in respect of this matter.
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RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS AND THE
AUDIT COMMITTEE FORTHE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors are responsible for the preparation of the consolidated
financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance with Hong
Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants (the “HKICPA") and the disclosure requirements
of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control as the
directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated
financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to

fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are
responsible for assessing the Group's ability to continue as a going concern,
disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going
concern basis of accounting unless the directors either intend to liquidate the

Group or to cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Audit Committee assists the directors in discharging their responsibilities

for overseeing the Group's financial reporting process.
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

Our responsibility is to conduct an audit of the Group's consolidated financial
statements in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on Auditing issued by
the HKICPA and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion solely
to you, as a body, and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility
towards or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this
report. However, because of the matters described in the Basis for Disclaimer
of Opinion section of our report, we were not able to obtain sufficient
appropriate audit evidence to provide a basis for an audit opinion on these

consolidated financial statements.

We are independent of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA's Code
of Ethics for Professional Accountants (the “Code™), and we have fulfilled our

other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent auditor’s

report is Liu Eugene.

RSM Hong Kong
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong

31 March 2023



SeAmkEMEERnR
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

BHE—E-—F+HA=+—HIFEE
For the year ended 3| December 2022

HyaE 2022 2021
Note FEr FAET
HK$’000 HK$ 000
Kz Revenue 7 41,218 9,100
Wy 75 B A Cost of revenue (32,273) (1,080)
EF Gross profit 8,945 8,020
HthA Other income 8 2,132 620
BREHA R Gain on debt restructuring 434,463 —
Hiu s & B5 18 Other gains and losses 10 185,193 320,615
FBERENERE Financial guarantee contract liabilities - (399,032)
THEHR Administrative expenses (25,025) (11,402)
HEER Selling expenses (2,275) =
RIS A& Finance costs 12 (49) (116)
iR =UNCIE S Share of results of associates 5,216 10,268
PRI alEF (§548) Profit/(loss) before tax 608,600 (71,027)
FriSiRm Income tax expense I3 (581) (3,113)
FEEET (5R) Profit/(loss) for the year 14 608,019 (74,140)
Hth2@EUIA, (A%): Other comprehensive income/
(expense):
RrEEHFEE Item that will not be reclassified to
BmZEE profit or loss
WE2IEBEELZ Exchange differences arising on
bER =R translation to presentation currency 127,740 (54,404)
TEEHM2ERA Other comprehensive income/
(AX%) (expense) for the year 127,740 (54,404)
TEEREWA, (BA%) Total comprehensive income/
4agE (expense) for the year 735,759 (128,544)
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SaifmRkEM2EEnE
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

BE_E__F+_FA=+—HIFE
For the year ended 3| December 2022

S 2022 2021
Note F#r FAET
HK$’°000 HK$ 000
T ALEESERETF Profit/(loss) for the year
(§548) : attributable to:
ZN/NSIEZE DN Owners of the Company 458,373 (76,499)
FEPERIME R Non-controlling interests 149,646 2,359
608,019 (74,140)
UTALTEESEERE Total comprehensive incomel
KA () 8% : (expense) for the year
attributable to:
EREHEBA Owners of the Company 583,779 (125918)
JEEHIM Non-controlling interests 151,980 (2,626)
735,759 (128,544)
sREHN  (§58) Earnings/(loss) per share 18
2 (BL) Basic (HK cents) 10.49 (1.75)
58 (BL) Diluted (HK cents) FiBA NIA REA NA
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SEMBINAR
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

= 5 — /5] — - — ]

At 3] December 2022

B =E 2022 2021
Note FAET FET
HK$’000 HK$ 000
HE ASSETS
JERENEE Non-current assets
Y ER Y Property, plant and equipment 19 45,610 65,459
FRHEEE Right-of-use assets 20 22,962 27874
REENT 2 Em Interests in associates 22 191,504 212,094
JERENE ELR(E Total non-current assets 260,076 305,427
RBHEE Current assets
3 Inventories 23 2,208 2533
85 kEMBEW Trade and other receivables, deposits
e MFELR and prepayments 24 34,974 48,793
EHNEE Contract assets 25 - -
FEU B AT Amounts due from associates 26 6,895 4,485
FE U BN HAFR 18 Current tax receivable - 574
RTEaRIES Bank balances and cash 27 44,998 31,257
RBEEAE Total current assets 89,075 87,642
aff LIABILITIES
RENE(E Current liabilities
B 5 R EMEMR Trade and other payables 28 54,025 706,076
P — R R EEER A Amount due to an intermediate
holding company 29 1,317,108 1,439,008
FE(S BN EATR 1E Current tax payable 130 2,228
HEER Lease liabilities 30 256 1,497
mEBEAEE Total current liabilities 1,371,519 2,148,809
mEAEPE Net current liabilities (1,282,444) (2,061,167)
HERERRBAR Total assets less current liabilities (1,022,368) (1,755,740)
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HEMBINRR
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

R-ZE-_—F+-H=+—H
At 3] December 2022

Y =E 2022 2021
Note FAET FET
HK$’000 HK$'000
EnE &G Non-current liabilities
HEEE Lease liabilities 30 - 256
RIEEE Warranty provision 31 843 =
ELEMARE Deferred tax liabilities 32 6,283 7,897
JERE B RAE Total non-current liabilities 7,126 8,153
BfFEE NET LIABILITIES (1,029,494) (1,763,893)
Em EQUITY
g9 Capital and reserves
fg 7 Share capital 33 436,900 436,900
(G Reserves (1,530,351) (2,114,130)
RABHEB NELEA Deficiency attributable to owners
of the Company (1,093,451) (1,677,230)
JEERIM R Non-controlling interests 63,957 (86,663)
SR TOTAL DEFICIENCY (1,029,494) (1,763,893)

KEEGgR _T=F=-B=+—H8#t Approved by the Board of Directors on 3| March 2023 and are signed on its
O MHEUTEEAREE ! behalf by:

nET g
Han Qingping Xu Jun
HITEF HITEFE
Executive Director Executive Director
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GeEREnR
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

BHE—E-—F+HA=+—HIFEE
For the year ended 3| December 2022

BARERNES
Attributable to owners of the Company
JEEmIER
ke BRER  BUERE  ERERE  BMHR  RdSEE Non-
Share Share Special  Exchange Other Accumulated g controlling a5
capital premium reserve reserve reserves losses Sub-total interests Total
TA7 T T T T TA7 T TA7 T
HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000
W233) WaEsem) W5 wE5e)0)
(note 33)  (note 33(b)(1)) (note 35(b) (i) (note 35(b) (i)
RZBZ-F-F—B  Atljanvary 202l 436900 2732397 86971 7,062 3 (4814645 (1551312) (170,696) (1,722,008
REE (58) /7 (Loss)/profit for the year - - - - - (76:499) (76499) 2359 (74140)
nESAEREE Y Exchange differences arising on
ERER translation to presentation
currency = = = (49419 = = (49419) (4985) (54404)
rEELERRAR Total comprehensive expense
for the year - - - (49419 - (76499) (125918) (2626) (128,544)
1AM (H:3() Business combination (note 36(c)) = = = - - - - 82378 82378
—EREARZ Capital contribution from non-
FEHItRETE controlling interest of a
subsidiary = = = = = = = 4281 4281
REB_-F At 31 December 2021 and
+ZB=t-Bk | January 2022
“222f-B-H 436,900 2,732,397 86,971 (42,357) 3 (4891144)  (1,677,230) (86,663) (1,763,893
REERR Profit for the year - - - - - 458373 458,373 149,646 608,019
nESIEREE, Exchange differences arising on
ERER translation to presentation
currency - - - 125,406 - - 125,406 2,334 127,740
rEEZANALE Total comprehensive income
for the year - - - 125,406 - 458,373 583,179 151,980 135,759
A-EHEATZ Dividend to non-controling
el dns) interest of a subsidiary
ZRE - - - - - - - (1,360) (1,360)
At 3 At 31 December 2022
+ZA=t-H 436,900 2,732,397 86,971 83,049 3 (443771)  (1,093,451) 63,957 (1,029,494)
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SaBERER
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

BE_E__F+_FA=+—HIFE
For the year ended 3| December 2022

Byt 2022 2021
Note F#E7T FET
HK$°000 HK$ 000
GETHFRERERE CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING
ACTIVITIES
BrIgATEF (B518) Profit/(loss) before tax 608,600 (71,027)
AT B IBELAE Adjustments for:
FEWA Interest income (87) (14)
lP=Nz:5-2 Interest expense 49 I16
i3 = UNSIE S Share of results of associates (5,216) (10,268)
Y ERN Y g P Depreciation of property, plant and
equipment 16,489 296
FRESEZITE Depreciation of right-of-use assets 2,641 =
ZBEWBWRE Gain on bargain purchase 36(c) - (20,494)
MEASBHGE ARZ Gain on deconsolidation of subsidiaries

Wz 36(b) (185,547) (295,308)
HREHE—E#KZEATZ  Gan on deemed disposal of an associate

Wz 36(c) - (8.953)
BHEHLA T Gain on debt restructuring (434,463) -
HENE -BERREZ Net loss on disposal of property, plant and

[ =pes equipment 45 _
—BRREARREZ Loss on claim from a former subsidiary

iR - 4,149
BHRERENERE Financial guarantee contract liabilities - 399,032

EEBSBEK ST, Operating profit/(loss) before working capital
(&548) changes 2,511 (2,471)
B 5 REMEW - #E Decrease in trade and other receivables,
DU Fa A wR deposits and prepayments 8,798 584
FZE5RD Decrease in inventories 115 -
B REMEMZIEM,  Increase/(decrease) in trade and other
(R payables 6,356 (1.421)
RIEREIG AN Increase in warranty provision 873 =
fREEY/ (FTH) 23%  Cash generated from/(used in) operations 18,653 (3,308)
BIFTEIR Income taxes paid (2,112) -
fETEEIES/ (FTA) 2 Net cash generated from/(used in) operating

BEPE activities 16,541 (3,308)
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SaRERER

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

BE_E__F+_A=+—HIFE
For the year ended 3| December 2022

B 5T 2022 2021
Note FAET FET
HK$°000 HK$'000
BREEBFFRERE CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING
ACTIVITIES
WER B A ] 2 g B Receipt of dividend income from associates 4,485 372
EWFE Interest received 87 14
HEME BB KREE Proceeds from disposal of property, plant and
PRGN equipment 24 -
BEME BEREE Purchase of property, plant and equipment (1,750) (3)
KB A B BUS SRS ARR Deconsolidation of subsidiaries 36(b) 3) 99)
EBaH Business combination 36(c) - 12,189
RERHMELEZIREFE  Net cash generated from investing activities 2,843 15,822
MEEERFERERE CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING
ACTIVITIES
BEAFE Interest paid (49) (116)
BEHAEERE Repayment of lease liabilities (1,497) (1,430)
m—ENEA AT Z Dividend paid to non-controlling interest of a
FEFMEE I ZRE  subsidiary (1,360) -
REEBFTAZIREFE  Net cash used in financing activities (2,906) (1,546)
RERFEEEMILMFE NET INCREASE IN CASH AND CASH
EQUIVALENTS 16,478 10,968
SNEEREE L T E Effect of foreign exchange rate changes (2,737) 333
R—B—HNRER CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT
REEEN | JANUARY 31,257 19,956
B+=-BA=+—HHWHREKR CASHAND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT
Re%E 31 DECEMBER 44,998 31,257
BERRESRENA ANALYSIS OF CASH AND CASH
EQUIVALENTS
RITHRAF KRS Bank balances and cash 44,998 31,257
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e MBmRRME
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BE_E__F+_FA=+—HIFE
For the year ended 3| December 2022

—HREH

TEMABRER (5E) ERAF
(&R ERENBRE REE
RETAER) ARFHEHSEMA
U ZBRAT e 2B 5 M 5 6
UhEBEXMBRENFRZAT
B -ARBARNMNEBHERZM
BRAE (THA2Fr)) ERLEHe

KABAREERAR TEHRBA
ARBEAD T BERIENEEH
TR MIEE2 1 K222 0

ARRAEERR HEBER
NB) AAstrotech Group Limited
(T Astrotech |) » Astrotechzs S 32 [ 4
BRESHMMIIZAE HFEEAA
F160.64%2 11 o AstrotechF R EE A R
HME (MREL) BB EEREES N
Al (DA EifR)) 2 8% A o
FEMABEERER A (TR
) BRERERAERRAELNE]
Z RN T o PHAE R K TR
RARBIRR L

FEMXBRER (EE) BRAE « 2022F K

GENERAL INFORMATION

China Energine International (Holdings) Limited (the “Company”,
together with its subsidiaries and associates, the “Group”) was
incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability. The addresses
of the registered office and principal place of business of the Company
are disclosed in the corporate information to the annual report. The
Company's shares are listed on the Main Board of The Stock Exchange

of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange").

The Company is an investment holding company. The principal activities
of its major subsidiaries and associates are set out in notes 21 and 22,

respectively, to the consolidated financial statements.

In the opinion of the directors of the Company, its immediate holding
company is Astrotech Group Limited (“Astrotech”), a company
incorporated in the British Virgin Islands which holds 60.64% interest
in the Company. Astrotech is wholly owned by China Academy of
Launch Vehicle Technology (“CALT"), a state-owned enterprise in the
People's Republic of China (the “PRC"). China Aerospace Science and
Technology Corporation (“CASC") is the ultimate holding company
of the Company via the immediate shareholding of CALT. Both CASC
and CALT are companies established in the PRC.



SR aMBER M

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SNER

RN BREDRES B H
Al (TEBGHEAR) B2
BEAE BN BREED (EEHHB
REED) B BBMBREEA
BEEBHBREED (EEHBH
£RA)) ; BHTHEDN (BT

A s KRB -ZERAMBRE
TETHRFES LHRA (TEHR
Al)) 2 BRFEERXRE BN EHER
(B6NE) ZHWERTE - AEBEHK
MZTESHBREBEN T

ERAEHMASEEHETRAER
ER BB ERENT TR FHEMR
W] RIESIE B B R G E o
B & 348 1 A R R #7) 2k B8 A 52 55 o
EMEENEIAEHBREHNE
OEMNRZEGEEVBERRRME
AIRBESSAREAEEERES
PR o

BE_Z-__F+-A=+—H'%K
EERSRBAaBFIERAGEESD
7l %5 1,282,444,0007 7t K 1,029,494,000
BT R_BE__+_-_HF=+—
B B XA FRIFRIER 317,108,000
BT BRREARERREE ME
AZEF+ZA=+—HNORE
KI5 & EBYE 4449980008 7T ©

BHE—E-—F+HA=+—HIFEE
For the year ended 3| December 2022

BASIS OF PREPARATION

These consolidated financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with all applicable Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards ("HKFRSs") issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants (the “HKICPA"). HKFRSs comprise Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRS"); Hong Kong Accounting
Standards (“HKAS"); and Interpretations. These consolidated financial
statements also comply with the applicable disclosure provisions of
the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange
(the “Listing Rules”) and with the disclosure requirements of the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance (Cap. 622). Significant accounting policies
adopted by the Group are disclosed below.

The HKICPA has issued certain new and revised HKFRSs that are first
effective or available for early adoption for the current accounting
period of the Group. Note 3 provides information on any changes
in accounting policies resulting from initial application of these
developments to the extent that they are relevant to the Group
for the current and prior accounting periods reflected in these

consolidated financial statements.

As of 31 December 2022, the Group had net current liabilities and
net liabilities of HK$1,282,444,000 and HK$1,029,494,000, respectively.
The amount due to CALT amounted to HK$1,317,108,000 as at 3|
December 2022, which is repayable on demand; while its cash and
cash equivalents amounted to HK$44,998,000 only as at 31 December
2022.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BE_E__F+_FA=+—HIFE
For the year ended 3| December 2022

2.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION (Continved)

In view of the above circumstances, the directors of the Company have

given careful consideration to the future liquidity and financial position

of the Group and its available sources of financing in assessing whether

the Group will have sufficient financial resources to continue as a going

concern. Certain plans and measures have been taken to mitigate the

liquidity position and to improve the Group's financial position which

include, but are not limited to, the following:

(i)

The Group has been actively negotiating with CALT to obtain
sufficient financial support from CALT to enable the Group to
continue its operations and for not demanding the Company
to fulfill its counter guarantee and guarantee obligations in
respect of the amount due to CALT by the Company as at
31 December 2022 of HK$1,317,108,000, arising from certain
defaulted counter-guaranteed and guaranteed loans borrowed
by Beijing Energine Industry Co., Ltd. (“Beijing Energine”), a
former subsidiary of the Company, including interest payable
from CALT and a fellow subsidiary of the Company, which
is repayable on demand. On 2| May 2021, CALT issued the
Company a letter undertaking not to demand repayment from
the Company for the aforesaid obligations and to provide all
necessary financial support to the Company. Such undertakings
are effective for 18 months from the issue date of the letter
On 14 March 2022, CALT issued the Company another letter
to grant extension of the undertakings for a further 24 months
ending on 20 November 2024.



SR aMBER M

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2. REER =

(i)

(iif)

RZE__FAB+H W
FiRAALABDEHERES B
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BHE—E-—F+HA=+—HIFEE
For the year ended 3| December 2022

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION (Continved)

(if)

(iii)

On 16 September 2022, CALT provided the Company a letter
of intent confirming that CALT would agree to capitalise the
amount due to it from the Company of HK$1,317,108,000 (the
“Debt-to-Equity Swap") if certain criteria are met. The criteria
have not been formally agreed between the parties but are

expected to include the following:

(I  Beijing Energine liquidation procedures have been fully
completed and the amount to be paid from Beijing

Energine to CALT has been fixed.

(2)  The trading of the Company's shares has been resumed.

(3)  Achievement by the Group of specified revenue, net profit

and share price targets.

(4)  Approval of the Debt-to-Equity Swap by CASC and the
relevant authority in the PRC.

On 22 December 2022, the Group successfully entered into a
debt expiation agreement with Beijing Energine as detailed in
note 9, resulting in the discharge of its trade payables due to
Beijing Energine of HK$435,877,000. The Group has ongoing
communication with its other creditors, and monitored closely
any settlement requests of trade and other payables. In the
opinion of the directors of the Company, it is expected that the
Group could further negotiate with its creditors and agree on

the settlement arrangements where required.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BE_E__F+_FA=+—HIFE
For the year ended 3| December 2022

2.
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FEMXBRER (EE) BRAE « 2022F K

BASIS OF PREPARATION (Continved)

The directors of the Company are of the opinion that, taking into
account the above-mentioned plans and measures, the Group will
have sufficient working capital to finance its operations and to meet
its financial obligations as they fall due within twelve months from the
date of approval of the consolidated financial statements. Accordingly,
the directors of the Company are satisfied that it is appropriate to

prepare the consolidated financial statements on a going concern basis.

The Group's ability to continue as a going concern depends on its
ability to generate positive cashflows from operations and on the
continued financial support of CALT and completion of the Debt-to-
Equity Swap with CALT and successful agreement with the Group's

creditors of settlement arrangements where required.

Accordingly, a material uncertainty exists that may cast significant
doubt on the Group's ability to continue as a going concern and
therefore the Group may be unable to realise its assets and discharge
its liabilities in the normal course of business. Should the Group fail
to achieve the above mentioned plans and measures, or should CALT
no longer have the financial ability to provide finance to the Group,
it may not be able to continue to operate as a going concern, and
adjustments would have to be made to reclassify the Group's non-
current assets and non-current liabilities as current assets and current
liabilities respectively, to write down the carrying amounts of the
Group'’s assets to their recoverable amounts and to provide for any
provision for any contractual commitments that have become onerous
as at the end of the reporting period. The effects of these adjustments

have not been reflected in the consolidated financial statements.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

3. RAMIIREEITIEEME
S ER
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3.

BHE—E-—F+HA=+—HIFEE
For the year ended 3| December 2022

ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS

(a) Application of new and revised HKFRSs

The Group has applied the following amendments to HKFRSs
issued by the HKICPA for the first time, which are mandatorily
effective for the annual period beginning on or after |
January 2022 for the preparation of the consolidated financial

statements:

Amendments to HKAS 16 Property, Plant and Equipment:

Proceeds before Intended Use

Amendments to HKAS 37 Onerous Contracts — Cost of
Fulfilling a Contract

Amendments to HKFRS 3 Reference to the Conceptual

Framework

Amendment to HKFRS 16 Covid-19-Related Rent
Concessions beyond
30 June 2021

Annual Improvements Project Annual Improvements to HKFRS
Standards 2018-2020

Amendments to Accounting Merger Accounting for Common

Guideline 5 Control Combinations
None of these developments have had a material effect on how

the Group's results and financial position for the current on

prior periods have been prepared or presented.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BE_E__F+_FA=+—HIFE
For the year ended 3| December 2022

3. FRAMTREEIERAME 3.
REERN 2

(b) BEMEEKERZHTRE
EIEBHB RS LR

AEETEREREABREMBE
R_E- " F—-A—BRAKEN
M EF B HAREXBIFE]ER]
HAMEST AR R - ZF M %
A ZRMEBST R R B EEUT

ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (Continued)

(b) New and revised HKFRSs in issue but not yet effective

The Group has not applied any new standard, amendments to
standards and interpretation that have been issued but are not
yet effective for the financial year beginning | January 2022.
The new standard, amendments to standards and interpretation

include the following which may be relevant to the Group.

HREAAEERRE -
RUTF RN
2i&m%Em
EEMEN
Effective for
accounting
periods beginning
on or after
BEGHERE % (B5]D) —BR2ERRBIIER —E-mFE—-F—H
Amendments to HKAS | — Classification of Liabilities as Current or Non-current | January 2024
BB ERE IR (BITF) —-WEZONIFRBER —E_MmE—-F—H
Amendments to HKAS | — Non-current Liabilities with Covenants | January 2024
BEGFHERE I (B5]X) hEBYHFREZEBHRABLR —E-=F—F—H

—BFERRZKE

Amendments to HKAS | and HKFRS Practice Statement 2 | January 2023

— Disclosure of Accounting Policies

BB ERER (BT X) — S5t B ZER —E_=fF—F—H
Amendments to HKAS 8 — Definition of Accounting Estimates | January 2023

BEGHERE 25 (Bi]h) —~HE-RFGELNEEREREBNELERE —T-=F—-HF—H
Amendments to HKAS |2 — Deferred Tax Related to Assets and | January 2023

Liabilities Arising from a Single Transaction
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RAMI REETERME
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BIIERMBREEN (2
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3.

BE—E - H=1+—HIEE

For the year ended 3| December 2022

ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING

STANDARDS (Continued)

(b) New and revised HKFRSs in issue but not yet effective

(Continued)

Amendments to HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28 — Sale or Contribution of Assets

between an Investor and its Associate or Joint Venture

BEMBREENF 65 (BIF) —ERBETHNHEERR
Amendments to HKFRS |6 — Lease Liability in a Sales and Leaseback

BERREN CT ) MHERRNET - ERAHESREREER

MEMERNDE

Hong Kong Interpretation 5 (2020) Presentation of Financial Statements

— Classification by the Borrower of a Term Loan that Contains

a Repayment on Demand Clause

AEBREREFEZFEIER
e RN BERERRE AR
EENFE-BEBRCEREY
i R ST RATAT &
AIRKAIERGEMBRERE
BEVN-Z L

RIATF RN
2iER%EN
BHMEN
Effective for
accounting
periods beginning

on or after

BFERGHMAGERE

To be determined
by the HKICPA

“E_ME-F—H
| January 2024

e — - mHE—HF—H

| January 2024

The Group is in the process of making an assessment of what

the impact of these amendments and new standards is expected

to be in the period of initial application. So far it has concluded

that the adoption of them is unlikely to have a significant impact

on the consolidated financial statements.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

These consolidated financial statements have been prepared under
the historical cost convention, unless mentioned otherwise in the

accounting policies below.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with HKFRS
requires the use of certain critical accounting estimates. It also requires
management to exercise its judgement in the process of applying the
Group's accounting policies. The areas involving a higher degree of
judgement or complexity, or areas where assumptions and estimates
are significant to the consolidated financial statements are disclosed in

note 5.

The significant accounting policies applied in the preparation of these

consolidated financial statements are set out below.

(a) Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the financial
statements of the Company and its subsidiaries made up to 3|
December. Subsidiaries are entities over which the Group has
control. The Group controls an entity when it is exposed, or has
rights, to variable returns from its involvement with the entity
and has the ability to affect those returns through its power
over the entity. The Group has power over an entity when the
Group has existing rights that give it the current ability to direct
the relevant activities, i.e. activities that significantly affect the

Group's returns.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(2)

Consolidation (Continued)

When assessing control, the Group considers its potential voting
rights as well as potential voting rights held by other parties. A
potential voting right is considered only if the holder has the

practical ability to exercise that right.

Subsidiaries are consolidated from the date on which control is
transferred to the Group. They are deconsolidated from the date

the control ceases.

The gain or loss on the disposal of a subsidiary that results in
a loss of control represents the difference between (i) the fair
value of the consideration of the sale plus the fair value of any
interest retained in that subsidiary and (i) the Company's share
of the net assets of that subsidiary plus any remaining goodwill
relating to that subsidiary. All amounts previously recognised
in other comprehensive income in relation to that subsidiary
are accounted for as if the Group had directly disposed of the
related assets or liabilities of the subsidiary (i.e. reclassified to
profit or loss or transferred to another category of equity as

specified/permitted by applicable HKFRSs).

Intragroup transactions, balances and unrealised profits are
eliminated. Unrealised losses are also eliminated unless the
transaction provides evidence of an impairment of the asset
transferred. Accounting policies of subsidiaries have been
changed where necessary to ensure consistency with the

policies adopted by the Group.
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4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(2)

Consolidation (Continued)

Non-controlling interests represent the equity in subsidiaries
not attributable, directly or indirectly, to the Company. Non-
controlling interests are presented in the consolidated statement
of financial position and consolidated statement of changes in
equity within equity. Non-controlling interests are presented in
the consolidated statement of profit or loss and consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income as
an allocation of profit or loss and total comprehensive income
for the year between the non-controlling shareholders and

owners of the Company.

Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive
income are attributed to the owners of the Company and to
the non-controlling shareholders even if this results in the non-

controlling interests having a deficit balance.

Changes in the Company's ownership interest in a subsidiary
that do not result in a loss of control are accounted for as
equity transactions (i.e. transactions with owners in their
capacity as owners). The carrying amounts of the controlling and
non-controlling interests are adjusted to reflect the changes in
their relative interests in the subsidiary. Any difference between
the amount by which the non-controlling interests are adjusted
and the fair value of the consideration paid or received is
recognised directly in equity and attributed to the owners of the

Company.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(b)

(o)

Separate financial statements

In the Company's statement of financial position, an investment
in a subsidiary is stated at cost less impairment loss, unless the
investment is classified as held for sale (or included in a disposal
group that is classified as held for sale). Cost includes direct
attributable costs of investments. The results of subsidiaries are
accounted for by the Company on the basis of dividend received

or receivable.

Impairment testing of the investments in subsidiaries is required
upon receiving a dividend from these investments if the dividend
exceeds the total comprehensive income of the subsidiary in
the period the dividend is declared or if the carrying amount of
the investment in the separate financial statements exceeds the
carrying amount in the consolidated financial statements of the

investee’s net assets including goodwill.

Business combination and goodwill

The acquisition method is used to account for the acquisition
of a subsidiary in a business combination. The consideration
transferred in a business combination is measured at the
acquisition-date fair value of the assets given, equity instruments
issued, liabilities incurred and any contingent consideration.
Acquisition-related costs are recognised as expenses in the
periods in which the costs are incurred and the services are
received. Identifiable assets and liabilities of the subsidiary in
the acquisition are, with limited exceptions, measured at their

acquisition-date fair values.
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4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(<)

Business combination and goodwill (Continued)

The excess of the sum of the consideration transferred over the
Group's share of the net fair value of the subsidiary’s identifiable
assets and liabilities is recorded as goodwill. Any excess of the
Group's share of the net fair value of the identifiable assets
and liabilities over the sum of the consideration transferred is
recognised in consolidated profit or loss as a gain on bargain

purchase which is attributed to the Group.

In a business combination achieved in stages, the previously held
equity interest in the subsidiary is remeasured at its acquisition-
date fair value and the resulting gain or loss is recognised in
consolidated profit or loss. The fair value is added to the sum
of the consideration transferred in a business combination to

calculate the goodwill.

The non-controlling interests in the subsidiary are initially
measured at the non-controlling shareholders’ proportionate
share of the net fair value of the subsidiary’s identifiable assets

and liabilities at the acquisition date.



SR aMBER M

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

4. FEEHBE =

(<)

EBoHREE @

RTHERE > BETHERAR
REtREBR 2 slREE
mE XFEHMESZBEES
PEERARZR TR HIHE
WEZEREEELEN (MRE
EXBA) AR ELEUA
Bl BB DA 2 & BB
AR SEERERRANEERR
MMEEHEZERER-BHE
SEETRERS  HEFEH
3R B 15 O R B BB R 1B T BE
HRFETERERS -SA®
EHREETBUZKREER
HA WO S EFLEE ATl e
BEAERBEALATEALE
MAEME 2B 2% R ER
BHESAM BERAEHE
Bo

FEEERBE—HBRELQTE
BEEZBHEZ G BRFL
KR e

BHE—E-—F+HA=+—HIFEE
For the year ended 3| December 2022

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(c) Business combination and goodwill (Continued)

After initial recognition, goodwill is measured at cost less
accumulated impairment losses. For the purpose of impairment
testing, goodwill acquired in a business combination is allocated
to each of the cash-generating units (“CGUs") or groups of
CGUs that is expected to benefit from the synergies of the
combination. Each unit or group of units to which the goodwill is
allocated represents the lowest level within the Group at which
the goodwill is monitored for internal management purposes.
Goodwill impairment reviews are undertaken annually, or more
frequently if events or changes in circumstances indicate a
potential impairment. The carrying value of the CGU containing
the goodwill is compared to its recoverable amount, which is the
higher of value in use and the fair value less costs of disposal.
Any impairment is recognised immediately as an expense and is

not subsequently reversed.

The Group's accounting policy for goodwill arising on the

acquisition of an associate is described below.
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4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(d)

Associates

Associates are entities over which the Group has significant
influence. Significant influence is the power to participate in the
financial and operating policy decisions of an entity but is not
control or joint control over those policies. The existence and
effect of potential voting rights that are currently exercisable
or convertible, including potential voting rights held by other
entities, are considered when assessing whether the Group
has significant influence. In assessing whether a potential voting
right contributes to significant influence, the Group's intention
and financial ability to exercise or convert that right is not

considered.

Interest in an associate is accounted for in the consolidated
financial statements by the equity method and is initially
recognised at cost. Identifiable assets and liabilities of the
associate in an acquisition are measured at their fair values
at the acquisition date. The excess of the cost of the interest
over the Group's share of the net fair value of the associate's
identifiable assets and liabilities is recorded as goodwill which
is included in the carrying amount of the interest. Any excess
of the Group's share of the net fair value of the identifiable
assets and liabilities over the cost of acquisition is recognised in

consolidated profit or loss.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(d)

Associates (Continued)

The Group assesses whether there is an objective evidence that
the interest in an associate may be impaired. When any objective
evidence exists, the entire carrying amount of the interest
(including goodwill) is tested for impairment in accordance with
HKAS 36 as a single asset by comparing its recoverable amount
(higher of value in use and fair value less costs of disposal)
with its carrying amount. Any impairment loss recognised is not
allocated to any asset, including goodwill, that forms part of the
carrying amount of the interest. Any reversal of that impairment
loss is recognised in accordance with HKAS 36 to the extent
that the recoverable amount of the interest subsequently

increases.

The Group's share of an associate's post-acquisition profits
or losses and other comprehensive income is recognised
in consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income. When the Group's share of losses in an
associate equals or exceeds its interest in the associate (which
includes any long-term interests that, in substance, form part
of the Group's net interest in the associate), the Group does
not recognise further losses, unless it has incurred obligations
or made payments on behalf of the associate. If the associate
subsequently reports profits, the Group resumes recognising its
share of those profits only after its share of the profits equals

the share of losses not recognised.
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4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(d) Associates (Continued)

The gain or loss on the disposal of an associate that results in a
loss of significant influence represents the difference between (i)
the fair value of the consideration of the sale plus the fair value
of any interest retained in that associate and (i) the Group's
entire carrying amount of that associate (including goodwill). If
an interest in an associate becomes an interest in a joint venture,

the Group continues to apply the equity method and does not

remeasure the retained interest.

Unrealised profits on transactions between the Group and its
associates are eliminated to the extent of the Group's interests
in the associates. Unrealised losses are also eliminated unless
the transaction provides evidence of an impairment of the asset
transferred. Accounting policies of associates have been changed

where necessary to ensure consistency with the policies

adopted by the Group.

(e) Foreign currency translation

(i)  Functional and presentation currency

ltems included in the financial statements of each of
the Group's entities are measured using the currency of

the primary economic environment in which the entity

operates (the “functional currency”).
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

(e) Foreign currency translation (Continued)

(i)

(ii)

Functional and presentation currency (Continued)

The functional currency of the Company is Renminbi
("RMB") while the consolidated financial statements
are presented in Hong Kong dollars (“HK$"), which
is the Company's presentation currency. The directors
of the Company consider that HK$ is the appropriate
presentation currency since the Company is a public
company with the shares listed on the Stock Exchange
where most of its investors are located. All values in the
consolidated financial statements are rounded to nearest

thousand HK$ or RMB except when otherwise indicated.

Transactions and balances in each entity’s
financial statements

Transactions in foreign currencies are translated into
the functional currency on initial recognition using the
exchange rates prevailing on the transaction dates.
Monetary assets and liabilities in foreign currencies are
translated at the exchange rates at the end of each
reporting period. Gains and losses resulting from this

translation policy are recognised in profit or loss.

Non-monetary assets and liabilities that are measured in
terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are translated
using the foreign exchange rates ruling at the transaction
dates. The transaction date is the date on which the entity
initially recognises such non-monetary assets or liabilities.
Non-monetary items that are measured at fair value in
foreign currencies are measured using the exchange rates

at the dates when the fair values are measured.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Foreign currency translation (Continued)

Transactions and balances in each entity’s
financial statements (Continued)

When a gain or loss on a non-monetary item is
recognised in other comprehensive income, any exchange
component of that gain or loss is recognised in other
comprehensive income. When a gain or loss on a non-
monetary item is recognised in profit or loss, any
exchange component of that gain or loss is recognised in

profit or loss.

Translation on consolidation

The results and financial position of all foreign operations
(none of which has the currency of hyperinflationary
economy) that have a functional currency different from
the Company’s presentation currency are translated into

the Company's presentation currency as follows:

= Assets and liabilities for each statement of financial
position presented are translated at the closing rate

at the date of that statement of financial position;

- Income and expenses are translated at average
exchange rates for the period (unless this average
is not a reasonable approximation of the cumulative
effect of the rates prevailing on the transaction
dates, in which case income and expenses are
translated at the exchange rates on the transaction

dates); and
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(e) Foreign currency translation (Continued)

U]

(iii) Translation on consolidation (Continued)

= All resulting exchange differences are recognised in
other comprehensive income and accumulated in

the exchange reserve.

Additionally, on disposal of a group entity (including an
associate) which has the same functional currency as
the Company, the exchange differences accumulated in
exchange reserve arising on translation of assets and
liabilities of that group entity into presentation currency
of the Company are transferred directly to accumulated

losses.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are held for use in the production
or supply of goods or services, or for administrative purposes
(other than properties under construction as described below)
and are stated in the consolidated statement of financial
position at cost, less subsequent accumulated depreciation and

subsequent accumulated impairment losses, if any.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset's carrying amount
or recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when
it is probable that future economic benefits associated with
the item will flow to the Group and the cost of the item can
be measured reliably. All other repairs and maintenance are
recognised in profit or loss during the period in which they are

incurred.
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4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

®

Property, plant and equipment (Continued)

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment is calculated at
rates sufficient to write off their cost less their residual values
over the estimated useful lives on a straight-line basis. The

principal annual rates are as follows:

3% — 5% or over the

unexpired terms,

Leasehold land and buildings

whichever is shorter

Wind energy plant and equipment 5% — 15%
Moulds and tools 25%
Furniture and office equipment 10% — 25%
Motor vehicles 18% — 25%

The residual values, useful lives and depreciation method
are reviewed and adjusted, if appropriate, at the end of each
reporting period, with the effect of any changes in estimate

accounted for on a prospective basis.

Construction in progress represents buildings under
construction and plant and equipment pending installation, and is
stated at cost less impairment losses. Depreciation begins when

the relevant assets are available for use.

The gain or loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment is
the difference between the net sales proceeds and the carrying

amount of the relevant asset, and is recognised in profit or loss.
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At inception of a contract, the Group assesses whether the

contract is, or contains, a lease. A contract is, or contains,

a lease if the contract conveys the right to control the use

of an identified asset for a period of time in exchange for

consideration. Control is conveyed where the customer has both

the right to direct the use of the identified asset and to obtain

substantially all of the economic benefits from that use.

(i)

The Group as a lessee

Where the contract contains lease component(s) and
non-lease component(s), the Group has elected not
to separate non-lease components and accounts for
each lease component and any associated non-lease

components as a single lease component for all leases.

At the lease commencement date, the Group recognises
a right-of-use asset and a lease liability, except for short-
term leases that have a lease term of |2 months or less
and leases of low-value assets which, for the Group are
primarily leasehold land and buildings and motor vehicles.
When the Group enters into a lease in respect of a low-
value asset, the Group decides whether to capitalise
the lease on a lease-by-lease basis. The lease payments
associated with those leases which are not capitalised are
recognised as an expense on a systematic basis over the

lease term.
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4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

(g) Leases (Continued)

(i)

The Group as a lessee (Continued)

Where the lease is capitalised, the lease liability is initially
recognised at the present value of the lease payments
payable over the lease term, discounted using the interest
rate implicit in the lease or, if that rate cannot be readily
determined, using a relevant incremental borrowing rate.
Lease payments to be made under reasonably certain
extension options are also included in the measurement
of the lease liability. After initial recognition, the lease
liability is measured at amortised cost and interest

expense is calculated using the effective interest method.

Variable lease payments that do not depend on an index
or rate are not included in the measurement of the lease
liability and hence are charged to profit or loss in the

accounting period in which they are incurred.

To determine the incremental borrowing rate, the Group:

= where possible, uses recent third-party financing
received by the individual lessee as a starting point,
adjusted to reflect changes in financing conditions

since third party financing was received;

= uses a build-up approach that starts with a risk-free
interest rate adjusted for credit risk for leases held
by the Group, which does not have recent third-

party financing; and



SR aMBER M

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

4. TE®

TR @)

(g HE @

(i)

FEFEZBERAA ()

- HHHEEMFHNS
ERE WEMHE
R G RIE R

WA B RN EEERE
AR FER AR A (&
PR B R T IBEE)
MEMRRKAZEBER
PORIAEEBERERZ
FREABTEIRES BN
KR

HERTERREDE
REEEN BN A
E - HPEEHEERER
kALY NI =R
Z AR ERBEE IR
REREEEMBEREN
K- HBER ERAREE
AT B R LA R I R B
HHEEENEEEREE
ﬁﬁ%ﬁ%$§$%%
sHRA MR HRERE

& (0 [%E@EHWFEE&
B) ERREEEAREN
KRR ERRERBE
SR -

EREEERHMGS A&
RERREH (UBREH
7 %) NIREREES
RITE-

BHE—E-—F+HA=+—HIFEE
For the year ended 3| December 2022

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

(g) Leases (Continued)

(i)

The Group as a lessee (Continued)

= makes adjustments specific to the lease, e.g. term,

country, currency and security.

If a readily observable amortising loan rate is available to
the individual lessee (through recent financing or market
data) which has a similar payment profile to the lease,
then the group entities use that rate as a starting point to

determine the incremental borrowing rate.

The right-of-use asset recognised when a lease is
capitalised is initially measured at cost, which comprises
the initial amount of the lease liability plus any lease
payments made at or before the commencement date,
and any initial direct costs incurred. Where applicable, the
cost of the right-of-use assets also includes an estimate
of costs to dismantle and remove the underlying asset or
to restore the underlying asset or the site on which it is
located, discounted to their present value, less any lease
incentives received. The right-of-use asset is subsequently
stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and

impairment losses.

Right-of-use assets are depreciated on a straight-line basis
over the shorter of its estimated useful life and the lease

term.
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4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

(2)

Leases (Continued)

(i)

The Group as a lessee (Continued)

Refundable rental deposits paid are accounted under
HKFRS 9 and initially measured at fair value. Adjustments
to fair value at initial recognition are considered as
additional lease payments and included in the cost of

right-of-use assets.

The lease liability is remeasured when there is a change
in future lease payments arising from a change in an index
or rate, or there is a change in the Group's estimate of
the amount expected to be payable under a residual
value guarantee, or there is a change arising from the
reassessment of whether the Group will be reasonably
certain to exercise a purchase, extension or termination
option. When the lease liability is remeasured in this way, a
corresponding adjustment is made to the carrying amount
of the right-of-use asset, or is recorded in profit or loss
if the carrying amount of the right-of-use asset has been

reduced to zero.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

(g) Leases (Continued)

(i)

(i)

The Group as a lessee (Continued)

The lease liability is also remeasured when there is a
change in the scope of a lease or the consideration for
a lease that is not originally provided for in the lease
contract (“lease modification”) that is not accounted
for as a separate lease. In this case the lease liability is
remeasured based on the revised lease payments and
lease term using a revised discount rate at the effective
date of the modification. The only exceptions are any rent
concessions which arose as a direct consequence of the
COVID-19 pandemic and which satisfied the conditions
set out in paragraph 46B of HKFRS 16. In such cases,
the Group took advantage of the practical expedient
not to assess whether the rent concessions are lease
modifications, and recognised the change in consideration
as negative lease payments in profit or loss in the period
in which the event or condition that triggers the rent

concessions occurred.

The Group as a lessor

When the Group acts as a lessor, it determines at lease
inception whether each lease is a finance lease or an
operating lease. A lease is classified as a finance lease if it
transfers substantially all the risks and rewards incidental
to the ownership of an underlying assets to the lessee. If
this is not the case, the lease is classified as an operating

lease.
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4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(h)

0]

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable
value. Cost is determined using the weighted average basis. Net
realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary
course of business, less the estimated costs of completion and

the estimated costs necessary to make the sale.

Contract assets and contract liabilities

Contract asset is recognised when the Group recognises
revenue before being unconditionally entitled to the
consideration under the payment terms set out in the contract.
Contract assets are assessed for expected credit losses (“ECL")
in accordance with the policy set out in note 4(t) and are
reclassified to receivables when the right to the consideration

has become unconditional.

A contract liability is recognised when the customer pays
consideration before the Group recognises the related revenue.
A contract liability would also be recognised if the Group has an
unconditional right to receive consideration before the Group
recognises the related revenue. In such cases, a corresponding

receivable would also be recognised.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

0]

()

Contract assets and contract liabilities (Continued)

For a single contract with the customer, either a net contract
asset or a net contract liability is presented. For multiple
contracts, contract assets and contract liabilities of unrelated

contracts are not presented on a net basis.

When the contract includes a significant financing component,
the contract balance includes interest accrued under the

effective interest method.

Recognition and derecognition of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised in the
consolidated statement of financial position when the Group
entity becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the

instrument.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured at
fair value except for trade receivables arising from contracts
with customers which are initially measured in accordance with
HKFRS 15. Transaction costs that are directly attributable to the
acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial liabilities are
added to or deducted from the fair value of the financial assets

or financial liabilities, as appropriate, on initial recognition.
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4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

()

Recognition and derecognition of financial instruments
(Continued)

The Group derecognises a financial asset only when the
contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset expire, or
when it transfers the financial asset and substantially all the
risks and rewards of ownership of the asset to another entity.
If the Group neither transfers nor retains substantially all the
risks and rewards of ownership and continues to control the
transferred asset, the Group recognises its retained interest
in the asset and an associated liability for amounts it may
have to pay. If the Group retains substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership of a transferred financial asset, the Group
continues to recognise the financial asset and also recognises a

collateralised borrowing for the proceeds received.

The Group derecognises financial liabilities when, and only
when, the Group's obligations are discharged, cancelled or have
expired. The difference between the carrying amount of the
financial liability derecognised and the consideration paid and
payable, including any non-cash assets transferred or liabilities

assumed, is recognised in profit or loss.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(k)

)

Trade and other receivables

A receivable is recognised when the Group has an unconditional
right to receive consideration. A right to receive consideration
is unconditional if only the passage of time is required before
payment of that consideration is due. If revenue has been
recognised before the Group has an unconditional right to
receive consideration, the amount is presented as a contract

asset.

Trade receivables are recognised initially at the amount of
consideration that is unconditional unless they contain significant
financing components, when they are recognised at fair value.
The Group holds the trade receivables with the objective of
collecting the contractual cash flows and therefore measures
them subsequently at amortised cost using the effective interest

method less allowance for ECL.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank and on hand,
demand deposits with banks and other financial institutions,
and short-term, highly liquid investments that are readily
convertible into known amounts of cash and which are subject
to an insignificant risk of changes in value, having been within
three months of maturity at acquisition. Bank overdrafts that are
repayable on demand and form an integral part of the Group's
cash management are also included as a component of cash and
cash equivalents for the purpose of the consolidated statement

of cash flows. Cash and cash equivalents are assessed for ECL.
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4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(m) Financial liabilities and equity instruments

Financial liabilities and equity instruments are classified according
to the substance of the contractual arrangements entered into
and the definitions of a financial liability and an equity instrument
under HKFRSs. An equity instrument is any contract that
evidences a residual interest in the assets of the Group after
deducting all of its liabilities. The accounting policies adopted

for specific financial liabilities and equity instruments are set out

below.

(n) Trade and other payables

Trade and other payables are recognised initially at their fair
value and subsequently measured at amortised cost using the

effective interest method unless the effect of discounting would

be immaterial, in which case they are stated at cost.

(o) Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidence a residual
interest in the assets of an entity after deducting all of its

liabilities. Equity instruments issued by the Company are

recorded at the proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.

(p) Revenue and other income

Revenue is recognised when control over a product or service
is transferred to the customer at the amount of promised
consideration to which the Group is expected to be entitled,
excluding those amounts collected on behalf of third parties.

Revenue excludes value added tax or other sales taxes and is

after deduction of any trade discounts.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(r)

Revenue and other income (Continued)

Revenue from sales of electricity from operation of wind power
field is recognised upon the satisfaction of its sole performance
obligation with its customers (when the electricity has been
transmitted to the customer). The amount recognised is based
on the observable price of the goods in the contracts since
there is no significant financing component and there is no

variable consideration.

Revenue from technical service income and sales of new energy
systems from new energy development operation is recognised
upon the satisfaction of its sole performance obligation with
its customers (when the notice of approval for power plant
construction project from the National Development and
Reform Commission is issued to the customer or when control
of new energy system has transferred to the customer). The
amount recognised is based on the observable price of the
goods or services in the contracts since there is no significant

financing component and there is no variable consideration.

Interest income is recognised as it accrues using the effective
interest method. For financial assets measured at amortised cost
that are not credit-impaired, the effective interest rate is applied
to the gross carrying amount of the asset. For credit impaired
financial assets, the effective interest rate is applied to the
amortised cost (i.e. gross carrying amount net of ECL allowance)

of the asset.

Annual Report 2022 » China Energine International (Holdings) Limited

115



116

e MBmRRME
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BE_E__F+_FA=+—HIFE
For the year ended 3| December 2022

4.

FEGHER »

(q) EEEF

(i)

(ii)

HHESEF

HHEERNEERER
14 BR 75 B TR HA S 1 BY 4B A
B RREIR = 58 o P B 2
BERMHOKER S HE
o BREREERMBR
EENBRIAFEEE
AR AR o

EERFEN WIEK
#rE s FREBR) K0
EfERREISERE-

BUEREE

BREE 2 RAEN T2
Kaasl A ABEE 23
AN EERMBREBAE#E
ZEERREI /AT
RBBERERRER &
EEARTEAEMBRH
fH 3B R {1 3RR0 B 7] K
To

(iii) BRI AEF

BER BN R A EE A BEE
BBl it 5% B A8 A B Ko Ak
EERBEEMAL L K
ZBERETNE URE
BHHEARZE) HEsT

FEMXBRER (EE) BRAE « 2022F K

4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

(@) Empl
(i)
(i)
(iii)

oyee benefits

Short-term employee benefits

Short-term employee benefits are recognised at the
undiscounted amount of the benefits expected to be paid
as and when employees rendered the service. All short-
term employee benefits are recognised as an expense
unless another HKFRS requires or permits the inclusion of

the benefit in the cost of an asset.

A liability is recognised for benefits accruing to employees
(such as wages and salaries, annual leave and sick leave)

after deducting any amount already paid.

Retirement benefit costs

Payments to the government-managed retirement benefit
schemes and the Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme are
recognised as an expense when employees have rendered
service entitling them to the contributions. Pursuant to
the applicable laws and regulations. The Group could not
use any forfeited contributions to reduce the exactly level

of contributions.

Termination benefits

Termination benefits are recognised at the earlier of
the dates when the Group can no longer withdraw the
offer of those benefits, and when the Group recognises
restructuring costs and involves the payment of

termination benefits.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(r)

Taxation

Income tax represents the sum of the current tax and deferred

tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the
year. Taxable profit differs from profit recognised in profit or
loss because of items of income or expense that are taxable or
deductible in other years and items that are never taxable or
deductible. The Group's liability for current tax is calculated using
tax rates that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the

end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax is recognised on differences between the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the consolidated
financial statements and the corresponding tax bases used
in the computation of taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities
are generally recognised for all taxable temporary differences
and deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it
is probable that taxable profits will be available against which
deductible temporary differences, unused tax losses or unused
tax credits can be utilised. Such assets and liabilities are not
recognised if the temporary difference arises from goodwill
or from the initial recognition (other than in a business
combination) of other assets and liabilities in a transaction that

affects neither the taxable profit nor the accounting profit.
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4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(r) Taxation (Continued)

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary
differences arising on interests in subsidiaries and associates,
except where the Group is able to control the reversal of the

temporary difference and it is probable that the temporary

difference will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the
end of each reporting period and reduced to the extent that

it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be

available to allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax is calculated at the tax rates that are expected
to apply in the period when the liability is settled or the
asset is realised, based on tax rates that have been enacted
or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.
Deferred tax is recognised in profit or loss, except when it
relates to items recognised in other comprehensive income
or directly in equity, in which case the deferred tax is also

recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity.

The measurement of deferred tax assets and liabilities reflects

the tax consequences that would follow from the manner in

which the Group expects, at the end of the reporting period, to

recover or settle the carrying amount of its assets and liabilities.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

()

Taxation (Continued)

For leasing transactions in which the tax deductions are
attributable to the lease liabilities, the Group applies HKAS 12
requirements to right-of-use assets and lease liabilities separately.
Temporary differences relating to right-of-use assets and lease
liabilities are not recognised at initial recognition and over
the lease terms due to application of the initial recognition

exemption.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a
legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets against
current tax liabilities and when they relate to income taxes
levied by the same taxation authority and the Group intends to
settle its current tax assets and liabilities on a net basis, or to

realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

Impairment of non-financial assets

The carrying amounts of non-financial assets are reviewed at
each reporting date for indications of impairment and where
an asset is impaired, it is written down as an expense through
the consolidated statement of profit or loss to its estimated
recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is determined
for an individual asset, unless the asset does not generate
cash inflows that are largely independent of those from other
assets or groups of assets. If this is the case, recoverable
amount is determined for the CGU to which the asset belongs.
Recoverable amount is the higher of value in use and the fair

value less costs of disposal of the individual asset or the CGU.
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4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(s) Impairment of non-financial assets (Continued)

Value in use is the present value of the estimated future cash
flows of the asset or CGU. Present values are computed using
pre-tax discount rates that reflect the time value of money and

the risks specific to the asset or CGU whose impairment is

being measured.

Impairment losses for CGUs are allocated first against the
goodwill of the unit and then pro rata amongst the other assets
of the CGU. Subsequent increases in the recoverable amount

caused by changes in estimates are credited to profit or loss to

the extent that they reverse the impairment.

(t) Impairment of financial assets and contracts assets

The Group recognises a loss allowance for ECL on trade
and other receivables, contract assets and amounts due from
associates, bank balances and financial guarantee contracts. The
amount of ECL is updated at each reporting date to reflect

changes in credit risk since initial recognition of the respective

financial instrument.

The Group always recognises lifetime ECL for trade receivables

and contract assets. The ECL on these assets are assessed

individually.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(®)

Impairment of financial assets and contracts assets
(Continued)

For all other financial instruments, the Group recognises lifetime
ECL when there has been a significant increase in credit risk
since initial recognition. However, if the credit risk on the
financial instrument has not increased significantly since initial
recognition, the Group measures the loss allowance for that

financial instrument at an amount equal to 12-month ECL.

Lifetime ECL represents the ECL that will result from all
possible default events over the expected life of a financial
instrument. In contrast, 12-month ECL represents the portion
of lifetime ECL that is expected to result from default events on
a financial instrument that are possible within 12 months after
the reporting date. Assessments are made based on the Group's
historical credit loss experience, adjusted for factors that are
specific to the debtors, general economic conditions and an

assessment of both the current conditions.
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(Continued)
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has increased significantly since initial recognition, the Group
compares the risk of a default occurring on the financial
instrument at the reporting date with the risk of a default
occurring on the financial instrument at the date of initial
recognition. In making this assessment, the Group considers
both quantitative and qualitative information that is reasonable
and supportable, including historical experience and forward-
looking information that is available without undue cost or
effort. Forward-looking information considered includes the
future prospects of the industries in which the Group's debtors
operate, obtained from economic expert reports, financial
analysts, governmental bodies, relevant think-tanks and other
similar organisations, as well as consideration of various external
sources of actual and forecast economic information that relate

to the Group's core operations.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(®)

Impairment of financial assets and contracts assets
(Continued)

Significant increase in credit risk (Continued)

In particular, the following information is taken into account
when assessing whether credit risk has increased significantly

since initial recognition:

— an actual or expected significant deterioration in the
financial instrument's external (if available) or internal

credit rating;

= significant deterioration in external market indicators of

credit risk for a particular financial instrument;

= existing or forecast adverse changes in business, financial
or economic conditions that are expected to cause a
significant decrease in the debtor’s ability to meet its debt

obligations;

— an actual or expected significant deterioration in the

operating results of the debtor;

= significant increases in credit risk on other financial

instruments of the same debtor; and

= an actual or expected significant adverse change in the
regulatory, economic, or technological environment of the
debtor that results in a significant decrease in the debtor's

ability to meet its debt obligations.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(®)

Impairment of financial assets and contracts assets
(Continued)

Significant increase in credit risk (Continued)

Irrespective of the outcome of the above assessment, the
Group presumes that the credit risk on a financial asset has
increased significantly since initial recognition when contractual
payments are more than 30 days past due, unless the Group
has reasonable and supportable information that demonstrates

otherwise.

Despite the foregoing, the Group assumes that the credit risk on
a financial instrument has not increased significantly since initial
recognition if the financial instrument is determined to have
low credit risk at the reporting date. A financial instrument is

determined to have low credit risk if:

(i)  the financial instrument has a low risk of default;

(i)  the debtor has a strong capacity to meet its contractual

cash flow obligations in the near term; and

(i)  adverse changes in economic and business conditions in
the longer term may, but will not necessarily, reduce the
ability of the borrower to fulfill its contractual cash flow

obligations.

The Group considers a financial asset to have low credit risk
when the asset has external credit rating of “investment grade”
in accordance with the globally understood definition or if an
external rating is not available, the asset has an internal rating
of “performing”. Performing means that the counterparty has a

strong financial position and there is no past due amounts.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(®)

Impairment of financial assets and contracts assets
(Continued)

Significant increase in credit risk (Continued)

The Group regularly monitors the effectiveness of the criteria
used to identify whether there has been a significant increase in
credit risk and revises them as appropriate to ensure that the
criteria are capable of identifying significant increase in credit risk

before the amount becomes past due.

Definition of default

The Group considers the following as constituting an event of
default for internal credit risk management purposes as historical
experience indicates that receivables that meet either of the

following criteria are generally not recoverable.

= when there is a breach of financial covenants by the

counterparty; or

- information developed internally or obtained from
external sources indicates that the debtor is unlikely to
pay its creditors, including the Group, in full (without

taking into account any collaterals held by the Group).

Irrespective of the above analysis, the Group considers that
default has occurred when a financial asset is more than 90
days past due unless the Group has reasonable and supportable
information to demonstrate that a more lagging default criterion

is more appropriate.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(®)

Impairment of financial assets and contracts assets
(Continued)

Credit-impaired financial assets

A financial asset is credit-impaired when one or more events
that have a detrimental impact on the estimated future cash
flows of that financial asset have occurred. Evidence that a

financial asset is credit-impaired includes observable data about

the following events:

significant financial difficulty of the issuer or the

counterparty,

a breach of contract, such as a default or past due event;

the lender(s) of the counterparty, for economic or
contractual reasons relating to the counterparty’s
financial difficulty, having granted to the counterparty a
concession(s) that the lender(s) would not otherwise

consider;

it is becoming probable that the counterparty will enter

bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation; or

the disappearance of an active market for that financial

asset because of financial difficulties.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(®)

Impairment of financial assets and contracts assets
(Continued)

Write-off policy

The Group writes off a financial asset when there is information
indicating that the debtor is in severe financial difficulty and
there is no realistic prospect of recovery, including when the
debtor has been placed under liquidation or has entered into
bankruptcy proceedings. Financial assets written off may still be
subject to enforcement activities under the Group's recovery
procedures, taking into account legal advice where appropriate.
A write-off constitutes a derecognition event. Any subsequent

recoveries are recognised in profit or loss.

Measurement and recognition of ECL

The measurement of ECL is a function of the probability of
default, loss given default (i.e. the magnitude of the loss if
there is a default) and the exposure at default. The assessment
of the probability of default and loss given default is based
on historical data adjusted by forward-looking information as
described above. As for the exposure at default, for financial
assets, this is represented by the assets’ gross carrying amount
at the reporting date; for financial guarantee contracts, the
exposure includes the amount drawn down as at the reporting
date, together with any additional amounts expected to be
drawn down in the future by default date determined based on
historical trend, the Group’s understanding of the specific future
financing needs of the debtors, and other relevant forward-

looking information.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(®)

Impairment of financial assets and contracts assets
(Continued)

Measurement and recognition of ECL (Continued)

For financial assets, the ECL are estimated as the difference
between all contractual cash flows that are due to the Group
in accordance with the contract and all the cash flows that the
Group expects to receive, discounted at the original effective
interest rate. For a lease receivable, the cash flows used for
determining the ECL are consistent with the cash flows used in

measuring the lease receivable in accordance with HKFRS [6.

If the Group has measured the loss allowance for a financial
instrument at an amount equal to lifetime ECL in the previous
reporting period, but determines at the current reporting date
that the conditions for lifetime ECL are no longer met, the
Group measures the loss allowance at an amount equal to
[2-month ECL at the current reporting date, except for assets

for which simplified approach was used.

The Group recognises an impairment gain or loss in profit or
loss for all financial instruments with a corresponding adjustment

to their carrying amount through a loss allowance account.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(v)

v)

Provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised for liabilities of uncertain timing or
amount when the Group has a present legal or constructive
obligation arising as a result of a past event, it is probable that
an outflow of economic benefits will be required to settle the
obligation and a reliable estimate can be made. Where the time
value of money is material, provisions are stated at the present
value of the expenditures expected to settle the obligation. The
discount rate used to determine the present value is a pre-tax
rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value
of money and the risks specific to the liability. The increase in the
provision due to the passage of time is recognised as interest

expense.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic benefits
will be required, or the amount cannot be estimated reliably,
the obligation is disclosed as a contingent liability, unless the
probability of outflow is remote. Possible obligations, whose
existence will only be confirmed by the occurrence or non-
occurrence of one or more future events are also disclosed as

contingent liabilities unless the probability of outflow is remote.

Warranties

Provisions for the expected cost of assurance-type warranty
obligations under the relevant contracts with customers are
recognised at the date of provision for the relevant services, at
the directors’ best estimate of the expenditure required to settle

the Group's obligation.
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4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(w) Events after the reporting period

Events after the reporting period that provide additional
information about the Group's position at the end of the
reporting period or those that indicate the going concern
assumption is not appropriate are adjusting events and are
reflected in the consolidated financial statements. Events after
the reporting period that are not adjusting events are disclosed
in the notes to the consolidated financial statements when

material.

CRITICAL JUDGEMENT AND KEY
ESTIMATES

In applying the Group's accounting policies, which are described in
note 4, the directors are required to make judgements (other than
those involving estimations) that have a significant impact on the
amounts recognised and to make estimates and assumptions about the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent
from other sources. The estimates and associated assumptions are
based on historical experience and other factors that are considered

to be relevant. Actual results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing
basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in the period in
which the estimate is revised if the revision affects only that period, or
in the period of the revision and future periods if the revision affects

both current and future periods.
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BHE—E-—F+HA=+—HIFEE
For the year ended 3| December 2022

CRITICAL JUDGEMENT AND KEY
ESTIMATES (Continued)

Critical judgement in applying accounting policies

In the process of applying the accounting policies, the directors have
made the following judgement that has the most significant effect on
the amounts recognised in the consolidated financial statements (apart

from those involving estimations, which are dealt with below).

Going concern basis

These consolidated financial statements have been prepared on a going
concern basis, the validity of which depends upon the financial support
of the intermediate holding company of the Company at a level
sufficient to finance the working capital requirements of the Group
and the successful outcome of the plans and measures taken by the
directors to improve the Group's liquidity and financial position. Details

are explained in note 2 to the consolidated financial statements.

Key sources of estimation uncertainty

The key assumptions concerning the future, and other key sources of
estimation uncertainty at the end of the reporting period, that have a
significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts
of assets and liabilities within the next financial year, are discussed

below.
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5.

CRITICAL JUDGEMENT AND KEY
ESTIMATES (Continued)

Impairment of trade receivables and amounts due from

associates which are in non-trade nature

The management of the Group estimates the amount of ECL of
trade receivables and amounts due from associates which are in non-
trade nature based on individual assessment, after considering internal
credit ratings of debtors, forward-looking information, recent trade
relationships, financial background and creditability of individual debtor,
historical settlement records such as default or delay in payments and
aging analysis of such balances and general economic conditions of the
industry in which the debtors operate. The estimated loss rate applied
is based on the internal credit rating assessed individually taking into
consideration of historical loss rates and forward-looking information
that is reasonable, supportable, and available to the directors of the
Company without undue costs or effort. At every reporting date,
the loss rates are reassessed and changes in the forward-looking

information are considered.

The provision of ECL is sensitive to changes in estimates. The
information about the Group's trade receivables and amounts due
from associates which are in non-trade nature and the impairment

assessment of such balances are disclosed in note 6(b).

As at 31 December 2022, the carrying amounts of trade receivables
and amounts due from associates which are in non-trade nature are
HK$25,999,000 (2021: HK$38,259,000) and HK$6,895,000 (2021:
HK$4,485,000) net of allowance for ECL of HK$23,336,000 (2021:
HK$460,115,000) and HK$ 161,000 (2021: HK$176,000) respectively.
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For the year ended 3| December 2022

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group's activities expose it to a variety of financial risks: foreign
currency risk, credit risk, liquidity risk and interest rate risk. The Group's
overall risk management programme focuses on the unpredictability
of financial markets and seeks to minimise potential adverse effects on

the Group's financial performance.

(a) Foreign currency risk

The Group has minimal exposure to foreign currency risk
as most of its business transactions, assets and liabilities are
principally denominated in the functional currencies of the
Group entities, i.e. RMB. The Group currently does not have a
foreign currency hedging policy in respect of foreign currency
transactions, assets and liabilities. The Group monitors its foreign
currency exposure closely and will consider hedging significant
foreign currency exposure should the need arise. The foreign

currency risk is not significant to the Group.

(b) Credit risk

Credit risk refers to the risk that the Group's counterparties
default on their contractual obligations resulting in financial
losses to the Group. The Group's credit risk exposures are
primarily attributable to trade and other receivables, contract

assets, bank balances and amounts due from associates.
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6.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

(b)

Credit risk (Continued)

As at 31 December 2022 and 2021, the carrying amounts
of financial assets as stated in the consolidated statement of
financial position represent the maximum exposure to credit risk
which will cause a financial loss to the Group due to failure to
discharge an obligation by the counterparties. The Group does
not hold any collateral or other credit enhancement to cover its

credit risks associated with its financial assets.

The Group has concentration of credit risk as 77% (2021: 97%)
and 100% (2021: 100%) of the total trade receivables due
from the Group's largest debtor and the five largest debtors

respectively.

In addition, the Group has concentration of credit risk as 100%
(2021: 100%) of total amounts due from associates is due from
one associate. The Group monitors the exposure to credit
risk in respect of the amounts due from associates through
exercising significant influence over their financial and operating
policy decisions and reviewing their financial position on a

regular basis.

The Group performed impairment assessment for financial
assets and other items under ECL model. Information about the
Group's credit risk management, maximum credit risk exposures
and the related impairment assessment, if applicable, are

summarised as below:
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For the year ended 3| December 2022

6. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

(b)

Credit risk (Continued)

Trade balances arising from contracts with customers

In order to minimise the credit risk, the management of the
Group has delegated a team responsible for determination of
credit limits and credit approvals. Before accepting any new
customer; the Group assesses the potential customer’s credit
quality, assigns an internal credit rating and defines credit limits
by customer. Limits and credit rating attributed to customers
are reviewed on a periodic basis. Other monitoring procedures
are in place to ensure that follow-up action is taken to recover
overdue debts. In this regard, the directors of the Company
consider that the Group's credit risk is significantly reduced. In
addition, the Group performs impairment assessment under ECL

model on trade balances based on individual assessment.

The Group applies the simplified approach to provide for ECL
prescribed by HKFRS 9, which permits the use of the lifetime
expected loss provision for trade balances arising from contracts

with customers,
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6.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

(b) Credit risk (Continued)

Trade balances arising from contracts with customers

(Continued)

Management assessed the ECL on trade balances arising from
contracts with customers individually by estimation with the
internal credit rating applied to each debtor (based on recent
trade relationships, financial background and creditability of
individual trade debtors, historical settlement records such as
default or delay in payments, aging analysis of such balances and
general economic conditions of industry in which the debtors
operate), subsequent settlements (for credit-impaired balances)
and adjusted for the forward-looking information available

without undue costs or effort, including the expected market

competition in the future.

The management considered a trade balance is credit-impaired
when there is event of default occurred. The management
made assessment on trade debtor individually if there is event
of default such as significant litigation proceedings the debtor

involved due to breach of contracts and significant financial

difficulty that the debtor will probably enter liquidation.

However, in certain circumstances, the trade debtors more than
90 days past due is not considered as in default if there is recent

repayment record for those customers and continuous business

with the Group.
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For the year ended 3| December 2022

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

(b) Credit risk (Continued)

Trade balances arising from contracts with customers
(Continued)

As at 3| December 2022, trade balances arising from contracts
with customers and contract assets in trade nature that were
assessed to be credit-impaired with aggregate gross carrying
amount of HK$61,981,000 (2021: HK$566,618,000) were

assessed individually.

As part of the Group's credit risk management, the Group
applies internal credit rating for its customers. The following
table provides information about the exposure to credit risk for
trade balances arising from contracts with customers in trade
nature which are subject to lifetime ECL assessment and are
individually assessed as at 31 December 2022 and 2021.

2022 2021
IRE{E* b ARmEE* FiERE
Gross Gross
carrying Loss carrying Loss
amount* allowance amount® allowance
FET FAET FAET FET
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000
R Satisfactory - - 1,057 -
b ZTHEBEEESHENES @ The amount included trade receivables and contract assets from

BRRRERGHEE-

customers in trade nature.

Annual Report 2022 » China Energine International (Holdings) Limited

137



138

SR aMBRR M

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BE = A H=F—HIFFEE

For the year ended 3| December 2022

6. SREAMKER

(b) EEHARE @

BERITUEHNELHESE
B (&

BEEDEES
TmEl  HFHARFEOA

A
B o
AR

FiT £ fil 51 &5 48 = DUE B ST 2 B9
AEEEFRAER W5t AR
REEFHBALEMAHIIF
A RENSEAFRIETE
Ko X AREXEEAZAENLE
RT3 S B AR BRI
RIFBA R ©

TREJEMRBAZRITUEN
EEWNBREREBIETEZT
BRBNEHRRAEESE (BE
EiHE e (BEEZEWR
MRENEE) °

FEMXBRER (EE) BRAE « 2022F K

6.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

(b) Credit risk (Continued)

Trade balances arising from contracts with customers
(Continued)

Quality classification definitions:

“Satisfactory: The counterparty has moderate default risk.

The estimated loss rate applied is based on the internal credit
rating assessed individually taking into consideration forward-
looking information that is reasonable, supportable, and available
to the directors of the Company without undue costs or effort.
Such forward-looking information is used by the directors of the
Company to assess both the current as well as the forecast of

future conditions at the reporting date.

The following table shows the movement in lifetime ECL (credit-
impaired) that has been recognised for trade balances arising
from contracts with customers including trade receivables and

contract assets under the simplified approach.
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6. ERMAEAREE @« 6. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continved)
(b) EHAR & (b) Credit risk (Continued)
BEFRIUSHELNE S Trade balances arising from contracts with customers
B (Continued)
BESHTEZ . (B Quality classification definitions: (Continued)
2022 2021
FET TET
HK$’000 HK$'000
*—HA—H At | January 528,359 564,976
EREEE Exchange differences (28,915) 15,082
BEE S R Transfer of trade receivables (463,462) =
Mt A B EUHAR & ABR Deconsolidation of subsidiaries - (51,699)
R+-—A=+—H At 31 December 35,982 528,359
BRHERGIFE G EE N Amounts due from associates which are non-trade
nature
HEWBEAGFEEZHER For amounts due from associates which are non-trade nature,
rEEEEECEREF AN the management of the Group has taken into account the
IR R R AR B L o financial position of the counterparties and forward-looking
information.
HRZEZ_F+ZRA=+— For the amounts due from associates which are non-trade
HNEKRBES/AGFEZEE nature of HK7,056,000 (2021: HK$4,661,000) as at 3!
#7,056,0008 7 (ZT2Z—4F ! December 2022, the management of the Group believes
4,661,000 7T) ' AEBREIEE that there are no significant increase in credit risk since initial
o4 BRI URE SR recognition and the Group provided impairment based on
TEABEMERERRE2 I2-month ECL. During the years ended 31 December 2022 and
BREIMEEREEIRE ﬁ Eo 2021, the Group assessed the ECL for these unsecured balances
BE_T-__FrRZIZTZ—F of amounts due from associates were insignificant and thus no
+ZB=+—HIFE F&E loss allowance was recognised.

AEEBRBMERTDRZEZSTR
BREGR BREERERL
AE KX [® I I 5 0 500 (5 B
o
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6.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

(b)

(<)

Credit risk (Continued)
Other receivables

For other receivables, the management of the Group has taken
into account the historical default experience and forward-
looking information, as appropriate, for example, the Group has
considered the consistently low historical loss rate in connection
with payments, and concluded that credit risk inherent in
the Group's outstanding other receivables is insignificant. The
directors of the Company believe that there is no significant
increase in credit risk of these amounts since initial recognition
and the Group provided impairment based on |2-month ECL.
For the years ended 31 December 2022 and 2021, the Group
assessed the ECL for other receivables were insignificant and

thus no loss allowance was recognised.

Bank balances

The management of the Group considers the bank balances
that are deposited with the financial institutions with high credit
rating to be low credit risk financial assets. The management
of the Group considers the bank balances are short-term in
nature and the probability of default is negligible on the basis
of high-credit-rating issuers, and accordingly, loss allowance was

considered as insignificant.

Liquidity risk

In the management of the liquidity risk, the Group monitors
and maintains a level of cash and cash equivalents deemed
adequate by the management to finance the Group's operations
and mitigate the effects of fluctuations in cash flows. The
management monitors the utilisation of banking facilities and

ensures compliance with loan covenants.
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6. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

RBEEARE &) (c¢) Liquidity risk (Continued)
R_E__F#+_RB=+— The amount of net current liabilities of the Group is
H>&NEEZ mL@J%Fﬁééﬁj HK$1,282,444,000 as at 31 December 2022, which causes the
1,282,444,000/8 0> B AEE Group in significant liquidity risk. At the end of the reporting
%ﬁ?%ﬁm@]ﬁﬁﬂﬁ“ oRIRE period, the Group has taken appropriate measures as set out in
HAK > A EE B B SR ENPH 512 & note 2 to mitigate such liquidity risk.
ZBERRUBBERREE
%ﬂﬁnu o
TREFVIAEEBERABERE The following table details the Group's remaining contractual
WE B IFR 2 FIek S A HAIR » maturity for its financial liabilities based on the agreed
DBiIRBEAEETRERERZ repayment terms. The table has been drawn up based on the
RRPHENEMEBREARMRER undiscounted cash flows of financial liabilities based on the
EMBHRN - ZROEMNERAE earliest date on which the Group can be required to pay. The
ERERE A BRLOT B 5t table includes both interest and principal cash flows. To the
B AXRMREBERENEREH extent that interest flows are floating rate, the undiscounted
RIZH RAAg st & o amount is derived from interest rate curve at the end of the
reporting period.
REEZ RFIFERME Liquidity and interest risk tables
£33
mEFY  RERR Hgikg
ERHE %t OR-@ER -E=@A =Z@RE-§ -Eif 1 IR
Weighted
average Total
effective On  Lessthan | monthto 3 months to | year to undiscounted Carrying
interest rate demand | month 3 months | year Syears  cash flows amount
¥ T AT TEm FiEm T AT Tém
V3 HK$ 000 HK$000 HK$ 000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$ 000 HK$000
ot Jde 2022
BAREMERR Trade and other payables - 54,025 - - - - 54,025 54,025
(T —MHERRAT  Amount due to an intermediate
holding company - 1,317,108 - - - - 1,317,108 1,317,108
HEEE Lease liabltes 458 - 128 128 - - 256 256
1,371,133 128 128 - - 1,371,389 1,371,389
-3-f 2021
BAREMERR Trade and other payables - 706076 - - - - 706076 706076
(T —MHERRAT  Amount due to an intermediate
holding company - 1,439,008 = = = = 1,439,008 1,439,008
HEEE Lease liabltes 458 - 129 28 1,159 258 1,804 1753
2,145,084 129 258 159 258 2,146,888 2,146,837
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6.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

(d) Interest rate risk

The Group is exposed to cash flow interest rate risk in relation
to variable-rate bank balances for 2022 and 2021 as detailed in
note 27. The management continuously monitors interest rate

fluctuation and will consider further hedging interest rate risk

should the need arise.

The Group is also exposed to fair value interest rate risk

in relation to lease liabilities as detailed in note 30. The

management monitors interest rate exposure closely.

The Group's exposures to interest rates on financial liabilities
are detailed in the above liquidity risk section of this note. The
Group's cash flow interest rate risk is mainly concentrated on

the fluctuation of PRC Loan Prime Rate and the People’s Bank of

China Benchmark Interest Rate.

As at 31 December 2022 and 2021, the Group had no other
significant interest-bearing assets or liabilities. The management

considers that the Group's exposure to market risk for changes

in interest rates is insignificant.
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6. TRAMER = 6. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)
(e) M+ZA=+—HHEMIA (e) Categories of financial instruments at 31 December
Y|
2022 2021
FET FET
HK$’000 HK$'000
SHEE: Financial assets:
B ERAGTEZ Financial assets at amortised cost
THEE 84,119 83,837
SHEE: Financial liabilities:
REER AT EZ Financial liabilities at amortised cost
TRER 1,371,133 2,145,084
H 2FE (f) Fair values
rEENEREEREREE The carrying amounts of the Group's financial assets and
RiZE MBI RNR R M ERE financial liabilities as reflected in the consolidated statement of
EREEBNATEREE- financial position approximate their respective fair values.
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1.
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i 25 7. REVENUE

FRRTEXHE R REDEE 2 Disaggregation of revenue from contracts with customers by major

DZREZERENZWEDIFNT ! service line and timing of revenue recognition for the year are as
follows:

2022 2021
FET FET
HK$’000 HK$ 000
ERMBHEERN Revenue from contracts with
BISREERNZ customers within the scope
REERGHZHE of HKFRS 15
HEREEZES Sales of electricity from operation of
28] wind power field 25,771 —
REMERBAZESN Technical service income from
AR FES UL A new energy development operation - 9,100
MERMABEEN Sales of new energy systems from new energy
MEERAREE development operation 15,447 =
41,218 9,100
Moy o 6% 23 5 Timing of revenue recognition
1A 18] 5 ) Point in time 41,218 9,100
PTBEHESHNNRIGTRRBARA —F All sales contracts have an original expected duration of one year
FUT; FEEBREBEEBARE or less; or the Group recognises revenue at the amount to which
NEEED WD ZTBEEEER it has a right to invoice, which corresponds directly to the value to
FEERFREZSTHRBEANEBE & the customer of the Group's performance completed to date. As
BMEREENEISREATARED permitted under HKFRS 15, the transaction price allocated to these

REZFSRATRENNLZB-

unsatisfied contracts is not disclosed.
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Hthig A 8. OTHER INCOME
2022 2021
FET FAET
HK$’000 HK$ 000
RERTEHZANERA Interest income from bank balances 87 |4
BT (Myst) Government grants (note) 1,576 -
HEIEUA Sundry income 469 606
2,132 620

HiaE : 82000008 T (CE-—F T8
7o) EEABAMARESERES
7 B ¢ AE A 4R B o BREE 1,376,000 7T
(ZBEZ—&28x) HETPEBRA
/R RSEE R EME AR ER
FARER 7 BB LR PER S
RE R o 1 (B AR 2 HE E o 5% 5 4 B BB B
B EZRM

Note: An amount of HK$200,000 (2021: HK$NIl) represents COVID-|9-related
subsidies in respect of Employment Support Scheme provided by the
Hong Kong Government. The remaining amount of HK$!,376,000 (2021:
HK$NIl) represents operating subsidies granted to the Group by the PRC
government/authorities for operation of wind farm and other technology
development, and reduction approval from the PRC tax authorities on Value

Added Tax. There are no unfulfilled conditions attached to these grants.
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BE_E__F+_FA=+—HIFE
For the year ended 3| December 2022

9. RHBELHWD 9. GAIN ON DEBT RESTRUCTURING
RIBZZH+ZAZ+ZH &5 On 22 December 2022, the Group entered into a debt expiation
BRI RB R LBEHFERRE & agreement with Beijing Energine to transfer to Beijing Energine all its
EWAEER—2EENME B ZEW rights of trade receivables and contract assets due from a customer
ARENEBEZENNEBETIERE of the Group amounting to RMB399,870,000 or HK$463,462,000,
R TR AR399,870,0007T of which full allowances were recognised in prior years, in order to
(463,462,000 BERBEFESR offset against the trade payables to Beijing Energine by the Group
MDA E DUEHAEERMIER of RMB376,070,000 or HK$435877,000 and the trade and other
BRENEZELRAR376,070,000 receivables due from Beijing Energine to the Group of RMBI,220,000
75.80435,877,00078 7T Ko 7 £ B FE U 36 or HK$1,414,000. After the debt expiation, the Group generated a gain
REERNEZ REMEIRMRARE on debt restructuring of RMB374,850,000 or HK$434,463,000.

1,220,000758% | 4 14,0005 75 ° EF55 8
B AEEELEFEHARGARE
374,850,0007T 8434,463,0005 7T ©

2022
FET
HK$’000
BEEER: Liabilities discharged:

BR AR Trade payables 435,877

BEERNEEE ! Assets transferred and abandoned:
85 K E YR Trade and other receivables 413,299
B TEHREEEERE Less: Allowance for ECL (411,885)
1,414
BNEE Contract assets 51,577
B TEHREEEERE Less: Allowance for ECL (51,577)
1,414
(EECER Gain on debt restructuring 434,463
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BHE—E-—F+HA=+—HIFEE
For the year ended 3| December 2022

10. Hthliy i Ri5HR 10. OTHER GAINS AND LOSSES
2022 2021
FET FEr
HK$’000 HK$ 000
HEWENE (HEF36(c)) Gain on bargain purchase (note 36(c)) - 20,494
B ARBHGEARZ Gain on deconsolidation of subsidiaries
Wz (Mf5E36(b)) (note 36(b)) 185,547 295,308
REALE—HEBEATZ Gain on deemed disposal of an associate
Wz (F5E36(c)) (note 36(c)) - 8,953
HEMNE -BEK Net loss on disposal of property, plant and
RERIBFE equipment (45) -
ERDBER (B8 Net exchange (loss)/gain recognised
Wy 25 % 28 (309) 9
—ER B AR REHE Loss on claim from a former subsidiary - (4,149)
185,193 320,615
1. 2EEH I1. SEGMENT INFORMATION

REERNTEE AT REERRE
(TXEEBRRE)) ERZER
BRRAUR G EM R ERE 2B

DEBDE EMDEBERL TG

DREE - EREREENITRE D segments identified by the CODM have been aggregated in arriving at

Fy o T B EEIARE WA AT the reportable segments of the Group.

B E D AREL o

Information reported to the Group's Executive Directors, being
the chief operating decision maker (“CODM"), for the purposes of
resource allocation and assessment of segment performance focuses

on types of goods or services delivered or provided. No operating

AEEE TIMELERRSDE-

The Group has the following two operating and reporting segments.

REHEE - WEKRBERBEES Operation of Wind Farm - sales of electricity from
ZEH operation of wind power
field
HMACERg At ?E{%%ﬁﬁ%ﬁﬁaﬁ%g Development of New Energy —  provision of technical services
R ARES

for new energy development

operation
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—E T HF+ A=+ —HIFEE

For the year ended 3| December 2022

. REEHE =

AEBNAI RSN ERHBRERE
i AR AR ERKARE - ZE %
BEUNBREEE RABEERS
ERF M e hIZ R
KEDBZEHABRRARESHBR
KM AR c D EEB T BIE
APEEMBA RO EEHEAK
myARDBEEME G R R E
THER WEFRRFDERRESH
) - BEERENEEER MHER
ARFGMEAS BEABEENMR
BENEEPEEREDELLHE
BEBERARERSGUNRERKTE
DERANER D EEEFLER
PENE - -BERZE - RIELES
REMBUWT e BN B
BEAMIER AN RBITERRIRE
DEABBETEERDEE S KEME
AR BN —EPEERATR B
AHENEARE - HEEERIELERES

S o

AEBHDERHERBRETES
R HUNHENBERERNFE =%
17 B ERmHHERHE

FEMXBRER (EE) BRAE « 2022F K

SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continved)

The Group's reportable segments are strategic business units that offer
different products and services. They are managed separately because

each business requires different technology and marketing strategies.

The accounting policies of the operating segments are the same as
those described in note 4 to the consolidated financial statements.
Segment results do not include unallocated other income, unallocated
gain on debt restructuring, unallocated other gains and losses,
unallocated administrative expenses such as centralised corporate
expenses and directors’ emoluments, financial guarantee contract
liabilities expense, finance costs and income tax expense. All share
of results of associates are allocated to reporting segments. This
is the measure reported to the CODM for purposes of resources
allocation and assessment of segment performance. Segment assets
do not include unallocated property, plant and equipment, unallocated
trade and other receivables, deposits and prepayments, current tax
receivable and unallocated bank balances and cash. Segment liabilities
do not include unallocated trade and other payables, amount due to an
intermediate holding company, current tax payable, lease liabilities and

deferred tax liabilities.

The Group accounts for intersegment sales and transfers as if the sales

or transfers were to third parties, i.e. at current market prices.
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For the year ended 3| December 2022

. REEH = Il. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continved)
ERNBRERESENSEE . Information about segment revenue and results:
RIREE R e B 5 4
Operation of  Development of
Wind Farm New Energy Consolidated
FET FE7 FET
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
gE-E_-C Year ended 31 December 2022
+ZA=+—-HILEE
)5 Revenue
REINBE RN R Revenue from external customers 25,771 15,447 41,218
i Results
NEBEE Segment results 998 200 1,198
KORE M A Unallocated other income 362
ROREHREANS Unallocated gain on debt
restructuring 434,463
KA B RS Unallocated other gains and losses 185,173
RORTHER Unallocated administrative expenses (12,547)
BAFR R Finance costs (49)
B R Profit before tax 608,600
BE—8-—F Year ended 31 December 2021
+ZB=+—HLEEE
g Revenue
RBINEPE P W = Revenue from external customers - 9,100 9,100
ES | Results
EES Segment reslts 19221 8,020 27241
RAREMBA Unallocated other income 620
AAEEMK G REE Unallocated other gains and losses 311,662
AOERTHER Unallocated administrative
expenses (11,402)
IBEERENER Financial guarantee contract
liabilities (399,032)
AT A Finance costs (116)
PRIt E 1R Loss before tax (71,027)
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BE_E__F+_FA=+—HIFE
For the year ended 3| December 2022

1. &R =

Il. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

EMNESERABIER Information about segment assets and liabilities:
RIAEE R RE R 5 "8
Operation of  Development of
Wind Farm New Energy Consolidated
F#7 F#n F#7
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
BR=-§=-Z At 31 December 2022
+-R=+-H
BE Assets
DHEEE Segment assets 328,184 17,773 345,957
ANEEE Unallocated assets
VENEY & Property, plant and equipment 2
BEREMBEWF - MEKk  Trade and other receivables,
EINE deposits and prepayments 823
RITERNIRE Bank balances and cash 2,369
RABEEME Consolidated total assets 349,151
=L Liabilities
DEaE Segment liabilities 4,344 8,283 12,627
AnEcaE Unallocated liabilities
B REMEIR Trade and other payables 42,241
e —f R EZERA RN Amount due to an intermediate
holding company 1,317,108
FE{IBHRHR 1B Current tax payable 130
HEAR Lease liabilities 256
EEREBEER Deferred tax liabilities 6,283
REaEBE Consolidated total liabilities 1,378,645
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For the year ended 3| December 2022

1. PEEE =
BEMAEEERGENEE &

Il. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

Information about segment assets and liabilities: (Continued)

RFES 7 A "E
Operation of Development of
Wind Farm New Energy Consolidated
FET FE FE7
HK$000 HK$000 HK$000
R-8=-—-& At 31 December 2021
+-RA=+-H
BE Assets
NREE Segment assets 364,432 14,036 378,468
RNEE Unallocated assets
ME-BERRE Property, plant and equipment 71
BEREMBEWF £ Kk  Trade and other receivables,

SEINE deposits and prepayments 4439
BN IE Current tax receivable 574
BOEBRRTAE Bank balances and cash 9517

RREEME Consolidated total assets 393,069
i Liabilities
nEar Segment liabilities 4,163 842 5,005
*NEEE Unallocated liabilities
B 5 REME AR Trade and other payables 701,071
FEf—R R R ABR Amount due to an intermediate
holding company 1,439,008
AT BN IR Current tax payable 2,228
HE&RE Lease liabilities 1753
EERESR Deferred tax liabilities 7,897
HEaREE Consolidated total liabilities 2,156,962
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BE_E__F+_FA=+—HIFE
For the year ended 3| December 2022

1. EEE »
HithYEEE

Il. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

Other segment information:

RREE  MEERE FRE wa
Operation of Development
Wind Farm of New Energy  Unallocated Consolidated

FET FET FET FET

HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
#E-F_-C Year ended 31 December

+ZB=+—-HLEEE 2022
FADEEENEZ Amounts included in the measure

&8 of segment results:

GIEYON Interest income 67 13 7 87
FEMZ Interest expense - - 49 49
ME - -BERRENE Depreciation of property, plant and

equipment 16,476 12 | 16,489
THEBENE Depreciation of right-of-use assets 2,641 - - 2,641
HEWME BERFHEZ  Gain/(loss) on disposal of property,

W,/ (B518) plant and equipment 20 - (65) (45)
ELBEARER Share of results of associates 5,216 - - 5216
PSR Income tax expense 573 8 - 581
RZE§ZZ At 31 December 2022

+=ZB=+-H
SFANEEESNEL Amounts included in the measure

ot I of segment assets:

FREEELM Additions to non-current assets 1,698 52 - 1,750
REVERE 2 5 Interests in associates 191,504 - - 191,504
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BHE—E-—F+HA=+—HIFEE
For the year ended 3| December 2022

1. PEEE = I1. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continved)
HitFEREHE . (@ Other segment information: (Continued)
BSES  FARER KAE A

Operation of ~ Development
Wind Farm  of New Energy Unallocated Consolidated

FET FET FET FET
HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000
HE-S-—-&§ Year ended 31 December
+ZRA=+—HLEEE 2021
SANERENEL Amounts included in the measure
&8 of segment results:
GIEVON Interest income = = 14 14
MEBZ Interest expense - - [16 116
ME -BERRBITE Depreciation of property, plant and
equipment — — 296 296
i3 AN S Share of results of associates 10,268 - - 10,268
FrEREx Income tax expense 916 2,197 = 3,113
RZEZ—§ At 31 December 2021
+=B=+—-H
FADEEENELZ Amounts included in the measure
8! of segment assets:
FERBEEEM Additions to non-current assets - - 3 3
N A=YNC P Interests in associates 212,094 = = 212,094
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BE_E__F+_FA=+—HIFE
For the year ended 3| December 2022

1. 2EEH @ 1. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continved)
WEFHE : Geographical information:
RXEVNHEER AARBZEEDE No geographic information is presented as the operations of
Ko SE IR B 3 D KB (Ui R o Operation of Wind Farm segment and Development of New Energy

segment are all located in the PRC.

REXEERMME: Revenue from major customers:
2022 2021
FET FET
HK$’000 HK$ 000
R%EE D Operation of Wind Farm segment
ERA Customer A TEA
25,771 Not applicable
AR 48 Development of New Energy segment
ZFB Customer B - 9,100
gAC Customer C 15,447 =
41,218 9,100
12. MERE 12. FINANCE COSTS
2022 2021
FET FET
HK$’000 HK$'000
HESENSMX Interest expense on lease liabilities 49 I16
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BHE—E-—F+HA=+—HIFEE
For the year ended 3| December 2022

13. FRGHMAX 13. INCOME TAX EXPENSE
2022 2021
FET FET
HK$’000 HK$ 000
EpRA#R I Current tax
rEERE Provision for current year 1,727 2,601
BEFEBEEE Over-provision in prior year (160) -
1,567 2,601
BT (PH5E32) Deferred tax (note 32) (986) 512
581 3,113
HRAEEHE_T__FK_F No provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax was made as the Group had
——F+ZRA=1+—HIFEIRE no assessable profits arising in or derived from Hong Kong for the
SERFREEEZEFR R L years ended 3| December 2022 and 2021.
RetREBHGIRER-
RE(PRBERERZE) (TEEMR Under the Law of the PRC on Enterprise Income Tax (the “EIT Law")
BE) REEMBREBHRA and Implementation Regulation of the EIT Law, the tax rate of the PRC
TENBABBE_ZE__FR-T subsidiaries is 25% for the years ended 31 December 2022 and 2021.
T —F+ZRB=+—HBLEFEZRE
¥97525%
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BE_E__F+_FA=+—HIFE
For the year ended 3| December 2022

13. i IRHAX = 13. INCOME TAX EXPENSE (Continued)

PSR Bl BRR AR AT E R,/ (B538) T
BREEFSMMEMF 2R

The reconciliation between the income tax expense and the product

of profit/(loss) before tax multiplied by the PRC Enterprise Income Tax

I rate is as follows:
2022 2021
FET TEr
HK$’000 HK$'000

BRIRATER, (B518) Profit/(loss) before tax 608,600 (71,027)
Tﬁq:'ﬁé%ﬁﬂ—%ﬁﬁ% Tax at PRC Enterprise Income Tax rate of 25%

25% (ZEZ—HF 1 25%) (2021: 25%)

StEZIRE 152,150 (17,757)

BARMBAZRBRE Tax effect of income that is not taxable (108,668) (5)
WT?D MAZ 2R E Tax effect of expenses that are not deductible 2,435 101,527

ZEBWBR Dz MBTE Tax effect of gain on bargain purchase - (5,124)
Eﬁﬁ’&ﬂﬂy BB ARZ Tax effect of gain on deconsolidation

WammiRB 8 of subsidiaries (46,387) (73,827)
REHE—BHEATZ Tax effect of gain on deemed disposal

W R 2 of an associate - (2,238)
%fﬁﬁ%ﬁ@jﬁuﬁ Tax effect of share of results of associates

) (1,304) (2,567)
ﬁif—ﬁm = H% MEBZ Tax effect of temporary differences

MBTE not recognised (V1)) 50
AR MIEFEZ Tax effect of tax losses not recognised

MBEE 2,044 2,138
BEFEBEEE Over-provision in prior year (160) -
MBEEZRMBEE Tax effect of tax concession (70) -
PEFENR PRC withholding tax 888 404
RE—HEHEAS K—HE Tax effect of temporary differences

BEABREDE AN D attributable to undistributed profits

URMERZ MG E of a subsidiary and an associate (326) 512
PRI Income tax expense 581 3,113
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U FE AR R B A=

22 Gl

BnEA
BEEERBETE

BEABRAZZEFERE

ME-BERREBEZITE

ERREEZRE

BEBHFX
FEEEFEH)
e~ TEAL R R Al
BIREH 5+ B HRR
HthiEF!

14. PROFIT/(LOSS) FORTHE YEAR

Acquisition-related costs
Auditor's remuneration
Current

Under-provision in prior year

Cost of inventories recognised as an expense
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment
Depreciation of right-of-use assets
Employee benefits expense
(excluding directors’ emoluments)
Salaries, bonuses and allowances
Retirement benefit scheme contributions
Other benefits

e MBHRRMEE
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BHE—E-—F+HA=+—HIFEE
For the year ended 3| December 2022

2022 2021
T#7T FET
HK$’°000 HK$ 000
323 =
1,450 1,850

= 520

1,450 2,370
20,994 =
16,489 296
2,641 =
9,107 3,970
1,479 181
2,676 [
13,262 4262
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For the year ended 3| December 2022

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE
OFFICER’S EMOLUMENTS

15. EERAHEME 15.

REENMEHEINWT ! The remuneration of every director is set out below:
BIkER
fig WaRiak IR &t
Salaries Retirement
and benefit scheme
Fees allowances contributions Total
FET FET FE7 FE7
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
BirEs Executive directors
HETRE Mr. Han Qingping - 3 f 365
TEAE () Mr. Li Lei (note (i)) - 242 Y] 284
IABEE Mr.Wang Guanghui (note (ii))

(Bt 3K i) - 162 35 197

SFREE Mr. Xu Jun - 194 42 236
BIFHGTES Independent non-executive directors

TRERE Mr. Li Dapeng 250 - - 250

REREE Mr. Gordon Ng 250 - - 250

ke Mr. Lau Fai Lawrence 250 - - 250
ot etk 3 Total for 2022 750 921 161 1,832
BEE Executive directors

ASBRAE Mr. Liu Zhiwei (note (ii))

(Bt 5k i) ) - - - =
BETLE Mr. Han Qingping - 301 42 343
TEAE () Mr. Li Lei (note (i)) - L) 4 284
ThERE Mr.Wang Guanghui (note (i))

(ki) - 194 ) 2%
SFELE Mr. Xu Jun - 194 ) 236

BIERGTES Independent non-executive directors
TREERE Mr. Li Dapeng 250 - - 250
SEREE Mr. Gordon Ng 250 - = 250
LKL Mr. Lau Fai Lawrence 250 - - 250
5T —EE Total for 2021 750 931 168 1,849
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15. ERRAEME =

o3

(y ZEBEEER-_Z_—ENMA+AHESA
EA4EE

(i) ENEEER-S-__E+B-+K
BT

(i) BEBREENR_T_—EMB+HEH
BT

FRRBITBABRATESZH
EMEWT

BHE—E-—F+HA=+—HIFEE
For the year ended 3| December 2022

I15. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE
OFFICER’S EMOLUMENTS (Continved)

Notes:

() Mr. Li Lei was re-designated as Chief Executive Officer on 15 April 2021.

(ii) Mr. Wang Guanghui resigned on 26 October 2022.

(i) Mr Liu Zhiwei resigned on 15 April 2021.

The chief executive and executive directors waived emoluments during

the year as follows:

2022 2021

FE FET

HK$’000 HK$000

EBRLE Mr. Liu Zhiwei - 468
BETLEL Mr. Han Qingping 1,292 1,198
TEEE Mr. Li Lei 969 968
IoelERsE Mr. Wang Guanghui 649 774
SFIB Mr. Xu Jun 775 774
3,685 4,182
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#HE

—E T HF+ A=+ —HIFEE

For the year ended 3| December 2022

16.

17.

AfiREFHMAL

FRAFERLLRSHMALTEE
28 (T2 —F: 0EmL ES
ﬁ?ﬁiﬂ%e&ﬁ?ﬁwﬁ‘flSFﬁ%WZéN‘Fr

16. FIVE HIGHEST PAID INDIVIDUALS

The five highest paid individuals in the Group during the year excluded
all (2021: included two) directors whose emoluments are reflected in

the analysis presented in note I5. The emoluments of the five (2021:

NehB (CEZ—F HT=%) A the remaining three) individuals are set out below:
THENEHESINT

2022 2021
FET FET
HK$’000 HK$ 000
BARFH & K2, Basic salaries and allowances 2,475 [,656
BYISTEAL Discretionary bonus - 86
BB FTEIHER Retirement benefit scheme contributions 271 36
2,746 1,778

BREREHE

AEBSEBMAGEREERIA
B ARS8 (T&EHE)) o &8
CEERASREESRRBELNE
ERAREEANER - AEERZ
B 1F A B 7 B A A5 %R it 7K > T {8
BT EHRESF MR LI RERB
B HBREARENREBEER
IMERR T %58

ERBZHEE AR EEAPEK
Fgfﬁzl% BRREF B2

B -ARBAIZHEMB AR BZESR
%HME’\J# B2 LR AR EF 5 &
FULZ I BH o KB BIKEF 5t
Bz —BEAREZTEELME
P

EEm Nk AN 425,625,000/ 7T
(ZTZ—4£ 13490008 7T) BN &
BEE"Z-_"F+-A=1+—HIE
FERCZETE 2 HRe

FEMXBRER (EE) BRAE « 2022F K

17. RETIREMENT BENEFITS SCHEMES

The Group operates a Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme (the
“Scheme”) for all qualifying employees in Hong Kong. The assets of the
Scheme are held separately from those of the Group in funds under
the control of trustee. The Group contributes 5% of relevant payroll
costs to the Scheme, which contribution is matched by employees. In
addition, the Group voluntarily contributes extra funding exceeding

minimum statutory requirements to the Scheme.

The employees of the Company's PRC subsidiaries are members
of the state-managed retirement benefits scheme operated by the
PRC government. The Company's PRC subsidiaries are required to
contribute a certain percentage of their payroll to the retirement
benefits scheme to fund the benefits. The only obligation of the
Group with respect to the retirement benefits scheme is to make the

required contributions under the scheme.

The total cost charged to profit or loss of HK$I1,625000 (2021:
HK$349,000) represents contributions payable to these schemes by
the Group during the year ended 3| December 2022.
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For the year ended 3| December 2022

18. SRREH  (§58) 18. EARNINGS/(LOSS) PER SHARE
SRELRH, (BB ERTHEE The calculation of the basic earnings/(loss) per share is based on the
stE following:
2022 2021
FET TET
HK$’000 HK$ 000
im#l, (E51R) Profit/(loss)
A ESRELRH, Profit/(loss) for the year attributable to
(B518) ME 2 AR F owners of the Company for the purpose of
mE ANBGEAEERN/ calculating basic earnings/(loss) per share
(B518) 458,373 (76,499)
2022 2021
4408 4= Number of shares
A ESRELRH, Number of shares for the purpose of
(518 M= 2 RHDEE calculating basic earnings/(loss) per share 4,368,995,668 4,368,995,668
HRBE_TE__ER_T_—F No diluted earnings/(loss) per share has been presented as there
TZA=+—HLEFEARDETE were no potential ordinary shares outstanding for the years ended 3|
fERR AEUEZIERESR December 2022 and 2021.

#8518
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For the year ended 3| December 2022

19. W% -BERRMA

19. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

HELY An%E RAR
k¥ HERRHF HARIA MAERK it ERIE et
Wind
Leasehold energy Furniture
land and plant and Moulds and office Motor  Construction
buildings equipment and tools equipment vehicles in progress Total
FET Tz FA7T FET &7 FE7T FET
HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000
723 Cost
RZEZ—£—F—F At fanary 2021 - - 369 6,640 284 - 9,853
RE Additions = = - 3 - - 3
ERER Exchange differences - - - 20 - - 20
—EREARHE Deconsolidation of a subsidiary
ERIN - - (369) (4477) (1441) - (6.287)
£3A4 (H3836()  Business combination (note 36(c)) 11,594 52,966 - 24 604 - 65,388
RIZZ-% At 31 December 2021 and
+ZA=t-Ak | January 2022
“®°"%#-A-H 11,594 52,966 - 2,410 2,007 - 68,977
hE Additions - 165 - 52 - 1,533 1,750
HE Disposals - - - (651) (D) - (112)
ERESR Exchange differences (983) (4,492) - (58) 49) (53) (5,635)
RIB-—& At 31 December 2022
+ZA=t-H 10,611 48,639 - 1,753 1,897 1,480 64,380
RitRERAE Accumulated depreciation
and impairment
RZBZ—F—F—H At January 202 - - 369 6573 2549 - 9491
FEELH Charge for the year - - - I 295 - 296
EREE Exchange differences - - - 18 - - 18
— &A= EH Deconsolidation of a subsidiary
FAAK - - (369) (4477) (1441) - (6.287)
RZE-—-% At 31 December 2021 and
+ZR=+-8k | January 2022
“®2°"%-B-H - - - 2,115 1,403 - 3,518
FEEXH Charge for the year 1,650 14,482 - 78 279 - 16,489
HE Disposals - - - (586) (57 - (643)
ERER Exchange differences (56) (494) - (36) (8) - (594)
RIZ__F At 31 December 2022
+=A=+—H 1,594 13,988 - 1,571 1,617 - 18,770
REE Carrying amount
RZEZ_% At 31 December 2022
+-B=+-H 9,017 34,651 - 182 280 1,480 45,610
RZBZ—% At 31 December 2021
+ZA=1+-H 11,594 52,966 = 295 604 = 65,459
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BHE—E-—F+HA=+—HIFEE
For the year ended 3| December 2022

20. EARERE 20. RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS
TifERE
Land use rights
FET
HK$ 000
A _E_—F—H—H At | January 2021 -
EH A6 (FEE36(c)) Business combination (note 36(c)) 27,874
R _E_—F+"A=+—Hk At 31 December 2021 and | January 2022
- "%—HF—H 27,874
e Depreciation (2,641)
BERELR Exchange differences (2,271)
RZE-_"F+"H=1+—H At 3| December 2022 22,962
EREEE229620008T (T - — Right-of-use assets of HK$22,962,000 (2021: HK$27,874,000)
F 127,874,000 7T) AR PEN T represent land use rights located in the PRC.
Ui A o
HEREROAEZHBHNKE Details of total cash outflows for leases are set out in note 36(a).
36(a) ©
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BE_E__F+_FA=+—HIFE
For the year ended 3| December 2022

21. KRB AR 2= 21.

RoB-=F+=A=+—8 KB

INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES

Particulars of the subsidiaries as at 3| December 2022 are as follows:

NAIZFBUWT :

EfAL Sk SR BATEL
a8 EMREEHE  RYRRBHRE REEEZER FTEEH
Place of Particulars of
incorporation/ issued share
registration and capital/registered Percentage of equity attributable
Name operation and paid up capital to the Company Principal activities
2022 2021
ER HE 8= %
Direct Indirect Direct  Indirect
PERKXER (BB s W BER 100% - S0% 50%  AEABKER
BIRAR Hong Kong Ordinary shares of Distribution of elevator
China Energine (Hong Kong) HK$2 products
Limited
NBRERERAT BA BT BER - - 100% - kRERRK
New Image Development Hong Kong Ordinary share of Investment holding
Limited HKS |
MEERARAR BE 1Bz &R 100% - 100% - REER
Crownpluss International Hong Kong Ordinary share of Investment holding
Limited HKS |
PRMABRTEEER  PE B %25,00000070 65% - 65% - DHEHEH
REARAT The PRC RMB25,000,000 Distribution of
(MR AR broadband business
(RzE®))
Beijing CASC Energine
New Energy Technology
Co, Ltd*

("Beijing New Energy”)
(note (i)

FEMXBRER (EE) BRAE « 2022F K



21. RMBARZER =

E21

EfAL
ERRAEENE
Place of
incorporation/
registration and

Name operation

MXER (£F) &7 T
tEERAT The PRC
(TBERAZ))

GEION@Y

Aerospace Long Yuan
(Benxi) Wind Power Co,,

Ltd* (“Longyuan Benxi")

(notes (i), (ii))

PRMXSRMERE BB
BRAF The PRC
(ME A EIRR))
GEI@)
Beijing CASC
Energine New Technology
Co, Ltd*
(“Beijing New Technology”)
(note (ii))

2 R

() RAEFEMzPIHIEERE-

(ii) N ZEBEZ—F+Z A AEBEHERER
K2 (REERERIOGER 2 BHER
8l) Z EEHIM R ET —RTH
B2 BIAEEAERERNEZESR
BRRE AgE LM Ik
R EZERN AL BRRFZEER

AEEZ —HERBRAR ALK

(i) FREBERRTEZMZERESL

ENaE L

LRFIHEEEER BENER

BRETEZEZNB AT

e MBHRRMEE
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BHE—E-—F+HA=+—HIFEE
For the year ended 3| December 2022

21. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

gaTkRE i

RYRREHE
Particulars of
issued share
capital/registered

and paid up capital

AR #93,800,0007%
RMB93,800,000

AE#10,0000007T
RMB10,000,000

BATE
REEEZER

Percentage of equity attributable
to the Company
2022 2021
EER @HE BE %

Direct Indirect Direct  Indirect
- 40% - 40%
- 65% - 65%

b For identification purpose only

FEEE

Principal activities

RGEE

Operation of wind farm

AR %
New energy
development

(i) Sino-foreign joint entity enterprise registered in the PRC.

(ii) In December 2021, the Group signed an acting in concert agreement
with a non-controlling interest of Longyuan Benxi, an existing 40% owned
associate of the Group, which gives the Group the right to direct the vote
of that non-controlling interest at directors and equity holders’ meetings of

Longyuan Benxi. Therefore, Longyuan Benxi is accounted for as a subsidiary

of the Group.

(i)~ Non-wholly owned and Hong Kong-Macau-Taiwan invested enterprise

registered in the PRC.

The above list contains the particulars of subsidiaries which principally

affected the results, assets or liabilities of the Group.
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BE_E__F+_FA=+—HIFE
For the year ended 3| December 2022

21. RMBARZERE @ 21. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (Continved)
TRIITAEBMEEAFEH EER The following tables show information on the subsidiaries that have
MEASINER U THBERBRE non-controlling interests material to the Group. The summarised
HEERNABBMER SR financial information represents amounts before inter-company

eliminations.
a8 IEEHRAER IEEHAEE
Name Beijing New Energy Beijing New Technology
2022 2021 2022 2021
TESEME Principal place of business/ country hEPE FE/HE
o 5% 3L T 7E B of incorporation PRC/PRC PRC/PRC
JEEFI MR ELRA % of equity attributable to
EmzBDL non-controlling interests 35% 35% 35% 35%
FET FET FET FHET
HK$’000 HK$ 000 HK$’000 HK$ 000
®+=-B=+-8: At 31 December:
FRBEE Non-current assets 2 71 38 -
TEEE Current assets 717 2,552 25,860 21,986
E| = Non-current liabilities - - (843) -
nEaR Current liabilities (40,585) (504,514) (7,448) (3,070)
(BR) /BEZE Net (liabilities)/assets (39,866) (501,891) 17,607 18916
REtFEERI MR Accumulated non-controlling
interests (13,953) (175,662) 6,162 6,621
HE+-A=1+—HIt Year ended 31 December:
FE:
W& Revenue - - 15,447 9,271
il Profit 434,328 151 304 6,590
PHKEAEEE Total comprehensive income 434,328 5] 304 6,590

NETIFEFIMERZ  Profit allocated to non-controlling
Al interests 152,015 53 106 2306

mEES (FrA) / Net cash (used in)/generated from

EXZRERE operating activities (265) 412 2,782 9416
REEHEE/ Net cash generated from/(used in)

(FA) 2HRE 38 investing activities 2 () (58) -
RERREEEY Net (decrease)/increase in cash and

(L) /181035 cash equivalents (263) 41| 2,724 9416

166 hEMKEEER (EE) ARAT « 202265



SR aMBER M

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

21. RMBARZER @

BHE—E-—F+HA=+—HIFEE
For the year ended 3| December 2022

21. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

&8 RETE
Name Longyuan Benxi
2022 2021
FTEEEMY Principal place of business/country HEhE
ARSI ERR of incorporation PRC/PRC
ElZedllid Sl SR E % of equity attributable to
BmZBNMT non-controlling interests 60% 60%
TR FHT
HK$’000 HK$'000
®+=B=+-AH: At 31 December:
FRBEE Non-current assets 68,532 65,388
RBEE Current assets 61,252 55,165
nEaR Current liabilities (10,207) (4,163)
BEFE Net assets 119,577 116390
REtIRERIM R Accumulated non-controlling interests 71,748 69,834
#iZ+-B=+—HILHE Year ended 31 December:
E:
Wi Revenue 25,771 AEB N/A
B8 Loss (4,125) AEA NA
HRXRHE Total comprehensive expense (4,125) AEBRA NA
DETFFEFHERER 2 Loss allocated to non-controlling interests
B8 (2,475) TEBRA N/A
X FIRERE R Dividend paid to non-controlling interests
PE=) (1,360) AEBA NA
RETHEE2HESEE  Net cash generated from operating activities 29,875 AEBRA NA
REREFMAZIFEF8E  Net cash used in investing activities (1,322) TBERA N/A
MEBZEMAZREFE  Net cash used in financing activities (2,178) AEBRA NA
RERREEEMIEM Net increase in cash and cash equivalents
et 26,375 BB NA
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BE_E__F+_FA=+—HIFE
For the year ended 3| December 2022

21. RNB AR 2R @ 21. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)
RIBZZH+ZA=+—H &% As at 3| December 2022, the bank balances and cash of the
BB ra XAREFSENETE Group'’s subsidiaries in the PRC denominated in RMB amounted to
B RIRE 543344000870 (ZEZ— HK$43,344,000 (2021: HK$22,799,000). Conversion of RMB into
F 122,799,000 7T) ° AR R iR s foreign currencies is subject to the PRC's Foreign Exchange Control
KZHhEIINEEBEROREE SE Regulations and Administration of Settlement, Sale and Payment of
R EEERERR - Foreign Exchange Regulations.

22. REEAT z s 22. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES

2022 2021
FET THT
HK$’000 HK$ 000
JF LR : Unlisted interests:
DMEEEFE Share of net assets 191,504 212,094
W_E__F+"_FB=+—H &% Details of the Group's associates as at 3| December 2022 are as
BEE B ZFHBOT follows:
ML R BHMR L3 3]
iR RABEME BRRPHR ERsEaza2t FEEH
Place of
incorporation/ Particulars of Percentage of
registration registered and equity attributable
Name and operation paid up capital to the Group Principal activities
2022 2021
IFEFRNEEARAT  PHE AR 13333200007 25% 25% BREE
(DIgRER)) (3EG) The PRC RMB333,320,000 Operation of wind farm
Jiangsu Longyuan Wind
Power Co, Ltd.*
(“Jiangsu Longyuan”)
(note (i)
EHERBRANEERRAR TH A #5438,200,0007 15.35% 1535% EIGEE
(TEHAER)) The PRC RMB438,200,000 Operation of wind farm
(HEONO)
Jilin Longyuan Wind Power
Co, Ltd.* ("filin Longyuan”)
(notes (i), (ii))
AEEMXBERAHE  RE AR #78,0000007¢ - 051% HERHHAR
BRAE (HEH() The PRC RMB78,000,000 Manufacture and distribution
Inner Mongolia CASC of wind turbine generators
Energine Composite Materials
Co, Ltd* (note (i)
* E3E: il > For identification purpose only
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22. RIREAR2ZEE » 22.
Hiz -
0) ReEEEMzRIEERE.

iy RIBIZHE+ZA=+—H K&
EERRZLZANCREIZERE
EENREBEFTEFIMG Rt &R
AEERALEEAHZEREEKX
REN Eﬁzéi’&ﬁ)\ﬁﬁi‘%zxﬁ%‘ﬁ
1535% w2 i AT

TRITAEBEAMEATNE
e ZEHERATDERRDERGS
FHBRERAARR - EFNMBERE
ENUMEADREEBYHREE
AR M B RERMZS] o

BHE—E-—F+HA=+—HIFEE
For the year ended 3| December 2022

INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (Continved)

Notes:

() Sino-foreign joint entity enterprise registered in the PRC.

(ii) The Group is entitled to appoint up to and has appointed two out of nine
directors to the board of directors of this entity as at 3| December 2022.
Hence, in the opinion of the directors of the Company, the Group has
significant influence over the entity. Accordingly, the entity is accounted for as
a 15.35% owned associate of the Group.

The following tables show information on the associates that are
material to the Group. These associates are accounted for in the
consolidated financial statements using the equity method. The
summarised financial information presented is based on the HKFRS
financial statements of the associates.

i LEREE EHEEE
Name Jiangsu Longyuan Jilin Longyuan
2022 2021 2022 2021
By Principal place of business/ fEfE hE hE
AL LT TE RIS country of incorporation PRC/PRC PRC/PRC
TEEK Principal activities RGBS RIZES
Operation of wind farm Operation of wind farm
FEBEGERAEE % of equity attributable
ZBE7L to the Group 25% 25% 15.35% 15.35%
FET FET FET FAET
HK$’000 HK$ 000 HK$’000 HK$ 000
B+=A=+—H: At3I December:
FREBEE Non-current assets 405,997 508,954 706,011 830,560
ﬁ@]:ﬁ}? Current assets 183,108 174,842 239,864 301,089
FREnaR Non-current liabilities - - (736) (348)
nBEE Current liabilities (143,909) (185,778) (422,631) (560,688)
i\éﬁfﬁ Net assets 445,196 498,018 522,508 570613
AEBNEEGZ Group’s share of carrying
Eﬁﬁﬁ amount of interests 111,299 124,505 80,205 87,589
#iZ+-HB=4+—H Year ended 31l
ILEE: December:
et Revenue 124,830 156,154 120,213 128,342
AEEHENKRZEW  Profit and total
gk comprehensive income
for the year 20,718 36,676 241 600
BUBEABRRE Dividend received from the
associate 8,003 3,206 - -
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BE_E__F+_FA=+—HIFE
For the year ended 3| December 2022

22. REQAT 2R =

22. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (Continved)

218 RETE
Name Longyuan Benxi
2021
TEEEME Principal place of business/country of incorporation hE thE
ST B X PRC/PRC
FEEK Principal activities RiSES
Operation of
wind farm
FEERLKRAERZ 2B % of equity attributable to the Group 40%
FET
HK$ 000
w+=-B=+—H: At 31 December:
EREBEE Non-current assets A N/A
MEEE Current assets TEH N/A
neaE Current liabilities TEH N/A
BE%E Net assets REA N/A
AEBED LR ZREE Group's share of carrying amount of interests AEA N/A
g§EZE+-A=+—HLEE: Year ended 31 December:
W Revenue 28,207
AEEGHNRE B R mARLE Profit and total comprehensive income for the year 2518
BEWEEABRE Dividend received from the associate 834
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e MBHRRMEE
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BHE—E-—F+HA=+—HIFEE
For the year ended 3| December 2022

=8 23. INVENTORIES
2022 2021
FET FET
HK$’000 HK$ 000
R Raw materials 2,208 2,533
ERRHEMMEKR #ER  24. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES,
AREA DEPOSITS AND PREPAYMENTS
2022 2021
FET FET
HK$’000 HK$ 000
87 R Trade receivables 49,335 498,374
TREIEEBEER Allowance for ECL (23,336) (460,115)
25,999 38,259
FEW—RIKT B A IEZEFIE  Amount due from non-controlling interest
R ARIE of a subsidiary 3,918 4,281
Hith Others 5,057 6,253
34,974 48,793
AREBREEE N REFMRFE & The Group allows credit periods for not more than six months to its
HEMERARGTEE N BR/NE customers for sales of electricity, provision for technical services and
ANEER- sales of new energy systems.
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BE_E__F+_FA=+—HIFE
For the year ended 3| December 2022

24. EEREMEKRR - BHER 24.

™ @)

REESHAREEREH (B Ka
sAHEIEE) JImZ B 5 UK (G0
BEREEERER) ZRE DT

TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES,
DEPOSITS AND PREPAYMENTS (Continued)

The following is an aging analysis of trade receivables, net of ECL
allowances, presented based on the invoices dates at the end of

the reporting period, which approximate the respective revenue

. recognition dates:
2022 2021
FET T#71
HK$’000 HK$'000
30HA Within 30 days 8,423 3977
31E90H 31 to 90 days 4,624 2,036
91Z180H 91 to 180 days 3,629 1,840
181 Z365H [81 to 365 days 2,893 7272
e —F Over | year 6,430 23,134
25,999 38,259

RZE_Z_F+-B=+—H>
FEBEEZRNNGHRBIERER
mfE17,576,0008 7T (ZE-Z—%F:
34,282,00078 70) BYMEWCER A MR
EHHREAB -TACBBREH
12,952,000 (ZE - —4&F :
32,247,000/ 7t) EBAAO0OKRH MU k>
MERERENCRERAAEBRRFE
BEBFR WIEZRBURRAE
HNoREBUERZEEHFTEEA
IR o

AEE-RESMAERYSABNE
BREREHEE RARREAE
K5 BHI36S BB — R A M
B ERTEENBELETERRIEEH
ZETEBERER-

172 hEMKEEER (EE) ARAT « 202265

As at 31 December 2022, included in the Group's trade receivables
balance are debtors with aggregate carrying amount of HK$17,576,000
(2021: HK$34,282,000) which are past due as at the reporting
date. Included in the past due balances of HK$12,952,000 (2021:
HK$32,247,000) has been past due 90 days or more but is not
considered as in default based on repayment records for those
customers and continuous business with the Group. The Group does

not hold any collateral over these balances.

The Group will normally recognise full allowance for all receivables
overdue 365 days because historical experiences is such that
receivables that are past due 365 days are generally not recoverable,
except for some major customers with longer credit terms at the

discretion of the executive directors.



25.

26.

27.

SR aMBER M
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BHE—E-—F+HA=+—HIFEE
For the year ended 3| December 2022

BHNEE 25. CONTRACT ASSETS
2022 2021
FET FET
HK$’000 HK$ 000
5 R I D R (e Sales of wind turbines and energy storage
MEREE m and related products 12,646 68,244
TREIEEBEEE Allowance for ECL (12,646) (68,244)
e E ARR 26. AMOUNTS DUE FROM ASSOCIATES

MR TBHREERBEEEHE61,00087T

(ZEZ—F 11760008 7T) BHFT
BERBEARER RERREXRE
;ﬁo

SRITEBRRAE
RITAERIZ0.0I1%E1.75% (B —

F 1 001%E1.75%) 2 RITHIBERE
8o

RITHEGREETIUNERERERD
SEE R LN SHERIRUIR -

27.

All the balances net of allowance for ECL of HK$161,000 (2021:
HK$176,000) are unsecured, non-interest bearing and repayable on

demand.

BANK BALANCES AND CASH

Bank balances carry interest at prevailing market rates which range
from 0.01% to 1.75% (2021:0.01% to 1.75%) per annum.

Included in bank balances are the following amounts denominated in
currencies other than the functional currency of the respective group

entities to which they are related.

2022 2021
FAET FET

HK$’000 HK$'000

Bt HK$ 1,392 806
S US$ 12 | 337
1,404 2,143
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BE_E__F+_FA=+—HIFE
For the year ended 3| December 2022

28. BB REfMEMSR 28. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES
2022 2021
FET T
HK$°000 HK$ 000
BHEMR Trade payables 50,577 507,338
HM TR Other payables 3,448 198,738
54,025 706,076
BSRAMREZHRZRE DTN The aging analysis of trade payables based on invoice date, is as
o follows:
2022 2021
FETT FHT
HK$’000 HK$ 000
30HA Within 30 days 7,377 2,311
31E90H 31 to 90 days 226 -
BE—F Over | year 42,974 505,027
50,577 507,338
AEEBERHEREEEI0E0EM The Group normally receives credit period for 30 to 90 days from its
E8H- suppliers.
29. Eft—RPRZERAER 29. AMOUNT DUE TO AN INTERMEDIATE
HOLDING COMPANY
FEAT — o R R IR A Bl R 2 B AR 48 The amount due to an intermediate holding company is unsecured,
EEREBERER non-interest bearing and repayable on demand.
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BHE—E-—F+HA=+—HIFEE
For the year ended 3| December 2022

30. HEAR 30. LEASE LIABILITIES
BEHERGR REBASHRZAE
Present value of
Minimum lease payments minimum lease payments
2022 2021 2022 2021
FE7T TAET FET FHET
HK$’000 HK$ 000 HK$’000 HK$'000
—FR Within one year 258 1,546 256 1,497
—FEEME More than one year, but not
exceeding two years - 258 - 256
258 1,804 256 1,753
B RRHMFER  Less: Future finance charges (2) (51) N/A N/A
MEaBZHRE Present value of lease
obligations 256 [,753 256 1,753
B 12ERR Less: Amount due for
LR settlement within 12
M8 (517 months (shown under
MEARE) current liabilities) (256) (1,497)
NEB®EMAE  Amount due for settlement
2B G5 after 12 months (shown
E| =) under non-current liabilities) - 256
HEaEMERAZIMETILERE The weighted average incremental borrowing rates applied to lease
FEZ458% (ZFZ—5 1 458%) ° liabilities is 4.58% (2021: 4.58%).
31. RIS 31. WARRANTY PROVISION
2022 2021
FET FHT
HK$’000 HK$ 000
K—H—H At | January - _
RSt Provisions recognised 873 -
BERELR Exchange differences (30) -
R+-_B=+—H At 3| December 843 -
REBHEEESRENEBIRE MR The warranty provision represents the present value of the directors’
Rz REEEZREMHLEN H best estimate of the future outflow of economic benefits that will be
ARMEEHREGT2RE required under the Group's obligations for warranties of technical

services provided.
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#HE

—E T HF+ A=+ —HIFEE

For the year ended 3| December 2022

32.

BEWRIEAR 32. DEFERRED TAX LIABILITIES
—HHE
AR k-
Ef BE2a
ERERE  kAREH 45t
Undistributed
Revaluation profits of a
of right-of-use subsidiary and
assets an associate Total
TFET TFET THET
HK$000 HK$000 HK$000
R ZE-—%—F—H At | January 2021 - 399 399
FREZRIH Charge to profit or loss for the year = 512 512
EBaft (Ma36() Business combination (note 36(c)) 6,968 - 6,968
fE R =% Exchange differences — 18 18
RIEZ—F At 31 December 2021 and | January 2022
+ZA=+—Hk
—B__f£—HF—H 6,968 929 7,897
FARB@ KA Credit to profit or loss for the year (660) (326) (986)
EREE Exchange differences (568) (60) (628)
N " At 31 December 2022
+ZA=+—H 5,740 543 6,283

RZIZEZZHF+ZA=+—H %&
B {5t R8N AR TERT184967,334,00078
T (ZZEZ—4% :59,160,00087T) &
BRI EF o EA - AR KREE
st RREM KR RN BB
RIEERIBEE B ARERRE
[E518 7 §51866,408,00078 7T (:%:—
T © 58,364,0007870) A] R A4 &
BRI S WEEﬂEHﬁE_v__Ei
TETAFE(CEI—FIHgIEC
FECENE) BEREIER-

FEMXBRER (EE) BRAE « 2022F K

As at 3| December 2022, the Group has estimated unused tax losses
of HK$67,334,000 (2021: HK$59,160,000) available for offsetting
against future profits. No deferred tax asset has been recognised in
respect of the tax losses during the year due to unpredictability of
future profit streams. Included in unrecognised tax losses are losses of
HK$66,408,000 (2021: HK$58,364,000) that may be carried forward
indefinitely. The remaining unrecognised tax losses will expire within
five years from 2023 to 2027 (2021: from 2022 to 2026).
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BHE—E-—F+HA=+—HIFEE
For the year ended 3| December 2022

33. g% 33. SHARE CAPITAL
RME
Number &8
of shares Amount
i
HK$ 000
EREE.10ETZ Ordinary shares of
HiEk HK$0.10 each
ETE Authorised:
RZEZ—F—F—H+ At January 2021, 31 December 2021,
“Z-F+ZA | January 2022 and 3| December 2022
=+—-B-ZB_ZF
—A-BARZ2-"H
+ZA=+—H 10,000,000,000 1,000,000
BETRAR . Issued and fully paid:
RZEZ—F—HF—H+ At January 2021, 31 December 2021,
B -5+ZH | January 2022 and 3| December 2022
=+-B-2%-"%
—A-BRIBZF
+ZA=+—H 4,368,995,668 436,900
ZEREEEXN UEFRAEEANE The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities in the Group will
BRENFELES ARTEBRE®L be able to continue as a going concern while maximising the return to
BREEGZ TEMAREFNES shareholders through the optimisation of the debt and equity balance.
B3R - AE BB BRI EEFRITFAR The Group's overall strategy remains unchanged from prior year.
o
FEEZEARERERRE EFRE The capital structure of the Group consists of debt, which includes
EER - HEEEKREM—ETEE the borrowings, lease liabilities and amounts due to an intermediate
RABAR (HBRRERBEEEY R holding company, net of cash and cash equivalents and equity
AREEEARGER (BE2#1T attributable to owners of the Company, comprising issued share capital,
Bx-RERREER)) reserves and accumulated losses.
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BE_E__F+_FA=+—HIFE
For the year ended 3| December 2022
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33. SHARE CAPITAL (Continued)

The management of the Group reviews the capital structure regularly.
The management considers the cost of capital and the risks associated

with each class of capital, and will balance its overall capital structure.

The externally imposed capital requirement for the Group is in order
to maintain the Company's listing on the Stock Exchange it has to have
a public float of at least 25% of the shares.

The Group receives a report from the share registrars weekly
on substantial share interests showing the non-public float and it
demonstrates continuing compliance with the 25% limit throughout
the year. As at 3| December 2022, 39.36% (2021: 39.36%) of the

shares were in public hands.
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34. ZATIMBIRARKEHESE 34. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
L) AND RESERVE MOVEMENT OF THE

() F2RAMBRRE

COMPANY

(a) Statement of financial position of the Company

2022 2021
FET FAET
HK$’000 HK$'000
BE ASSETS
JEREEE Non-current assets
MB AR Interests in subsidiaries 158,502 158,512
JEREN T EEE Total non-current assets 158,502 158,512
RENEE Current assets
HthEIE e K Other receivables, deposits and
AR prepayments 822 2,946
EW—MEKIBABR  Amount due from a subsidiary 7,963 18,801
RITEGRMIRE Bank balances and cash 1,544 1263
REEERE Total current assets 10,329 23010
afR LIABILITIES
g b=k Current liabilities
HtEL ™0 Other payables 1,315 2,103
JE {5 — 5 AR R 1R G Amount due to an intermediate
NCIEN holding company 1,317,108 1,439,008
e —RIKMBABF  Amount due to a subsidiary 848 =
HEESE Lease liabilities 256 1,497
mEBEAEE Total current liabilities 1,319,527 1,442,608
wEaERE Net current liabilities (1,309,198) (1,419,598)
JERENEE Non-current liabilities
HEAE Lease liabilities - 256
JEREaEEE Total non-current liabilities - 256
afFRE NET LIABILITIES (1,150,696) (1,261,342)
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3. ZATIMBRARRHBE 34. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
LN AND RESERVE MOVEMENT OF THE
COMPANY (Continued)

() FARNUBRAR @) (a) Statement of financial position of the Company
(Continued)
Byt 2022 2021
Note F#r FAET
HK$’000 HK$'000
e EQUITY
-¢.9:-11 Capital and reserves
(N Share capital 436,900 436,900
(G Reserves 34(b) (1,587,596) (1,698242)
e TOTAL DEFICIENCY (1,150,696) (1261,342)
KEEEN _E_=F=H4 Approved by the Board of Directors on 31 March 2023 and are
=+—HH#E THUATEENR signed on its behalf by:
REE !
BET i
Han Qingping Xu Jun
HiTEE HITEE
Executive Director Executive Director
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34. ZATIMBIRARKEHESE 34. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
8= AND RESERVE MOVEMENT OF THE
COMPANY (Continued)

(b) TATEBEEH (b) Reserve movement of the Company
RifER  KBUER  EREE  RAEW e
Share Special Exchange Accumulated
premium reserve reserve losses Total

TET FET TET TET TET
HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$'000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000

RIBZ-5—F—H At Janvary 202 2,732,397 86971 - (4071,829) (1,252461)
ERZAMTEE Total comprehensive expense for
the year - - (34933) (410,848) (445,781)

RZB_-% At 31 December 202/ and

TZA=t-Bk | January 2022

“2°"%-F-H 2,732,397 86,971 (34,933)  (4,482,677)  (1,698,242)
FRZENEG/ Total comprehensive income/

(%) % (expense) for the year - - 121,860 (11,214) 110,646
S At 31 December 2022

+ZA=+-H 2,732,397 86,971 86,927  (4,493,891)  (1,587,596)

35. {i#ifl 35. RESERVES
() HEE (a) Group

rEEREERHEINGS The amounts of the Group's reserves and movements therein
BakEME2EBREREAS are presented in the consolidated statement of profit or loss
BanBERET - and other comprehensive income and consolidated statement of

changes in equity.
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35. (% =

(b) HRFEEERAE

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

R17EE

RREBRERTERTE
Bin B EIRATHE D KT A
RERER > KRR E R
REEZNKEH AR
BENNEABERER
mAREEHEIBANGE
%o

B

AEBZHRFERRERA
BAERITRAMBERAR
AIFTEANRBARE &
TRAABZEZELR
BEAEER-—ANLtE
NB+—BETEHAM
HEMBEESR 2 QH
116,025,0007 7t K B FE 22
REMNEBEE_ZS—1E
+TZA=+T—HLFER
Bo

ERHE

EREAHEEERGENH
RRZBINEBMEER
FRENSER R &
BHREEMBREMW
& 4(e)(iii) P 80 & 5t XK B2
Ho
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35. RESERVES (Continued)

(b) Nature and purpose of reserves

(i)

(i)

Share premium

Under the Companies Law of the Cayman Islands, the
share premium account is available for distribution to the
shareholders of the Company, provided that immediately
following the date on which the dividend is proposed to
be distributed, the Company is in a position to pay off its
debts as they fall due in the ordinary course of business of

the Company.

Special reserve

The special reserve of the Group represents the
difference between the nominal amount of the share
capital issued by the Company and the nominal amount of
the issued share capital of the subsidiaries acquired by the
Company and the aggregate amount of HK$I 16,025,000
transferred from other reserves pursuant to the Group's
reorganisation on || August 1997 and the amount of
dividend recognised and paid for the year ended 3|
December 2015.

(iiij) Exchange reserve

The exchange reserve comprises all foreign exchange
differences arising from the translation of the financial
statements of foreign operations. The reserve is dealt with
in accordance with the accounting policies set out in note

4(e)(iii) to the consolidated financial statements.
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8% ANOEREAIFREE
gH-MEBEETHEL BRI
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For the year ended 3| December 2022

36. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

(a) Reconciliation of liabilities arising from financing

activities

The table below details changes in the Group's liabilities arising
from financing activities, including both cash and non-cash
changes. Liabilities arising from financing activities are those for
which cash flows were, or future cash flows will be, classified in
the Group'’s consolidated statement of cash flows as cash flows

from financing activities.

HEaR

Lease liabilities

(FifzE30)

(note 30)

TET

HK$'000

RZE_—%—F—H At | January 2021 3,183

MERLRE Financing cash flows (1,546)

FEMAX Interest expense I16
RIEZ—F+-A=1+—HkK At 31 December 2021 and | January 2022

“E-"#—-F—H 1,753

MERERE Financing cash flows (1,546)

R Interest expense 49

B _&+"A=+—H At 3| December 2022 256
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36. FERMERERME » 36. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS (Continued)
(b) MEBARRBSRS AR
RTEIZFNARBTEH RE

(b) Deconsolidation of subsidiaries

On |7 August 2022, two subsidiaries of the Group were wound

E = PN . —
NRTNBERZEBEAR
W*%%%Eﬁuﬁ%kﬁﬂ
AR/ REEEBERATNAER-
l%’$$@%£%ﬁ£Eﬂ
B MRFLERABESARR

up by the High Court of Hong Kong by way of a creditor's
compulsory winding up/shareholder voluntary winding up
following the formal appointment of their liquidators on 18
August 2022. The Group, therefore, lost control over them

which were then deconsolidated from the Group.

FEE-

REHGAARBHZAERE

Net liabilities at the date of deconsolidation were as follows:

BT :
2022
T
HK$’000
RITHER Bank balances 3
B2 REHMEAR Trade and other payables (185,550)
NN Amount due to the Company (317,110)
BHGEAREERE Net liabilities deconsolidated (502,657)
FRFRIE T R A B Release of amount due to the Company 317,110
MEABBUHA S ARZ IR Gain on deconsolidation of subsidiaries
(FFzE10) (note 10) 185,547
B Total consideration -
BUHGA A AREENIREMEFEE - Net cash outflow arising on deconsolidation:
BB A ARNIRERITEEEY >  Cash and cash equivalents, comprising
B RITHER bank balances, deconsolidated 3)

A B —F+—A+H &R On 10 November 2021, a subsidiary of the Company was

A—fENEARREBEERNE
EREABRKBBSF ERU
RREASGEESNFE K
M AEBAREHEESE M
HIEBFBHEEARNAKER -

FEMXBRER (EE) BRAE « 2022F K

wound up by the High Court of Hong Kong by way of
a creditor's compulsory winding up following the formal
appointment of its liquidator on the same date. The Group,
therefore, lost control over it which was then deconsolidated

from the Group.
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36. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS (Continued)

(b) Deconsolidation of subsidiaries (Continued)

REUHEGR S ARBBHZEERER Net liabilities at the date of deconsolidation were as follows:
BT
2021
T
HK$'000
RITEAFRIRE Bank balances and cash 99
H &K Other payables (295,407)
I AREAVNEIE Amount due to the Company (434,818)
BUHGREARERFE Net liabilities deconsolidated (730,126)
FRIRIE AT AR B Release of amount due to the Company 434,818
—BIB AR EUEGREARZ Gain on deconsolidation of a subsidiary
W (EEE10) (note 10) 295,308
B Total consideration =
BB B AREENIREREFEE . Net cash outflow arising on deconsolidation:
BUHAREARNIRERIREEME/Y)>  Cash and cash equivalents, comprising bank
AREBRTEGRERE balances and cash, deconsolidated (99)
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36. IFEBRERERME @

(<)

EBoH

RTE—F+ "R rEER
RERAEZIFERIMEERTIL
—BTPiHE MY AEEERE
BERZZEZRREFEANG
& LETZIFERMEEDRE
ZHER R BERARERE
S aialing PNSIUNG

At AEBRERAZZER
DIREBEEEZEXFSHBBER
REANEZEEREZATE
EWHE MAMEEZBRAY
ERRAE 2 W 8,953,000
TERBE_ZE_—F+_A8
S+ BHLEFEZEEERR
FEESR o

REHBGHBBAEERER
EREZREREZ ATERK
HEEEFBHANT

36. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS (Continued)

(o)

Business combination

In December 2021, the Group entered into an acting in concert
agreement with a non-controlling interest of Longyuan Benxi
which gives the Group the right to direct the vote of that non-
controlling interest at directors’ and equity holders' meetings of
Longyuan Benxi. Therefore, Longyuan Benxi is accounted for as a

subsidiary of the Group.

The Group's interests in Longyuan Benxi accordingly were
remeasured based on the fair value of its pre-existing equity
interests in Longyuan Benxi as at the date of business
combination and a resulting gain on deemed disposal of
Longyuan Benxi of HK$8,953,000 was recognised in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss during the year ended
31 December 2021,

Details of the fair value and carrying amount of the Group's
pre-existing equity interests in Longyuan Benxi as at the date of

business combination are summarised as follows:

2021
FAET
HK$ 000
RERAZEZEEREZ ATE Fair value of pre-existing equity interests in

Longyuan Benxi 34,424

RERRZZREREZIRESE  Carrying amount of pre-existing equity interests
in Longyuan Benxi (25471)
REHE—HBE ATz WaE Gain on deemed disposal of an associate 8,953

FEMXBRER (EE) BRAE « 2022F K
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36. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS (Continued)

(c) Business combination (Continued)

The fair value of the identifiable assets and liabilities of Longyuan

Benxi as at the date of business combination was as follows:

2021
TET
HK$ 000
ME-~ BB R Property, plant and equipment 65,388
FRESEE Right-of-use assets 27874
78 Inventories 2,533
B REMBUR BEUKRTBNR  Trade and other receivables, deposits and
prepayments 39,869
FEUT BN ERTR IE Current tax receivable 574
RITEARIRE Bank balances and cash 12,189
B 5 Kk H MR Trade and other payables (4,163)
RERBEE Deferred tax liabilities (6,968)
EEANRZEEZE Net assets consolidated 137,296
TR M Non-controlling interests (82,378)
B (M) (M5E10) Gain on bargain purchase (note) (note 10) (20,494)
REBRE ERERRERREZ Total consideration, satisfied by fair value of
FEREZ A FEZY pre-existing equity interests in Longyuan Benxi 34,424
EXBEWEEZRERAANTE ! Net cash inflow arising on business combination:
REARZREERREEEY, Cash and cash equivalents, comprising bank
BiERTEGRRIRES balances and cash, consolidated 12,189

et mERERE T ER MmN A
BERZEEBAHTHBEER
DEURTFERDEREEE

FrE - EREEEE—ETE
75 BT EER TR Lt e
1o

Note: The gain on bargain purchase was primarily the result of the
recognition of the right-of-use assets at fair value in connection
with the purchase price allocation under the business combination
of Longyuan Benxi. The right-of-use assets represent land use rights

granted by a local government of the PRC without consideration.
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37. HABE
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37. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

On 9 December 2020, the Company received a letter from a
commercial bank that there might be a situation where a former
investee company indirectly held by a former associate of the Group
(the “Project Company") may fail to timely repay the aggregated loans
of approximately RMB358,000,000 or HK$400,775,000 and two letters
dated 22 April 2016 with the chop of the Company were attached,
requesting the Company to fulfill its commitment to allocate its capital

to ensure the full repayment of the bank loans in the future.

The Company became aware of that the loans principal which
amounted to RMB295,000,000 or HK$330,247,000 (two loans,
respectively, with a principal of RMB230,000,000 or HK$257,481,000
and RMB65,000,000 or HK$72,766,000) was in relation to the

following proceedings.

The Company received the judgement of first instance made by the
Intermediate People's Court of Lanzhou City, Gansu Province of the
PRC on 19 August 2022 regarding the breach of a loan contract
amounting to RMB230,000,000 or HK$257,481,000: (I) the Project
Company, as the borrower, shall repay the loan principal and interest
accrued thereon and related expenses to the commercial bank
of approximately RMB208,000,000 or HK$232,852,000; and the
commercial bank has priority of claim for the cash and receivables in
the charge account of the Project Company, as well as the priority of
claim for the income from disposal of the assets of the wind power
station pledged by the Project Company; (2) the parent company of
the Project Company, as the guarantor, shall be jointly and severally
liable for repayment; and (3) the Company shall be jointly and severally

liable of repayment.
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37. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES (Continued)

The Company received the judgement of first instance made by the
Intermediate People's Court of Lanzhou City, Gansu Province of the
PRC on |9 December 2022 regarding the breach of a loan contract
amounting to RMB65,000,000 or HK$72,766,000: (I) the Project
Company, as the borrower, shall repay the loan principal and interest
accrued thereon and related expenses to the commercial bank of
approximately RMB56,000,000 or HK$62,691,000; and the commercial
bank has priority of claim for the cash and receivables in the charge
account of the Project Company, as well as the priority of claim for
the income from disposal of the assets of the photovoltaic power
station pledged by the Project Company; (2) the parent company of
the Project Company, as the guarantor, shall be jointly and severally
liable for repayment in the event that the above liabilities cannot be
fully discharged; and (3) the Company shall assume the liability for
guarantee in the event that the borrower is still unable to pay off after

being enforced in accordance with the law of the PRC.

The above proceedings have not been finally adjudicated as of the

approval date of these consolidated financial statements.

The Company has engaged a professional legal counsel to assist in
responding to the appeal to the above judgements, which have been
further analysed after being received by the Company. According to
the legal opinion given by the legal counsel of the Company, the claim
of joint and several liabilities against the Company is unlikely to be

valid.
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37.

38.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES (Continued)

On 8 September 2022 and 6 February 2023, the Group made appeal
to the judgements, and while the final outcome of the proceedings is
uncertain, it is the directors’ opinion that the claim is not probable to
succeed and the amount of ultimate liability, if any, cannot be measured
with sufficient reliability and accordingly no provision in respect of the

proceedings was made by the Group as at 3| December 2022.

Save as disclosed above, the Group did not have any significant

contingent liabilities as at 3|1 December 2022.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS AND
BALANCES

In addition to those related party transactions and balances disclosed
elsewhere in the consolidated financial statements, the Group had the
following significant transactions and balances with its related parties

during the year:

(@) Transactions with government-related entities in the
PRC

The Group operates in an economic environment currently
predominated by entities ultimately controlled, jointly
controlled or significantly influenced by the PRC government
(“government-related entities”). In addition, the Group itself
is part of a larger group of companies under CASC which is

controlled by the PRC government.
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38. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS AND
BALANCES (Continued)

(@) Transactions with government-related entities in the
PRC (Continued)

(i)

Transactions with other government entities

The Group conducts business with other government-
related entities. The directors of the Company consider
those government-related entities are independent
third parties so far as the Group's business with them
are concerned. The Group also has certain sales and
purchases transactions with certain customers and
suppliers in which the directors are of the opinion
that it is impracticable to ascertain the identity of the
counterparties and accordingly whether the transactions

are with other government-related entities.

In addition, the Group has entered into various
transactions, including deposits placements, with banks
which are government-related entities. A majority of its

bank deposits are with government-related entities.
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38. BIfIEALT 2R B REEER @  38. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS AND
BALANCES (Continued)

(b) HHEHMBAEALZRS (b) Transactions with other related parties
() BERARKBEATR FA (i)  For amounts due from associates, please refer to note 26.
SRIMEE26
(i) FR> NEERHMEE (i) During the year, the Group had the following significant
ATZEARRZUT : transactions with its other related party:
2022 2021
FET FE7T
HK$’000 HK$ 000
m—fERRMEBAT  Technical service fee to a fellow subsidiary
SN2 MR E - 415
(iii) TEEEABZFHH (iii) Compensation of key management personnel
ZEBABERELAR The key management personnel include solely
BHMITESERZNTRSE the executive directors of the Company and the
k) NG AR compensation paid to them is disclosed in note |5.
EZEBABZHMEH The remuneration of key management is determined
MEEERTEARRER by the remuneration committee having regard to the
MIZHEBETE performance of individuals and market trends.

192 hEMKEEER (EE) ARAT « 202265



MEREE
FINANCIAL SUMMARY

BE+-RA=+-HLEE

Year ended 31 December

2018 2019 2020 2021 2022
TET TET FTAET TET FERT
HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$’000
(4 E71))
(re-presented)
(Hzt) (Hzt)
(Note) (Note)
GREEER Continuing operations
X Turnover 59,116 25,972 26,151 9,100 41,218
BrialEF (5518) Profit (loss) before
taxation (1,233,464) (42,769) (346,805) (71,027) 608,600
R1E Taxation (580) (1,265) (1,616) G.113) (581)
AEERBFE Profit (loss) for the
RExH2 a7 year from continuing
(&518) operations (1234044) (44,034) (348.421) (74,140) 608,019
AEERBERL Loss for the year from
=S/ o discontinued operations (96,102) (1,011,445) (875,044) = -
AEERE Loss for the year (1330,146) (1,055,479) (1,223,465) (74,140) 608,019

Mz BIERBEEEENES BRER
EEBRR_Z_TEEHEAER
IR  —E—NENEERSE
FoEE-EEY AR

Note: Included results of wind turbine manufacture operations whereby its operations

were classified as discontinued operations in 2020. The results of 2019 have been

re-presented to conform to the presentation of 2020.

®+=B=+-H

At 31 December
2018 2019 2020 202 2022
TAET TET TET TERT FTER
HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$'000 HK$ 000 HK$’000

RERAR ASSETS AND
LIABILITIES

BEME Total assets 4274430 3,131,967 254,607 393,069 349,151
BERE Total liabilities (3571273) (3,482,754) (1976,615) (2,156962)  (1,378,645)
BEFE (BEFE)  Net assets (liabilities) 703,157 (350,787) (1,722,008) (1763893)  (1,029,494)
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GLOSSARY

(TR -ERFAFAE]
2023 AGM”

TE])
“Annual Report”

=18

“Articles”
[ Astrotech |
"Astrotech”
e il
“Auditor”

EZEEE
“Audit Committee”

B8
“Board”

PNl

“CALT"

Mg,
“CASC”

FEMXBRER (EE) BRAE « 2022F K

ARABRR-ZBZ=ZFA=1TH (EHD BTHNRRAERE
the annual general meeting of the Company to be held on Friday, 30 June
2023

ARBBE_E__F+_A=T+—HLFENFERS
the annual report of the Company for the year ended 3| December 2022

FATEBER CRBE)

the articles of association of the Company as amended from time to time

Astrotech Group Limited’ R EBHE R R ST MAIINBER LB 2K
At BB AT
Astrotech Group Limited, a company incorporated in the British Virgin Islands

with limited liability and a wholly-owned subsidiary of CALT

2 UNSIPIN: 2 Gl s PSRt
the external auditor of the Company, RSM Hong Kong

EXgEZZEE

the Audit Committee of the Board

ARBEEE
the board of director(s) of the Company

MEES N AR RPBRIINAE ARSI SRR ERRKR
PEMANERAS L EHE

rh B 48 & N AT R AT A 22 B (China Academy of Launch Vehicle Technology),
a company established in the PRC which is wholly-owned by 1 B i K& &£
B /A B (China Aerospace Science and Technology Corporation), the ultimate

controlling shareholder of the Company

FEARHRERERAT  RPERILNABRLAER B &AERRR
Rl KRR £ B B BRA B (China Aerospace Science and Technology
Corporation), a company established in the PRC and the ultimate controlling

Shareholder of the Company



/N

“Company”

N=ib

“Companies Law"

MbxERTa
"CG Code”

TR

“China” or “PRC”

&%)
“Director(s)"

TESGHR &
“ESG Report”

IREE ) o MM,

“Group”, or “we" or “us”

87Tl
g

r&#)
“Hong Kong"

A%
GLOSSARY

China Energine International (Holdings) Limited (FFBIfn K & RE L (£ &)
BRAG RASHSEMMUNERAR  HEFRBAERLT
(B AR X% - 01185)

China Energine International (Holdings) Limited, a company incorporated in
the Cayman Islands with limited liability, the securities of which are listed on
the Main Board of the Stock Exchange (Stock Code: 01 185)

REREEHBNERFE (—AAR—EBEH BREREN
AEMEST ~ R R UH A BB

The Companies Law (Chapter 22 (Law 3 of 1961, as consolidated and
revised)) of the Cayman Islands as amended, supplemented or otherwise

modified from time to time

LHRA KB+ E R ER T

Corporate Governance Code set out in Appendix |4 of the Listing Rules

TEARANE ERAERME  FEEEE - PEARLMER
BATHERE Y

the People’s Republic of China, excluding, for the purpose of this annual report
only, Hong Kong, the Macau Special Administrative Region of the People's
Republic of China and Taiwan

ERBES
director(s) of the Company

ARERE - HERERRS

the environmental, social and governance report of the Company

ERBRENBAE

the Company and its subsidiaries

BREEERAET

Hong Kong dollars, the lawful currency of Hong Kong

FEARAMEEBFHTHE
the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region of the People's Republic of China
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FEmARAL
“Listing Rules”

R SRAl
“Model Code"

RLEER)

“Nomination Committee”

FZEEE)

“Remuneration Committee”

Eoe=pil
“Reporting Period”

TAR#)
“RMB” or "Renminbi”

M58 55 R E R Bl
“SFO”

Ll
“Share(s)"

TRER
“Shareholder(s)"

TE SR
“Stock Exchange”

*EHEE

* for identification purpose only

FEMXBRER (EE) BRAE « 2022F K

BEBMARZMAERABES LHRA
the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited

LRSS LEHETAEFTETESFRZHRETA
Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers set out

in Appendix |0 of the Listing Rules

EXERRZEE

the Nomination Committee of the Board

EXCHINEES

the Remuneration Committee of the Board

BE_T__F+_B=+—HLEFE
the year ended 31 December 2022

REEE S
the lawful currency of the PRC

BBEOEST I EEFRIEHRG (ERFET BRI UEM S IE
£%)
the Securities and Futures Ordinance (Chapter 571 of the Laws of Hong

Kong), as amended, supplemented or otherwise modified from time to time

AABRAPEREEI0BTHRS
share(s) of HK$0.10 each in the share capital of the Company

ROFEA
the holder(s) of Shares

BRMERZMERAR
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited



-~ ENERGINE

From Engine to New Energy

% \CHiNA ENERGINE INTERNATIONAL (HOLDINGS) LIMITED
 HERXERER(KEAFRAT

 Tel BiE : (852) 2586 1185
- Faxf§E : (852) 3460 5156

~ Email BZ  : energine@energine.hk
Website 483t : http://www.energine.hk

Office B, 18th Floor, Tower A, Billion Center,
1 Wang Kwong Road, Kowloon Bay, Hong Kong
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